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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
38 37 % B i

|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EiG ¢ +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYCHAMP WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Citychamp Watch &
Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 146 to 313, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment on goodwill and intangible assets

Refer to notes 5, 30 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements and the
significant accounting policies in notes 4.6, 4.7 and 4.12 to the consolidated
financial statements
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BHERRESEBRA

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had goodwill and intangible assets with
carrying amounts of HK$1,065,051,000 and HK$52,089,000 respectively arising
from the acquisitions of banking, financial and watch businesses.

Management will perform impairment assessment on the amount of goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at least annually, and will perform
impairment assessment when there is an indication that intangible assets with
definite useful lives may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
management assessed the recoverable amount of these assets based on higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. These assets were allocated
to cash generating units (“CGU"), and the recoverable amount of each CGU was
determined by management based on either value-in-use calculations using cash
flow projections or fair value less cost of disposal.

The impairment test involves significant judgements and assumption by the
management underlying the value-in-use calculation and the determination of fair
value less cost of disposal.

Management concluded that, based on the impairment assessment, no impairment
losses would be recognised for the year.

Our response
Our procedures on the management’s impairment assessment on goodwill and
intangible assets included:

(i) Assessing the reasonableness of market data, discount rates and growth rates
applied in determining the recoverable amount;

(i) Challenging the reasonableness of other key assumption based on our
knowledge of the business and industry; and

(i)  Checking input data to supporting evidence, such as approved budgets and
considering the reasonableness of these budgets.

Revenue recognition relating to sales of goods

Refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial statements and the
significant accounting policies in note 4.19 to the consolidated
financial statements

A substantial portion of the Group’s revenue was derived from sales of watches and
timepieces.

For sales of watches and timepieces, the amount of revenue recognised during the
year is dependent on the point in time the transfer of the control of the goods from
the Group to the customers.

We identified the recognition of revenue relating to sales of goods as key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the Group
and there is a significant inherent risk over the recognition of revenue by the
management to meet specific targets or expectations.
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Our response
Our procedures on the revenue recognition relating to sales of goods included:

(i) Assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales transactions recorded during the
financial year had been recognised properly by inspecting the transactions
selected with relevant underlying documentations;

(i)  Assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales transactions before and after
the financial year end had been recognised in the appropriate period by
comparing the transactions selected with relevant underlying documentations;
and

(i) Reviewing if there are any significant adjustments to revenue during
the reporting period, understanding the reasons for such adjustments
and comparing the details of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentations.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities in the regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lui Chi Kin

Practising Certificate Number P06162
Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B 2w

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—hF+-A=+—HILLFE

2019
ZE-AF

HK$°000
FTET

2018
—T-N\F
HK$'000
FE T

Interest income from banking business IRITES 2 F B A 220,821 221,648
Interest expenses from banking business RITEBZHFEFAX (37,359) (40,817)
Net interest income from banking business RITEKR 2FEWAFEE 7a 183,462 180,831
Service fees and commission income RITEBH 2 RBERASBA

from banking business 280,627 325,614
Service fees and commission expenses RITEB2RBERASRAEZ

from banking business (68,066) (89,253)
Net service fees and commission income from RITEBZREBRASWA

banking business FE 7b 212,561 236,361
Trading income from banking business RITHEB 2R WA 7c 57,230 63,172
Service fees and commission income TRER 2 REE A WA

from financial business 7d 3,195 3,342
Interest income from financial business D RFER 2 F B WA 7d 165 193
Sales of goods from non-banking and FRITREMEF 2 EMBEERA

financial businesses 7e 2,249,737 2,444,364
Rental income from non-banking and FEMITRESRMEB 2HS WA

financial businesses 7e 9,915 9,586
Total revenue FEAL PN 2,716,265 2,937,849
Cost of sales from non-banking and FERITR S RER 2 HEKA

financial businesses (1,004,030) (1,022,568)
Other income and other net gains or losses H AU B H b W s 2 B 1R SRR 8 104,393 79,486
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (817,889) (849,551)
Administrative expenses T E R (777,114) (737,985)
Share of loss of joint ventures BiREECEEE 24 (1,343) (2,678)
Share of profit of associates N b 25 17,675 8,387
Finance costs from non-banking business ERITEL 2B EH 9 (95,320) (65,828)
Profit before income tax RRFT BB ADE R 10 142,637 347,112
Income tax expense FTiSHiF X 11 (71,456) (105,664)
Profit for the year REERF 71,181 241,448




Other comprehensive income
[tems that will not be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss

HtZEBA
TERAREFHFOEE ML
B8 2 10 B

2019
ZE-AF

HK$°000
FTET

2018
—ZT-N\F
HK$'000
FE T

— Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligations ~— & 5+ & 7F 7 4 4l & (L F 5 14.2 2,490 33,025
— Change in fair value of financial —RATFEFAEMEERAZ
assets at fair value through SRBEENFES
other comprehensive income 19 (204,233) (123,352)
— Revaluation gain upon transfer of —HERATHRIEFERSRE
owner occupied land and building to YRR B U
investment properties 27 - 57,128
— Deferred tax arising from transfer of —#HERT M REFERS
owner occupied land and building to WEYHEEE 2 IEEFIE
investment properties 39 - (22,212)
(201,743) (55,411)
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified to ARER B EF D EEHm Ak
profit or loss B8z 1EE
— Exchange differences on translation to —RE 2| IE R
presentation currency (91,282) (162,086)
— Share of exchange differences on — PR N ]I =
translation of associates 25 (108) 117)
(91,390) (162,203)
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEHEMEEBA (293,133) (217,614)
Total comprehensive income for the year REEZHMB AL (221,952) 23,834
Profit for the year attributable to: UTATEEEREERR :
Owners of the Company VINNEIEZ 2 =N 44,246 201,372
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR 26,935 40,076
71,181 241,448
Total comprehensive income for the year UTALTEEEAFEZERA
attributable to: b
Owners of the Company VINNETEZZ =N (243,713) (9,083)
Non-controlling interests SRR A 21,761 32,917
(221,952) 23,834
Earnings per share attributable to owners of the A FHEA AELEEREF
Company 13
- Basic —E HK1.02 cents | HK4.63 cents
1.02 &AL 4.63 75l
— Diluted — e HK1.02 cents | HK4.63 cents

1.02 &l

4.63 710
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148 Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited B EEKIKE L EHIRAF]

2019 PAONES]
—E-hE —ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THT

Assets EE
Cash and deposits e RIFHR 16 4,897,246 7,701,743
Due from clients JEW = FRIE 17 2,093,250 1,575,438
Due from banks FEWER 1T FRIE 17 4,901,198 3,387,836
Trading portfolio investments RBEERE 18 227,903 123,606

Financial assets at fair value through other BRAFEFARMEZERAZ

comprehensive income EREE 19 422,861 627,200
Derivative financial assets PTHESRMEE 20 10,275 7,694
Trade receivables JRE W BR 5R 21 478,262 571,424
Other financial assets at amortised cost REHEAAS Rz Kb e EE 22 1,307,960 1,034,773
Inventories FE 23 2,257,966 2,314,545
Income tax recoverable AJ U Bl PS8 7,706 13,269
Interests in joint ventures Frih & &t EEn 24 1,096 2,439
Interests in associates Frib B & R Rl e 25 115,486 102,919
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 26 1,148,049 1,036,736
Investment properties wE Y 27 182,186 179,133
Prepaid land lease payments TR T A ERIE 28 - 47,605
Intangible assets mVEE 29 52,089 53,310
Goodwill Bk 30 1,065,051 1,071,552
Deferred tax assets RIEFIIAE E 39 11,626 9,437
Other assets HAih &2 31 416,871 397,570
Total assets mEE 19,597,081 20,258,229

Liabilities afE
Due to banks FERTER1T IR 17,968 4,181
Due to clients JERT & P 3R IE 32 11,963,052 12,504,591
Derivative financial liabilities TEeREasE 20 54,788 20,866
Trade payables FERTRRFR 33 411,427 324,106
Contract liabilities aREE 34 18,565 30,918
Corporate bonds NEEFH 35 = 760,244
Income tax payables FERETEHL 55,577 73,867
Borrowings BE 36 1,740,362 1,047,189
Provisions B 37 - 476
Lease liabilities HEAEE 38 83,975 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIRE B 39 59,881 60,369
Due to a shareholder e — B AR R 2 FRIA 47 12,000 73,000
Due to directors JESESEKIE 47 22,241 =
Other liabilities Hitv&aE 40 496,356 548,931
Total liabilities HweE 14,936,192 15,448,738




2019 2018
o S

HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx T
Equity R

Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR R#EG AEGEER
Share capital (&N 41 435,189 435,189
Reserves & 43 3,819,883 4,004,602
4,255,072 4,439,791
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR R = 405,817 369,700
Total equity A 4,660,889 4,809,491
Total liabilities and equity EERERAE 19,597,081 20,258,229

The consolidated financial statements on pages 146 to 313 were approved and 21462313 B v G A MBRENR —E —ZF = A
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2020 and are signedon =+ BEEZESE S & R EET|E  WHIA TESK

its behalf by: REE:
Hon Kwok Lung Shang Jianguang
BHEE BEX
Director Director
EFE EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

Fair value
thiough ~ Revaluation
other — reserve for
Share Share Goodwil ent — compre Property, Non-
Share premium aption Other arising on Statutory Exchange Valuation income plant and Retained controling Total
capital account* reserve* reserve*  consolidation* reservet resrve® resere® equipment* profits* ofa nterests equity

REr  HtER  Ef i ERE i i ] REEH* ;
HK$'000 HK$'000 (/00 ( HK$'000 HK$'000
FER T T T
(note 43)
(h43)

Balance at 31 December 2017and A=F—+E+=A=1-BR

1 January 2018 435032 71,202 1000 15220 (15,300) 91,078 (32,935 117,525 - - 3421989 4,804,881 343,245 5,148,126
Impacton infial applicationof ~ HIRFEF

HKFRS 9 - - - - - - - (117,525) 250,536 - (141,491) (8.480) (758) (9.238)
At 1 January 2018, as stated RZE-N\§-F-B 4 435032 1,202 1070 15,220 (15,300 91,078 (32935) - 250,536 - 3280498 4,796,401 302,487 5,138,888
Transactions with owners ~ EEEARS
Proceeds from shares issued under B £ FREE R 7 BT BI%

share option scheme 157 354 - - - - - - - - - 511 - 51
Exercise of share options - 239 (239 - - - - - - - - - - -
Lapse of share options = = 81 - - - - - - - 81 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries

(note 48) = = = = = = = = = = = = 13913 13973
aly edemption of convertible R EET AKES

bonds - - - 808 - - - - - - - 808 - 808

Deemed acquistonofinterest ~ REKENBLARES

in subsidiaries (note 49(c)) i - - - (87,200) - - - - - - - (87,202) (68,875) (156,077)
Acauistion of non-controling i

interests (note 49(d) - - - (531) - - - - - - - (531) 225 (2,756)
2017 special ividend (note 12) - (89,767) - = = = = = = - (171,340) (261,113) - (261,113)

Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests = = = = = = = = = = = = (56,536) (56,536)
Net investment from &

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - (2.041) (2,041)
Total transactions with owners 5 AR5 157 (89,174) (1,070) (86925) - - - - - - (170515) (347527) (5,704) (353.31)

Comprehensive income 2EUA

Proftfor the year KERER - - - - - - - - - - 0131 0131 40,76 241,448

Other comprehensive income  Et2EHA

Remeasurement of defined benefit 3758 £ 12 FI B¢
obligations = = = = = - - - - - 31,278 31,278 1,747 33,025

Change in fair value of financial TARH

5=

assets at fairvlue through other ~ £REER ]
comprehensive income - - - - - - - = (123,35) = = (123,352) = (123,352)
Revaluation gain upon translerof B HiRIEF

owner occupied land and RENER EH

buidings to investment

properties - - - - - - - - - 57,128 - 57,128 - 57,128
Deferred tax arising from transfer of % &8+ R 1§

owner occupied land and RENFEL BRAA

buidings to investment

properties - - - - - - - - - 212 - 22.212) - Q21
Eichange diferences on translation 257 EMELZES 28

to presentation currency - - - - - - (153,180) - - - - (153,180) (8906) (162,086)
Share of exchange differences o~ EfRBHE 2 i

translation of associates - - - - - - (17) - - - - (117) - (17)
Total comprehensive income for AEE2FHALE

the year = = = = = = (153.297) = (123,35) 34916 232,650 (9,083) 32917 3834
Appropriation to statutory eserve  HRAZ AT - - - - - 12,184 - - - - (12,184) = = =

Balance at 31 December 2018 R=%-NFrZf=1-H2
] 435,189 682,028 - (71,705) (15,300) 103,262 (186,232) = 127,184 34916 3330449 4439791 369,700 4,809,491




Equity attributable to owners of the Company
AOTREARLER

Fair value
through  Revaluation
other  reserve for
Share Goodwil comprehensive Property, Non-
Share premium Other  arisingon Statutory Exchange income plant and Retained controlling
capital account* reserve* consolidation* reserve* reserve* reserve*’  equipment* profits* Total interests

RAVE
FARfE  ME HE
Rt HAaER 2EUA kRE
R& BER  EtEE EioEr  iEREr  JMERE BR"  EfBE  REEA &it Ealig
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TR T T T T T TER TR
(note 41) (note 43) (note 43) (note 43) (note 43) (note 43)
(fan) (W)  (WEe)  (WEe)  (WEe)  (WEe)

Balance at 31 December 2018 and A |
1 January 2019 I-NE-R-BuER 435,189 682,028 (71,705) (15,300) 103,262 (186,232) 127,184 34916 3,330,449 4439791 369,700 4,809,491

Transactions with owners
Partial dsposal of subsidiaries without (Y3
Joss of control (note 49(a) 1R (Ra9) - - 63,928 - - - - - - 63,928 4748 ma3n
Transaction cost for the equity BERANRAM
transactions (note 49(a)) ( ) - - (4,887) - - - - - - (4,887) - (4,887)
Deemed acquisition of interest in subsidiaries (note 49%(b)
- - ()] - - - - - - (47) (1,443) (1,490)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - (31,255) (31,255)

Net investment from

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - (389) (389)
Total transactions with owners EEEARAEE - - 58,994 - - - - - - 58,994 14,356 7335
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Profit for the year KEREN = = = = = = = = 4246 4246 26,935 1,181
Other comprehensive income Afp2ERA
Remeasurement of defined benefit Bl e R BRAER

obligations - - - - - - - - 4,356 4,356 (1,866) 2490

Change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through other

comprehensive income - - - - - - (204,233) - - (204,233) - (204,233)
Exchange differences on translation to presentation currency - - - - - (87,974) - - - (87,974) (3.308) (91,282)
Share of exchange differences on R

translation of associates - - - - - (108) - - - (108) - (108)
Total comprehensive income REERENALE

for the year - - - - - (88,082) (204,233) - 48,602 (243,713) 21,761 (221,952)
Appropriation to statutory reserve ERTITRE - - - - 2,669 - - - (2,669) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-B-AE+-R=t-R2EH 435,189 682,028 (1) (15,300) 105,931 (24318) (77,049) 34916 3,376,382 4,255,012 405,817 4,660,889

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$3,819,883,000 (2018:
HK$4,004,602,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. * ZERBEERESUBRAARAZES FH
3,819,883,0007% 7T (= ZF — /\ £ : 4,004,602,000 %
JT) °

L The entire balance of fair value through other comprehensive income reserve belongs to
non-recycling portion.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HABleRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

Cash flows from operating activities

REeTHELECHETRE

2019
—E-NE

HK$'000
FEx

2018
—T-N\F
HK$'000
FET

Profit before income tax B P 15 350 A A 142,637 347,112
Adjustments for: K
Depreciation and amortisation e Kk i 10 174,866 128,913
Provision and impairment losses B OB E E e 34,829 21,729
Net (surplus)/deficit on revaluation of investment BREWMES G2 (B,
properties B AL F R 27 (4,047) 4,066
Share of profit of associates FE (LB = R B A 25 (17,675) (8,387)
Share of loss of joint ventures EhEEhEEBE 24 1,343 2,678
Interest income from non-banking business FERITEB ZF B WA 8 (4,257) (5,648)
Finance costs %5 & R 9 95,320 65,828
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEREEB2
equipment (Mz=) /E1E 8 (159) 1,589
Fair value loss on early redemption of REBERATBRKES 2
convertible bonds NFEEIE 8 - 978
Dividend income R% B A (13,324) (12,413)
Operating profit before working capital changes BEES I 2K ERT 409,533 546,445
Decrease in due to clients JEN R P FRIE R A (669,484) (1,692,930)
Increase in due from clients JiE W B SR IE 3 N (447,716) (585,396)
Increase in due to banks JE AT ER 1T IR IE 1 10 13,461 1,165
(Increase)/decrease in due from banks FEU SR 7T RI8 (38 h0) R A (1,485,374) 2,519,173
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FEU BR R A (3 0) 82,474 (35,718)
Decrease in inventories FERD 19,647 25,031
(Increase)/decrease in cash held on behalf of clients KR FEi5H 2L (L) H2 (57,295) 319
(Increase)/decrease in other assets H & E () R (21,671) 44,088
Increase in derivative financial assets PTES A EE N (2,443) (3,134)
Increase/(decrease) in derivative financial liabilities PTESRBEREL M, ORd) 33,922 (14,680)
Increase in trade payables JFE 1<F BR SR 0 86,965 21,334
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities AHaECRY) & (12,204) 32,335
(Increase)/decrease in trading portfolio investments X S#HEAIKE (#&) E (103,411) 102,370
Decrease in other liabilities H & ERD (52,626) (41,566)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations CEERE (TR EEX2ES (2,206,222) 918,836
Income tax paid ETFEH (82,739) (131,585)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating EEER () EL£ZHELFHE
activities (2,288,961) 787,251
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELEZRERE
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEYZE - WE K& EMSHRE
equipment 20,112 -
Dividends received 2R B 13,324 12,413
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets at REESHA AN BR 2 H A & B
amortised cost EEGEm, R (256,159) 274,866
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEMX  KER&E (144,993) (113,030)
Increase in pledged bank deposits B & #HER 1717 78 0 (111,763) =
Increase in restricted bank deposits IR SR 1717 ZR 8 A0 (1,260) =
Interest received from non-banking business FEERIT RS 2 B WA B 4,257 5,648
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries W HE Pt /8 A B3R & HF 58 48 = (348,495)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHFAZHE2FHE (476,482) (168,598)




2019
—E-NE

HK$'000
FET

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
TR

Cash flows from financing activities METHELEZESRE
Proceeds from shares issued under share option RIE R AR (0 R B3 TR D
scheme FT1S508 - 511
Proceeds from sales of repurchased corporate SHER B R AES 2 FTEHRIA
bonds - 27,566
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Hﬁlﬁﬁé‘ﬁ AR HE A 49(b) (1,490) (158,833)
Proceeds from partial disposal of subsidiaries o E B A R R R &
without loss of control 7 4 2 BT 1S BE 49(a) 111,371 =
Transaction cost for equity transaction I 5HHZ %&$ 49(a) (4,887) -
Interest paid EATFLE (84,024) (63,990)
Proceeds from borrowings fﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ 1,479,128 710,999
Repayment of principal portion of the lease liabilities Ej@%ﬁ \’E\ EE’JZLVE =i (37,480)
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (866,520) (188 285)
Dividends paid to the owners of the Company [EEAN/N Tfﬁﬁ*ﬁ_/\/ﬁﬁﬂ = 12 - (261,113)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ) FE4ZE A e 2 I 5 R B (31,255) (56,536)
Reduce in investment from non-controlling interests 3% A% 4 25 % & (389) (2,041)
Decrease in subordinate debt IR AR AETE R D - (95,767)
Repayment of convertible bonds BEERKRES - (100,000)
Repayment of notes payable EBRENERE = (100 OOO)
Repayment of corporate bonds EEQRES (756,022)
Advances from a shareholder RKE—BRR 28K 12,000 73,000
Repayment to a shareholder R —BIREFHIE (73,000) =
Advances from directors REEFZHR 22,000 =
Net cash used in financing activities ABETEFHZHE 2/ F8 (230,568) (214,489)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash ReRELEEYORL) B
equivalents HE (2,996,011) 404,164
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HRZAERAELEZEY 7,639,989 7,318,961
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXEEHTETHE (12,276) (83,136)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RTZA=+—HZHER
REeZEEY 4,631,702 7,639,989
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRASEB/YEHRIM
cash equivalents
Cash and deposits RERTFX 16 4,679,996 7,654,811
Bank overdrafts RITEX 36 (48,294) (14,822)
4,631,702 7,639,989
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1 54 Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited

BHERRESEBRA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3 YA 255 2 i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE=—Z—AF+-A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Cayman Islands. Its registered office address
is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, South Church Street, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is Units 1902-04, Level 19,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The Company'’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) include:

— Manufacturing and distribution of watches and timepieces;
—  Property investments; and
— Banking and financial businesses.

In January 2019, the Group has disposed of 5,500,000 shares of Ernest Borel
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (together “Ernest Borel Group”), which
is a 82.5% owned subsidiary of the Group, at HK$1.74 per share with the
total consideration of HK$9,570,000. In March 2019, the Group has further
disposed of 58,506,515 shares of Ernest Borel Group at HK$1.74 per share
with the total consideration of HK$101,801,000.

After the disposal of part of the shares of Ernest Borel Group, the Group still
owned 64.08% equity share of Ernest Borel Group and the majority of the
board members are approved by the Company. The disposal of the shares is
accounted for as a transaction with non-controlling interests without losing
control, the result on the disposal of the equity interests to non-controlling
interests are recognised in the other reserve of the Group. Details of the
aforementioned partial disposal of shares of Ernest Borel Group are set out in
note 49(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Other than the aforementioned transactions, there were no other significant
change in the Group's operations during the year.

The Group's principal places of the business are in Hong Kong, Switzerland,
United Kingdom, Liechtenstein and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

— ik & B

BRERKBEREER QG ([ARA]) B
EHETMAIZBRAR - HerfftirEmi
#F & P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, South Church
Street, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands + & 2 %
ERMANBBNENTHERIRIRKESE
15 19#1902-04 = - AR ARMN BB E X
SMARAR ([HAAT]) £ e

FR - ARRREMEAR
TEXBEE:

(e[ A~%E]) 2

- EEREEGERRERDE

- MELRE R

- ROIREBMERS-

RZEBE—NF—A AEBIESRI1.74BL2E
% H 5 5,500,000 B AROR B& 152 B A PR A 7] B H Y
%AT(%MW&%E@J$E@%E&S%
B AR KD - R EE9,570,00078

ﬁoBA E—NEF=A - ZISE@ FI1.7478
#— 4 H £ 58,506,515 KN £ E
f&15 - 3@1%{:%101,801,0005%71 °

HEBIREEEERNRMDE  NEBRASE
BN EE 64.08% % - AN AEBREM AR
REBOMWESSKE - HERGWERALEX
RGN BEIEERERNR S - FIEERE
mHERSEENE RN ASE B H b RRE
RBARK o Ll Eo H &K EBERMDFES
BN ER A BTSRRI 5 49(a) °

BB FRARENRET LS
KEH -

AEBZTBLXMHBUNES -t RE -
IIXBEERFEARKME ([HE])



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRANAT W S ot i S (T 78 o B 5

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) HHER]])
(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective 1 (a) EMFFTRREFT B RBMKRESE

January 2019 Al-R=ZB-NF-A—BEX

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the following RAFE  AEEEXERNTHESS

new or revised standards, amendments and interpretations (the “new SR A R ([BAGTAAE]) B 2#E]

or revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified HIMEET 2 EER - BT R R ([FTE] s

Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are relevant to and effective for BRI B BT B REER]) - ZFAEAEK

the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period SER-_Z-NF—-A—BRBZFEH

beginning on 1 January 2019: 4R G M mRAB M R AR :

HKFRS 16 Leases BEUBRELAF 165  HE

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments B4 (BEMBRERE FERREN T 4

ZEE®)-REEBT

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features and Negative ERMBATENEIR  AABRECRAENEH
Compensation 0iCH)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or BEQTENZ 195 SHEERT - RS
Settlement 0iCH)

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint BESHENZBRMNE] REERARARSELRNR
Ventures Mg

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BBUBREEREIN %%@ﬁ%iﬁiﬁﬁ‘J

HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and 2015-2017 Cycle ERUERLEAENG . FE2-F t¢
HKAS 23 BAGIEAE 125 R a@%ﬁi&ﬁﬁm

BBEiRRE IR
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)
(CONTINUED)

(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2019 (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies

This is the first set of the Group’s financial statements in which HKFRS 16
has been adopted. The impacts of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases have
been summarised in below. The other new or amended HKFRSs that are
effective from 1 January 2019 did not have any material impact on the
Group's accounting policies.

0]

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in accounting treatment

for lease accounting, primarily for accounting for lessees. It
replaces HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 17"), HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-
Interpretation 15 Operating Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Interpretation 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. From a lessee’s perspective,
almost all leases are recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
with the narrow exception to this principle for leases which the
underlying assets are of low-value or are determined as short-
term leases. From a lessor’s perspective, the accounting treatment
is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. For details of HKFRS 16
regarding its new definition of a lease, its impact on the Group’s
accounting policies and the transition method adopted by the
Group as allowed under HKFRS 16, please refer to section (ii) to (v)
of this note.

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative effect
approach and recognised the right-of-use asset at the amount
equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position immediately
before 1 January 2019. There were no onerous lease contracts
that would have required a significant adjustment to the right-
of-use assets at the date of initial application on 1 January 2019.
The comparative information presented in 2018 has not been
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations as allowed by the transition provision in HKFRS 16.

2. TRAN U I B o Y B (7 o A 5 i
W) (%)

(a) ERAHFTREMBRTERM B /RS
E-R-B-NF-A-HBEX

(%)

B REREH

W AEEEDRANE BN EREERE
1658 2 MR - BT BU IS ER
F16FMAE2FEE N T - At
AIRRERTBEAMBRSEN A T~
F-A—HREN BAKESIHBRL
BENEATE -

0]

RNEBMBIREENE 165828
BEVBREEAZ16REHEES
FHRIEELEANE  TEREGHEE
WA R - AR EE S 2R
FN7RIMAEE] TFEGERE 7
1) &R (BRMBRERELE
B)-REBFIREETLHEEES
HE] BB (FB2EZES) =
BENSHIKEHE — BB MEE
(RERBEZES) —R2EF27HIF
EERBEZERTARSNEE]
HRABEAME  ZFHBEHEHERGES
MR KR ATER AL MEEERE
BERE KO EBEEREEE
FREERERHECHERH2E
BURA - RHEBANAEE  HE
FPERIEDAEBBFERTERE1T75R
AHAFE - BRATENHRELEE
16 RHHENTER  EHAKES
SAABERNTE R AREBIRAB BT
HEEE165RE NI ZBE
TERFS  B2HAMEE () E V)

£ o

AEBEEARFEEEZERETEY
B EERE 165% - WIRHEFNE
ERARCSREREREEE @ HHa
ER_T-NF— A BHARGEEHM

AR R IER 2 % H S8R 2 (17
BN FIARERHEN RSN A

B -RVnERAAH T -hF—A
—B - YEBEBREEESNAHER
HEEFEHERBE -R-_T—\F
EIZHEBERN T BESS| LR
REBUBRE LR E 1658 2 BIE
BEMA  RIEFBSHERNE 17
SN AERRERE R



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)
(CONTINUED)

(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2019 (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

TR A9 7 v S8 0 e o i B (78 o S 5

0]

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

The following table summarises the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 on the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2019:

As at
31 December
2018
R-T—N\F
+=H
=+—~H
HK$'000
T
Assets: BE
Property, plant and
equipment M BB &R 1,036,736
Prepaid land lease payments  FBft -3t F & FKIE 47,605
Liabilities: BE:
Lease liabilities HEBE -

The following reconciliation explains how the operating lease
commitments disclosed applying HKAS 17 as at 31 December
2018 could be reconciled to the lease liabilities at the date of initial
application recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2019:

Reconciliation of operating lease commitments to lease liabilities:

wHe ) (#)

(a) BRAAFRI BB BBUBHRESE
A-R-ZZ-NFE-A—-BEX
(%)

B BEREE (H)

() BHAEBUBREEAE 167 2TE
(nﬁ)
TREAR-_ZB-NF-—H—HZK
S @R MBI R ARNEBR TS
HEEAE 165k 2 &

HKFRS 16
Contract
Capitalisation
SRS
£RIZE165 R-TE—NF
aHERE —A—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRET

As at
1 January
2019

HKFRS 16
Reclassification

BEMBRE BE

AERIZE 16 55%
B¥ oM
HK$'000
FTAT

47,605 90,627 1,174,968
(47,605) = -

= (90,627) (90,627)

AWTFHERMMER —_E—N\FE+_A4
=T —HREBEBEGFEANF 175
WREICEHERENMER T
*ﬂﬁ*ﬁ*ﬂﬂﬁ@%ﬁ#%%@

ﬁ,ﬁf? :

KREMEAERBERE YR

HK$'000
T

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December

RZE-—N\F+ZA=+T—HZ&

2018 B E R 112,456
Less: short term leases for which lease terms end ~ J& : FAEHR - T — N4
within 31 December 2019 +=A —Jrfaiz
RITEAE 2 R ERTEE (12,866)
Less: future interest expenses B féﬂ BRX (8,963)
Total lease liabilities as of 1 January 2019 R=ZZE-—NF—HA—H2
HEaERRH 90,627
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)
(CONTINUED)

(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2019 (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied
to lease liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2019 is 5%.

Prepaid land lease payments in respect of the land use right in the
PRC are currently recognised as right-of-use assets under HKFRS
16.

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract, or part of a
contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying
asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. A contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time when the customer, throughout the period of use,
has both: (a) the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset and (b) the right to direct
the use of the identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, a lessee shall allocate
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components,
unless the lessee apply the practical expedient which allows the
lessee to elect, by class of underlying asset, not to separate non-
lease components from lease components, and instead account for
each lease component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.

The Group chooses to separate non-lease components from lease
components and allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices.

2. SRANT o S v v B (7 o S
HAER]) (B1)

(a) FRAHFTREERTERBUBHRSE
ZA-R-ZFB-NF-A—BEH

(%)

B BR2 8 (H)

() RABBUBHEEAL 165728
(%)

R-B-NF—A—BER MR
AERANERZ HERBEMER AR
ADHE 1538 8 B R A R 5% °

B L i AR RO TR A T E 5K
B AT &8 M R &5 2 A 5 16 5
RREREEE -

(i) HEZHESR
REFEVHRELAE 165 1
EEEABE—RURZEE (186
BE)ERBARRKEZADORE
Mz—#n - BEPNEEMERIE
B (o) BEAD R EERSEAR
7R R 58 2 #EF K (b) 1R R E &Rl
BEZRGEZENE - aOEHEER
R—EERREHIERZE BRI EE
a2

HBEHEERD K —IERIA LFEIME
ERFHERDZAHOME - ABEA
AR E R 2 iR BB ARIE
HEMD 2 BYBREBLEERKS
PN ESEESEEED - FRIE
EBEAERZ TR AR FRE
ARBEEERR B TSIEEE
B BEERD D - M SHER
2 RAEAIEBFEE RO ARG E—
HERD -

AEBZEEZREDIFHEEH S LEER
o WRBAREBI B S HHK(E
DEEHERIFHEERD



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)
(CONTINUED)

(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2019 (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee
Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease as an operating
lease or a finance lease based on the extent to which risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of a lease asset lie with the lessor
or the lessee. If a lease is determined as an operating lease, the
lessee would recognise the lease payments under the operating
lease as an expense over the lease term. The asset under the lease
would not be recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they are operating leases
or finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but HKFRS 16 provides accounting policy choices for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term
leases and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-
value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12 months. The
lease payments associated with those leases have been expensed
on straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at the
commencement date of a lease.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories. The Group measures the right-to-use assets at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

2. TRANT U I g Y B (7 o A 5 i
HAER]) (B1)

(a) ERAHFT RSB ERBUBHRSE
ZA-R-ZFB-NF-A—BEH
(/&)

BREEEE (H)

(i) FRFABAZEHEELR
RBEREGFEAFE 175 AHA
RUAH R AR A FSERESEE
BERBENTNERKDBRNEE
REE  BRENBAKEHENR
BEHE HWHEBEREEHEE Al
AFEABRE LS E S E R
RRHEHRMAY -HEBRTZEER
PERABANZFEPBARNKR NHE

.
=7
o ©

REBEFEVHRELAE 165 AT
FHETwmERKEHEXRER
B) ANRAMEIRARAEARL
REREEERHERE  HEHEH
BHRELEAF16RRERIRMHER
HEER  LUEREAENEG) SEB
MEZHER/F () HREE/EE
BZHEE AEEDEETLHEEE
BENEBERANFABAMADR12
BEAZHERRAEAREENHEER
B EZEFHERRZEENRER
HEHREAEIH -

AEBNEERG B BEREREE
ENREEAE-

EREEE
EREEERRKAER LGB
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OB WER Z (AT S AR ¢ (iii) A
HAELE ZEAMEERRA K V)
AEARFGEBRAREEERE
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ZIEEH AN (BRIFRER AT RELE
FEMEL) - REBRKAER
FREEE WA ERRAITERE
REBBRANRREERE ZEFE
At BETHE -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)
(CONTINUED)

(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2019 (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
For the Group, leasehold land and buildings that were held for
rental or capital appreciation purpose would continue to be
accounted for under HKAS 40 and would be carried at fair value.
The adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore does not have any significant
impact on these assets.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability should be recognised at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of
the lease. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group shall use the
Group's incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date
of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv)
the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee shall measure
the lease liabilities by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liabilities; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g. a
change in future lease payments arising from change in an index
or rate, a change in the lease term, a change in the in substance
fixed lease payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)
(CONTINUED)

(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2019 (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(iv) Accounting as a lessor

(v)

The Group has leased out its investment properties to a number
of tenants. As the accounting under HKFRS 16 for a lessor is
substantially unchanged from the requirements under HKAS 17,
the adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have significant impact on
these consolidated financial statements.

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the
cumulative effect approach and recognised the right-of-use assets
at the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
immediately before 1 January 2019. There were no onerous lease
contracts that would have required a significant adjustment to the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application on 1 January
2019. The comparative information presented in 2018 has not
been restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17 and
related interpretations as allowed by the transition provision in
HKFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities at the date of 1
January 2019 for leases previously classified as operating leases
applying HKAS 17 and measured those lease liabilities at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019.
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1 62 Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited B EEKIKE L EHIRAF]

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRANAT W S ot e S (T 78 o B 5
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) e ]) (48)

(CONTINUED)

(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2019 (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(v) Transition (Continued)
The Group has elected to recognise all the right-of-use assets
at 1 January 2019 for leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17 as if HKFRS 16 had been applied since
the commencement date, but discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. For
all these right-of-use assets, the Group has applied HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets at 1 January 2019 to assess if there was any
impairment as on that date.

The Group has also applied the following practical expedients:
(i) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics; and (ii) applied the exemption of
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases
with term that will end within 12 months of the date of initial
application (1 January 2019) and accounted for those leases as
short-term leases.

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 23 — Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12, Income Taxes,
by providing guidance over how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes. Under the Interpretation, the entity shall
determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately
or together based on which approach better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax authority will
examine amounts that it has a right to examine and have full knowledge
of all related information when making those examinations. If the entity
determines it is probable that the tax authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment, then the entity should measure current and deferred tax
in line with its tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable, then
the uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected using either the
“most likely amount” or the “expected value” approach, whichever
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRANAT W S ot e S (T 78 o B 5
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) e ]) (48)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2019 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets with negative
compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income if specified conditions are met — instead of
at fair value through profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 19 - Plan amendments,
curtailment or settlement

The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement
of a defined benefit plan, a company should use updated actuarial
assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the
period. Additionally, the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when
calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with
separately in other comprehensive income.

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long-term interests
(“LTI") in associates or joint ventures which form part of the net
investment in the associates or joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS
9 is applied to these LTI before the impairment losses guidance within
HKAS 28.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process make
small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 3 which clarifies that when a joint
operator of a business obtains control over a joint operation, this is a
business combination achieved in stages and the previously held equity
interest should therefore be remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.
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1 64 Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited B EEKIKE L EHIRAF]

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)
(CONTINUED)

(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2019 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangement

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process make
small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 11 which clarify that when a party
that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation
which is a business and subsequently obtains joint control of the joint
operation, the previously held equity interest should not be remeasured
to its acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle —
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process make
small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 12 which clarify that all income
tax consequences of dividends are recognised consistently with the
transactions that generated the distributable profits, either in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle —
Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 23 which clarifies that a
borrowing made specifically to obtain a qualifying asset which remains
outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended use
or sale would become part of the funds an entity borrows generally and
therefore included in the general pool.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective
The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, have been issued but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Revised Conceptual Revised Conceptual Framework for
Framework Financial Reporting’

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

9 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective date has now been
deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments of the amendments
continue to be permitted.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify that a business must include, as a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs, together with providing extensive guidance
on what is meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs, whilst narrowing the
definition of “outputs” and a “business” to focus on returns from selling
goods and services to customers, rather than on cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business.
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1 66 Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited B EEKIKE L EHIRAF]

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRANAT W S ot i S (T 78 o B 5
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) e ]) (48)

(CONTINUED)
(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

(b) B BB s R £ XA ET RARMEET

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
Material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation of “material”,
aligning the definition across all HKFRS Standards and the Conceptual
Framework, and incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into
the definition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 —
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting requirements
to provide relief from potential effects of the uncertainties caused by
interest rate benchmark reform. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.

Revised Conceptual Framework — Revised Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting

The Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
supersedes the version that was issued in 2010 and is the equivalent
of the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board. The revised framework
includes: (i) new chapters on measurement and reporting financial
performance; (i) new guidance on derecognition of assets and liabilities;
(iii) updated definitions of asset and liability; and (iv) clarifications in the
roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in financial
reporting.

HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 will replace HKFRS 4 as a single principle-based standard for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts in the financial statements of the issuers of those contracts.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be recognised
when an entity sells or contributes assets to its associate or joint venture.
When the transaction involves a business the gain or loss is recognised
in full, conversely when the transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or associate.

The Group is in the progress of making assessments of the potential
impact of these new or revised HKFRSs upon initial application.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

3.3

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRS") issued by the HKICPA. The consolidated financial statements
also included the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value.

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2019, one of the financial covenants as stipulated
in the relevant agreements in respect of borrowings with outstanding
principal of approximately HK$973,702,000 was not satisfied.
Accordingly, from accounting perspective, the aforesaid borrowings
would be regarded as immediately due and payable should the lenders
exercise their rights under the agreements. The relevant banks have
granted waivers to the Group in respect of the unsatisfied financial
covenants before the date of authorisation of the financial statements.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company have
performed a due and careful assessment on the Group’s future liquidity
and financial performance, and also considered its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. The directors of the Company
opined that, taking into account of (i) the relevant banks have granted
waivers to the Group and (i) the available unutilised banking facilities
available for providing additional working capital to the Group as and
when necessary, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations that will be
due within next twelve months from 31 December 2019. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION(CONTINUED)

3.4 Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (“HK$'000"”) unless
otherwise stated.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal,
as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquire is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure non-controlling interest that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related
costs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the measurement
period (@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about the
fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability are recognised
in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.1

4.2

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from business combinations
whose acquisition dates preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the
Group first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in
accordance with the transition requirements in the standard. Such
balances are not adjusted upon first application of the standard.
Subsequent revisions to estimates of such consideration are treated
as adjustments to the cost of these business combinations and are
recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interests’
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise
control. The Company controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.2

4.3

4.4

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Structured entities

The collective investment instruments of the Group are structured
entities as defined under HKFRS 12. If the Group operates such an
investment instrument acting as an agent primarily in the interests of
investors, this structured entity is not consolidated. Investments in such
investment instruments held by the Group are recognised as financial
instruments. If the Group acts as principal primarily in its own interests,
the investment instrument is consolidated.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby they
are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are
adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest
in the associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to make
good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’
interests in the associate. The investor’'s share in the associate’s profits
and losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying amount of the
associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an
associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.
Accounting policies on impairment of interests in associates are
described in note 4.7 below.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.5

4.6

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is a contractual
arrangement that confers joint control over the relevant activities of the
arrangement to the group and at least one other party. Joint control is
assessed under the same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as either:

e Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to only the net assets of
the joint arrangement; or

e Joint operations: where the Group has both the rights to assets and
obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint arrangements, the
Group considers:

e The structure of the joint arrangement;

e  The legal form of joint arrangements structured through a separate
vehicle;

e The contractual terms of the joint arrangement agreement; and

e Any other facts and circumstances (including any other contractual
arrangements).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture above the fair
value of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the investment in joint venture. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in a joint venture has been impaired the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of the aggregate
of consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests over the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired. The consideration transferred is
measured at the aggregate of fair values, at the date of exchange, of
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.6 Goodwill (Continued)

4. FEEFHEE ()

46 BHE (E)

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration paid, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree, the
excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-
assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition is
allocated to each of the relevant cash generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash generating unit is
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets. A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash
generating unit (“CGU") to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in
the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the
individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of
disposal (if measurable) or its value-in-use (if determinable), whichever
is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or
loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

4. FEEFHEE ()

4.7 FERMEERE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of the following assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;
° intangible assets; and

. interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount
to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset or cash generating unit (note 4.6), discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or cash generating unit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.8 Related parties

(a

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the Group or
the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of the employees of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.8 Related parties (Continued)

4. FEEFHEE ()

4.8 BEAL (&)

(b)  (Continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii)

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

4.9 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land, where
the fair value of the buildings could be measured separately from the fair
value of the leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and other items
of plant and equipment, other than construction in progress (“CIP"),
are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and any
identified impairment.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to the working condition and
location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the year in
which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.9 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

4. FEEFHEE ()

4.9 % - BEKRRE (E)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Over the terms of the leases or estimated
useful life ranging between 3 to 50
years, whichever is shorter

Right-of-use assets

Buildings Over the terms of the leases or estimated
useful life, ranging between 10 years
and 50 years, whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the terms of the leases, or estimated
useful life of 5 years, whichever is

shorter
Plant and machinery 6% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 6% to 50%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 9% to 30%

The assets’ estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

CIP, which mainly represents renovation work on buildings and
installation of machinery, is stated at cost less any impairment losses.
Cost comprises direct costs incurred during the periods of construction,
installation and testing. CIP is reclassified to the appropriate class of
property, plant and equipment when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are completed. No
depreciation is provided for in respect of CIP until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

4.10 Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is
classified and accounted for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which has been classified as an
investment property is accounted for as if it were held under a finance
lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.10 Investment properties (Continued)

4. FEEFHEE ()

4.10 RE Y= (&)

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience with respect
to both the location and the nature of the investment property. The
carrying amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position reflect the prevailing market conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either change in the fair value or the sale
of an investment property are included in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

4.11A Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1 January

2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance leases) are
required to be capitalised in the statement of financial position as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist
for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term
leases and/or (ji) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets and leases for which at the commencement date
have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets should be recognised at cost and would comprise:
(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability (see below
for the accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred
to produce inventories. Except for right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of an investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation model, the Group
measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of an investment property, they are carried at fair value.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEFHEHEOR ()

(CONTINUED)
4.11ALeasing (accounting policies applied from 1 January LMAEE (B2 —-NF—F—BR8ER
2019) (Continued) WETTEXE) (F)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that are held for
rental or capital appreciation purpose under HKAS 40 and are carried at
fair value.

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use of the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date of
the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less
any lease incentives receivable: (i) variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (i) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures the lease
liabilities by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liabilities; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and (i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future lease
payments arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties to a number of
tenants. Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee.
If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.11ALeasing (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019) (Continued)
Accounting as a lessor (Continued)
When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases are classified as
a finance lease or as an operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the exemption, then the Group classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.

4.11B Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2018)
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

(i) The Group as lessee

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases. Where
the Group has the right to use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or
loss using straight-line method over the lease terms except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance lease,
the amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets is included in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities,
net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under finance
lease. Subsequent accounting for assets under finance lease
agreements corresponds to those applied to comparable acquired
assets. The corresponding finance lease liability is reduced by lease
payments less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to
profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.11B Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2018) (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

The Group as lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured and
presented according to the nature of the assets. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on the straight-line method over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments are up-front payments to acquire
the long-term interests in usage of land on which the buildings
are situated. These payments are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment loss. Amortisation is calculated
using straight-line method over the respective lease terms.

4.12 Intangible assets

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is fair value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with definite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful
lives as follows. The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Supplier and distribution networks 10 years
Brand names 10 years
Patents 10 years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives shall not be amortised.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.12 Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Internally generated intangible assets (research and
development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is capitalised if it can
be demonstrated that:

o it is technically feasible to develop the product for it to be
sold;

e adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

o there is an intention to complete and sell the product;
o the Group is able to sell the product;

o sale of the product will generate future economic benefits;
and

o expenditure on the project can be measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over the periods the
Group expects to benefit from selling the products developed. The
amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above criteria and
expenditure on the research phase of internal projects are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assets with definite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing
their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts (note 4.7).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount; however, the carrying amount should not
be increased above the lower of its recoverable amount and the
carrying amount that would have resulted had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. All reversals are
recognised in the profit or loss immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.13 Financial instruments

0)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant
financing component) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirely when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”): Assets
that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

0)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVPL include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at
fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for
trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-by-investment
basis. Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value. Dividend income are recognised
in profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEFHEHEOR ()

(CONTINUED)
4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)
(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

413 €@ T B ()
(i) eMEEREESE

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss
("ECL") on trade receivables, contract assets, financial assets
measured at amortised cost and debt investments measured at
FVOCI. The ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the reporting date:
and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets at amortised cost or at FVOCI, the
ECLs are based on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)
(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

4. FEEFHEE ()

413 €@ T B ()
(i) eHEEREEE (B)

For the due from clients and due from banks, except for precious
metal, ECL is determined by reference to the estimation of the
exposure at default (“EAD"), probability of default (“PD") as well
as a loss given default (“LGD"). The 12-months and lifetime PDs
represent the probability of default occurring over the next 12
months and the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively.
The EAD represents the expected balance at default, taking into
account the repayment of principal and interest from the reporting
date to the default event together with any expected drawdowns
of committed facilities. The LGD represents expected losses on the
EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other
attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is
expected to be realised and the time value of money.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when:
(1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group
in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)
(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

4. FEEFHEE ()

413 €@ T B ()
(i) eHEEREEE (B)

In making this reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. In
particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

e  failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e  existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the
Group.

For loan commitments, the date of initial recognition for the
purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to be the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition of a loan commitment, the Group considers
changes in the risk of default occurring on the loan to which the
loan commitment relates.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEFHEHEOR ()

(CONTINUED)
4.13 Financial instruments (Continued) 413 €@ T B (&)
(iii) Financial liabilities (i) eMERE

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value
and financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial liability
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria are met: (i)
the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities
or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii)
the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii)
the financial liability contains an embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise, except for the gains and losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive income with
no subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or loss.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.
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BHERRESEBRA

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)
(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade payables,
borrowings, corporate bonds and other financial liabilities issued
by the Group are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designated as at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount of the
loss allowance, being the ECL provision measured in accordance
with principles of the accounting policy set out in 4.13(ii); and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the principles of HKFRS
15.
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413 €@ T A (/)
(i) *MEE (8)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

BBERTIRNEMEE
RESHERATRN R A E (BHEE
MR EE  RREFRAEEE
THEMESRAE) EREABERF
KRR NG E - BRANSRX
T M) 25 1R R R

RIEHER B B MR EHIBIET ELR
Yo 25 Bk S 1R X it ) 25 1R AU FERR)

BERERRE
ERNEZZRAECREEXEHE

ER B SH RS DA R B B AR D BL A
BRARF B AT - BERH =X
ARNEREELRBENTE FHZE
FREYEAG B R B RERE IR (A SRR3R

T WA KA F K o

RATEH

AR RIEITEIRA T AR P15 RIRH
PRERBITRACHK -
ji%r1% =] /1/J

HEEREHNTIFREEDARFEA
SNEESRE LAHERB ABRRE
TERBEARBEARIBER TERF] 5K
BRI EFRE SR RMEX A
Ko HAKEELNIWIEEEREZA
FEF AR KBENABERELD
NP RAFERE LM BERENE
BEENR DA T IARER - ¥4 #
RE AREERATESERRETE
MBEREAD : (VEiERESTE A
RIR A3 T T BOR R AIGT =/
TEEEEEERE k() VFERS
%M@m_)ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
FE 155 A R BIRER R K5t -



4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)
(vi) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a creditor
to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity instruments
issued are the consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability or part thereof extinguished and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss for the year.

(viii) Write-off policy
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off either
partially or in full to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off
are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

4.14 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average basis, and in the case of work-in-progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less any applicable selling expense and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.15

4.16

4.17

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances, demand
deposits with banks, and short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in values.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the allocation
of purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination. They are initially measured at fair value at the date of
acquisition and subsequently measured at the higher of the amount that
would be recognised in a comparable provision as described above and
the amount initially recognised less any accumulated amortisation, if
appropriate.

4. FEEFHEE ()
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.18 Income tax 4.18 FRB8 %

4. FEEFHEE ()

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted
for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes
and is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner in which
the carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate
tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment
property is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”.
Unless the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these
investment properties are measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of these investment properties at their carrying amounts
at the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or when they relate
to items recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.18 Income tax (Continued)
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if, and
only if,

(a

the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in net
if, and only if,

(a

the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

4.19 Revenue recognition

0)

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

0)

Revenue from contract with customers (Continued)

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period between
the payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
4.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Revenue from contract with customers (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Service fees and commission income
Service fees and commission income is generally recognised
when the corresponding service is provided.

Service fees and commission income are recognised at a
point in time when the relevant services such as broking
services, provided to the customers and there is no unfulfilling
performance obligation after services rendering. Except for
a few services, such as custody account services, of which
revenue is recognised over time so as to depict the pattern of
delivery of services.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Group
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate. When a loan commitment is not expected to
result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are
recognised.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
as when the control of the goods has been transferred to the
customer and there is no unfulfilling performance obligation
after the acceptance of the goods.

(ii) Revenue from other sources

(@)

Interest income

Interest income arising from the use of entity assets by
others is recognised in profit or loss based on the duration
and the effective interest rate. Interest income includes the
amortisation of any discount or premium or other differences
between the initial carrying amount of an interest bearing
instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an
effective interest rate basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(ii) Revenue from other sources (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(©

Interest income (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of financial assets and liabilities and of
allocating the interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial instrument. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
call and similar options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees and interests paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all
other premiums or discounts.

Interest on the impaired financial assets is recognised using
the rate of interest used to discount future cash flows
("unwinding of discount”) for the purpose of measuring the
related impairment loss.

Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
straight-line method over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income
Dividend is recognised when the right to receive the dividend
is established.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.20 Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans and defined benefit pension plans.

)

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contribution.

The contributions recognised in respect of defined contribution
plans are expensed as they fall due. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as they are normally
of a short-term nature.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees in Hong Kong who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government (the “Scheme”). These subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The Scheme is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees
and the Group has no further obligations for the actual pension
payments or other post-retirement benefits beyond the employer
contributions. Contributions under the Scheme are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the PRC.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.20 Retirement benefits (Continued)

0)

(i)

Defined benefit pension plans (Continued)

Defined benefit pension plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position in respect of defined pension plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected
unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflow using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms to maturity approximating to terms of the
related pension obligation. In countries where there is no deep
market in such bonds, the market rates on government bonds are
used.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than
termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period
in which the employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related services.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.21

4.22

4.23

Share-based employee compensation
The Group operates equity-settled share-based compensation plans for
remuneration of its employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any share-
based compensation are measured at their fair values. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the share options awarded. Their
value is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.

Upon exercise of share options, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve and the proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs up to the nominal value of the share
issued are reallocated to share capital with any excess being recorded as
share premium. When the share options are lapsed, forfeited or still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period of time
to be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are complete. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other than the
currency of the primary economic environment in which they operate
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at the rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.23 Foreign currency (Continued)

4. FEEFHEE ()

4.23 SpE ()

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case,
the exchange differences are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity as exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group
entities’ separate financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net investment in the foreign
operation concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences
recognised in the exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the exchange
reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.24 Share capital and share premium

4. FEEFHEE ()
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Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is determined using
the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the issuance of share
over the par value. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from the share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent that they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to owners of the Company until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued any consideration
received net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs
and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to
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4.25 Segment reporting 425 D ERE

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions about resources allocation
to the Group's business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business components in the
internal financial information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major lines of business.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments: (a)
manufacturing and distribution of watches and timepieces; (b) property
investments; and (c) banking and financial businesses.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of
the product and service lines requires different resources as well as
marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers, if any, are carried out
at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment results
under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs.

Segment assets include all assets but interests in associates, interests in
joint ventures, and certain trading portfolio investments. In addition,
corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not allocated to a segment, which
primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.25 Segment reporting (Continued)
Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating segment and
are not allocated to a segment. These include borrowings and due to a
shareholder.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable segments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Such
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below:

Impairment assessment of goodwill

The Group tests on an annual basis whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 4.6. The
recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations or fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD"), whichever
is higher. The value-in-use calculations require the use of judgement and
estimates of the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs, the
timeframe for the cash flows forecast and the suitable discount rates in
order to calculate the present value. In the process of estimating expected
future cash flows management makes assumptions about future revenues
and profits. These assumptions relate to future events and circumstances.
The actual results may vary and may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of goodwill within the next financial year. Determining the
appropriate discount rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment for
market risk and for asset specific risk factors. Calculation of FVLCD may involve
the selection of valuation model, adoption of key assumption, and input
data, which are subject to management judgement. Details in impairment
assessment are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for obsolete and slow-
moving inventories, the Group would evaluate ageing analysis of inventories
and compare the carrying value of inventories to their respective estimated
net realisable value. The assessment of the provision involves management
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying
value of inventories and provision charge/write-back in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates and amortises its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets with definite useful lives using straight-line method over their
respective estimated useful lives, starting from the date on which the assets
are put into productive use, in accordance with accounting policy stated in
notes 4.9 and 4.12. The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of
the period that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of these assets.

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables on a forward-looking basis. The provision matrix is
determined based on the Group’s historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade and other receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Other receivables
is considered 12-months expected credit losses. In making the judgement,
management considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information such as actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of customers, actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business and customers’ financial position. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed by the Group’s management.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating
conditions specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of non-financial
assets. Where an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset shall be determined. The recoverable amount is determined based on
value-in-use calculation or fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD"). The
calculations of value-in-use require the use of judgement and estimates of the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs, the timeframe for the cash
flows forecast and the suitable discount rates in order to calculate the present
value. In the process of estimating expected future cash flows management
makes assumptions about future revenues and profits. These assumptions
relate to future events and circumstances. The actual results may vary and
may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of goodwill within
the next financial year. Determining the appropriate discount rate involves
estimating the appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific
risk factors. Calculation of FVLCD may involves the selection of valuation
model, adoption of key assumption, and input data, which are subject to
management judgement.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, Switzerland, United
Kingdom, Liechtenstein and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income taxes and the timing of
the payments of related taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Warranty provision

Warrant provision is made for expenditure associated with future variable
services and repair cost related to warranty claims. The management makes
an assessment of the future costs related to this work by using the proportion
of actual tasks related to warranty work as the basis for the calculation. The
assessment of provision involves management judgement and estimates.
When the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value of warrant provision
and provision charge/write-back in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.
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BHERRESEBRA

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Estimation of defined benefit obligations

The Group operates three defined benefit plans. Pension costs for defined
benefit plans are assessed using the projected unit credit method in
accordance with HKAS 19, Employee Benefits. Under this method, the cost
of providing pensions is charged to the profit or loss in accordance with
the advice of the actuaries who carry out a full valuation of the plans. The
pension obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates determined by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period based on government agency or high quality
corporate bonds with currency and term similar to the estimated term of
benefit obligations. All actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full, in the
year in which they occur, in other comprehensive income.

Management appointed actuaries to carry out a full valuation of these pension
plans to determine the pension obligations that are required to be disclosed
and accounted for in the accounts in accordance with the requirements of
HKFRSs.

The actuaries use assumptions and estimates in determining the fair value
of the defined benefit plans and evaluate and update these assumptions on
an annual basis. Judgement is required to determine the principal actuarial
assumptions to determine the present value of defined benefit obligations and
service costs. Changes to the principal actuarial assumptions can significantly
affect the present value of plan obligations and service costs in future periods.

Valuation adjustments on credit positions

Various factors can influence the expected credit loss allowances for credit
positions. Management considers factors such as external rating and days
past due to determine the HKFRS 9 staging allocation. Management further
estimates the exposure at default, probability of default as well as loss given
default to calculate the expected credit losses allowance.

Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for imminent threats if in the opinion of
the responsible experts the probability that losses will occur is greater than
the probability that they will not occur and if their amount can be reliably
estimated. In judging whether the creation of a provision and its amount are
reasonable, the best-possible estimates and assumptions as at the end of
reporting periods are applied. If necessary, these will be adjusted to reflect
new knowledge and circumstances at a later date. New knowledge may have
a significant effect to profit or loss.

As part of the normal business activities of banking business, the Group is
exposed to a wide range of legal risks. These include in particular risks relating
to litigation. The Group recognises provisions for such litigation risks if the
Group’s management and its legal advisors are of the opinion that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount. The amount of the provisions and their timing
are by their nature subject to uncertainty. However, these uncertainties are
evaluated as being low since it was possible to reliably estimate the individual
amounts and the majority of the recognised provisions will probably become
due within one year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Research and development costs

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4.12, costs
associated with research activities are expensed in profit or loss as they are
incurred, while costs that are directly attributable to development activities
are recognised as intangible assets provided they meet all the requirements
as set out in note 4.12. This requires the management to make judgements
to distinguish the research phase and development phase of the projects
being undertaken. Research is original and planned investigation undertaken
with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and
understanding. Development is the application of research, findings or other
knowledge to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved materials devices, products, processes, systems or services before
the start of commercial production or use. Determining the amounts to be
expensed in profit or loss or to be capitalised required management to make
judgement, and assumptions regarding the expected progress and outcome of
the research and development activities the future expected cash generation
of the assets, discount rates to be applied, and also the expected period of,
probable future economic benefits. Because of the nature of the Group’s
research and development activities the criteria for the recognition of such
costs as an asset are generally not met until late in the development stage of
the projects. Hence research costs are generally recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

Right-of-use assets

The Group uses its incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they
need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.

The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

Going concern assumption
As mentioned in note 3.3, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis as of 31 December 2019.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Going concern assumption (Continued)

The directors of the Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available sources of financing
in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period and to meet its financial obligations, as and when
they fall due. Taking into account of the factors as mentioned in note 3.3, the
directors of the Company opined that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations that will
be due within next twelve months from 31 December 2019.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern, adjustment
would have to be made to write down the carrying value of the Group’s assets
to their net realisable amounts, and to provide for further liabilities that might
arise. The effect of these potential adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group’s financial statements
require measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value. The fair value
measurement of the Group’s financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in
determining fair value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation technique utilised
are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

—  Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;
—  Level 2: observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level

1; and

—  Level 3: unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not
available.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the lowest level
of the inputs used that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement
of the item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.

The Group measures the following items at fair value:

Due from banks — precious metals (note 17)
- Trading portfolio investments (note 18)

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (note
19)

- Derivative financial assets (note 20)

- Derivative financial liabilities (note 20)

Investment properties (note 27)

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value measurement of the
items above, please refer to the respective notes.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker is identified as executive directors. The
executive directors have identified the Group’s product and service lines as
operating segments as follows:

(@  manufacturing and distribution of watches and timepieces;

(b) property investments; and

(c)  banking and financial businesses.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions are made on
the basis of adjusted segment operating results.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2019

6. HEFR (M)
—E-hEF

Banking and
financial
businesses
BITR
SRER
HK$°000
TER

Watches and
timepieces

EERER

Property

investments Unallocated Total

Bt Em
HK$'000
TR

RAE EH
HK$'000 HK$000
TR TR

NERE
HK$'000
TR

Segment revenue; FERA
Net interest income from banking business $R17 %% 2 F 8 A
ekt - - 183,462 - 183,462

Net service fees and commission income ~ $R{1T¥# 2 FRIEE K

from banking business i A ONEE] - - 212,561 - 212,561
Trading income from banking business ROIEB 2R HWA - - 57,230 - 57,230
Service fees and commission income from £ BEH 2 RIEE K

financial business i EALON - - 3,195 - 3,195
Interest income from financial business & B E#& 2 A 8K A - - 165 - 165
Sales of goods from non-banking and FRTREREHL

financial businesses BEmHERA 2,249,737 - - - 2,249,737
Rental income from non-banking and FROTREBERZ

financial businesses AL ON - 9,915 - - 9,915
Total revenue -1 ON 2,249,737 9,915 456,613 - 2,716,265
Segment results PEEE 106,163 8,792 198,256 - 313,211
Unallocated corporate income and Ol WNEILON

expenses, net R HFE - - - (91,586) (91,586)
Share of loss of joint ventures EheatEER - - = (1,343) (1,343)
Share of profit of associates FE 1t = A Al - - - 17,675 17,675
Finance costs HBER (29,760) - (1,045) (64,515) (95,320)
Profit before income tax BR S B ADE A 76,403 8,792 197,211 (139,769) 142,637
Income tax expense FrefiAY (45,680) (818) (24,330) (628) (71,456)
Profit for the year AERRA 30,723 7,974 172,881 (140,397) 71,181
Segment assets STEEE 4,991,807 182,932 13,631,441 - 18,806,180
Unallocated corporate assets: AOBEAREE
Interests in joint ventures Frih e e b EER - - - 1,096 1,096
Interests in associates iR E A R - - - 115,486 115,486
Trading portfolio investments RHEEEE - - - 37,190 37,190
Financial assets at fair value through other ZAFEFH AEMZE

comprehensive income WAz eREE - - - 417,256 417,256
Cash and deposits RekER - - - 58,998 58,998
Other unallocated corporate assets HibRARAAEE - - - 160,875 160,875
Consolidated total assets RRBEE 4,991,807 182,932 13,631,441 790,901 19,597,081




6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. HHER(#)

2019 (Continued) —E-hF (&)
Banking and
Watches and Property financial
timepieces investments businesses Unallocated Total
BHER BITR
Wt E M NERE SRER ROE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHER THER THEx TER TER
Segment liabilities FEAE 1,145,167 28,140 12,303,747 - 13,477,054
Unallocated corporate liabilities: AAEARIARE:
Borrowings B - - - 1,329,115 1,329,115
Amount due to a shareholder ERN—ERRZFE - - - 12,000 12,000
Lease liabilities MEAE - - - 37,001 37,001
Other unallocated corporate liabilities HEthRAEARBE - - - 81,022 81,022
Consolidated total liabilities REBAR 1,145,167 28,140 12,303,747 1,459,138 14,936,192
Other segment information HitvpBER
Interest income and other interest income .2 A R E 5 &
LiON 2,987 549 202 519 4,257
Expected credit losses on trade receivables fEMRER A E
B 7,340 - - - 7,340
Reversal of expected credit losses on due BB RSB TREP
from banks and customers HERHEEERE - - (1,812) - (1,812)
Reversal of provision for litigation risks, net % [B1  5AE K B 5
FE - - (394) = (394)
Provision for inventories FEEE 24,263 - - 3,265 27,528
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 136,503 - 19,719 18,644 174,866
Additions to non-current assets NEFNBEE 128,948 - 47,525 - 176,473
Net surplus on revaluation of investment ~ R ENEE (2 BH
properties B - (4,047) - - (4,047)
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6. HEFR (M)
—E-N\F

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2018

Watches and
timepieces

HK$'000
A7

Property
investments

nERE
HK$'000
T

Banking and
financial
businesses
BITR
e
HK$'000
T

Unallocated

KR
HK$'000
F87

HK$'00
T

Segment revenue: FERA
Net interest income from banking business $R1TE7% 2 F 8 A F 48 - - 180,831 - 180,831
Net service fees and commission income ~ RITEXK 2 REE

from banking business PR INES: - - 236,361 - 236,361
Trading income from banking business BOIEB 2 HWA - - 63,172 - 63,172
Service fees and commission income from £ REXK 2 R E

financial business RASHKA - - 3,342 = 3,342
Interest income from financial business & B EB 2 F EWA - - 193 - 193
Sales of goods from non-banking and FRTRERMER

financial businesses ZEmEERA 2,444,364 - - - 2,444,364
Rental income from non-banking and FROTREBER

financial businesses ZHEBWA - 9,586 = = 9,586
Total revenue FY N 2,444,364 9,586 483,899 - 2,937,849
Segment results PEEE 258,131 3,314 192,525 = 453,970
Unallocated corporate income and 7l WG ON

expenses, net R¥EEFE - - - (46,739) (46,739)
Share of loss of joint ventures EheatEEE - - = (2,678) (2,678)
Share of profit of associates e & R A& A - - - 8,387 8,387
Finance costs HBER (14,786) - (131) (50,911) (65,828)
Profit before income tax R G B ALE A 243,345 3314 192,394 (91,941) 347,112
Income tax expense TR X (77,728) (414) (27,868) 346 (105,664)
Profit for the year AEFE &R 165,617 2,900 164,526 (91,595) 241,448
Segment assets STHEE 5,191,326 179,523 13,957,275 - 19,328,124
Unallocated corporate assets: APBEAREE :
Interests in joint ventures FiibaatEEs - - - 2,439 2,439
Interests in associates it R el s - - - 102,919 102,919
Trading portfolio investments RHEERE - - - 48,945 48,945
Financial assets at fair value through other ZAFEFAEMZE

comprehensive income WAZEHEE - - = 621,489 621,489
Cash and deposits Be REN - - - 48,286 48,286
Other unallocated corporate assets ERAEARBE - - - 106,027 106,027
Consolidated total assets REMEE 5,191,326 179,523 13,957,275 930,105 20,258,229




6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2018 (Continued)

6. rEER (4)
—E2-N\F(#)

Banking and
Watches and Property financial
timepieces ENIENS businesses Unallocated
kK BITR
MERE e ADE 5
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00
T THT THT THT T
Segment liabilities PEEE 1,078,126 25,343 12,723,651 = 13,827,120
Unallocated corporate liabilities: AAEARARE:
Corporate bonds NGINE - - - 760,244 760,244
Borrowings BE - - - 738,299 738,299
Amount due to a shareholder B —BRR 2 HE - - - 73,000 73,000
Other unallocated corporate liabilities Hie kDR AR AR - - - 50,075 50,075
Consolidated total liabilities REBAR 1,078,126 25,343 12,723,651 1,621,618 15,448,738
Other segment information HitnpBER
Interest income and other interest income | 8UA K& F EUA 3,910 2 231 1,505 5,648
Expected credit losses on trade receivables fEWREEREBHEEEE 4,381 - - - 4,381
Expected credit losses on due from banks ~ EYSE1T R EF
and customers HEEHREESR - = 3,256 = 3,256
Reversal of provision for litigation risks, net 12 57 #A i &5 % 48 - - (320) = (320)
Provision for inventories FERE 11,050 - - - 11,050
Reversal of provision for inventories BB ERE (7,301) - - - (7,301)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 111,521 - 15,597 1,795 128,913
Additions to non-current assets AEFRBEE 150,480 = 43,566 100 194,146
Net deficit on revaluation of investment AW EE(h
properties LB HNFE - 4,066 - - 4,066

Unallocated corporate income and expenses mainly comprised dividend
income from trading portfolio investments and financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, gain or loss on fair value
changes in trading portfolio investments, impairment of yacht and other
corporate income and expenses of the Group’s headquarter which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating segment.
Other corporate expenses mainly included employee costs and directors’
remuneration.

AAERFABPARZEEIRERERARZEE
REREAFEFARMCEARAZEREE
ZBEBWA - XHEERERNTEESH 2K
18 - ERERELRM N ERFE BN MRS
DEEBEE 2 N EBE AR E AR BWA R
B B AR T EEEREERARERH
B o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
The Group's revenues from external customers and its non-current assets
(other than financial assets and deferred tax assets) are divided into the
following geographical areas:

6. SrEEF(H)
AEBERENAES ZMARIFERBAE (S8
AERBEHAZERIN BAT RIS

Revenue froin
external customers

Non-current assets

REPREEFWRA FREBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F —E-hEF —N\&F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT T T
Hong Kong BB 105,007 142,281 232,366 177,912
PRC es 1,735,436 1,818,464 1,377,436 1,397,045
Switzerland W+ 28,311 22,942 445,173 460,505
United Kingdom HEH 78,959 103,060 19,361 7,928
Liechtenstein Pz B A% 453,253 480,364 488,356 448,423
Others Hh 315,299 370,738 1,449 2,492
2,716,265 2,937,849 2,564,141 2,494,305

The geographical location of revenues from watches and timepieces and

BRI R E M A R ERE 5 BB AR

property investments segment are based on the location of customers, and
the geographical location of revenues from banking and financial businesses
segment are based on the location of operations of the CGUs. For goodwill HMERETLEENRSESLBMNRKREMIE A
and intangible assets, the geographical location is based on the areas of B HiIEmB EEH R IAEETRTEH
operation of CGUs. The geographical location of other non-current assets is BEBME o

based on the physical location of the assets.

AR PHTEH A2 - MIRTT R ERES D B
WA AR & EE A B S FTAEM RAE -

The Group has a large number of customers and there is no significant revenue
that is more than 10% of the Group’s revenue derived from specific external
customers for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

AEEEFPRZ HE_T-NAEFR-F-N
F+-A=T—ALFE BECAKEEFE
INREFEAEBRABB10% 2 ERKA o



REVENUE 7. WA

The Group is principally engaging in manufacturing and distribution of AEEFEREERLRFAERBERSH
watches and timepieces, property investments and banking and financial VISR B LA RIRIT RS BT ©
businesses.
For banking and financial businesses, revenue mainly comprises net interest HBTREREBMS - WAZZREMNER
income, net service fees and commission income and trading income (notes AT REERBASBRAFEUARZTZHMA
7(a), 7(b), 7(c) and 7(d)). For non-banking and financial businesses, revenue (MF3E7(@) ~ 7(b) * 7(c) . 7(d)) ° BLIERITR S A
mainly represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowance for ¥BME  WAZZENRRERESINEG
returns and trade discounts and rental income received and receivables. (note HEmEEFEARBIR R ERHE WA (3
7(e)). 7(e)) °
Revenue recognised during the year is as follows: FAERZWALT :
(a) Net interest income from banking business (a) SBITEB2ZRE WA FE
2019 2018
—E-hE ZE—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T
Interest income from banking business THEBEBREEZRITERZ
arising from: FEWA :
Interest income — due from banks FIE WA — FEUZER 1T FIR 151,973 161,518
Interest income — due from clients FEBWA — B E PRI 26,840 29,512
Interest income from trading portfolio investments RH5HEEHREF S WA 387 72
Interest income from mortgage loans R|ERZFEWA 15,824 8,026
Interest income from money market papers BEEMSEE 2T EWMA 878 8,827
Interest income from other financial assets RS AR BR 2 Ho A
at amortised cost SRVEE 2T BUA 24,955 12,973
Negative interest (expense)/income on due to clients EREPRIEZ AR
(R0 WA (36) 720
220,821 221,648
Interest expenses from banking business THSEREE ZRITER
arising from: ZRERX :
Interest expense on due to banks FERERITRIB 2 K B R X2 (33,268) (38,403)
Interest expense on due to clients FEAS & PR IE 2 F 2R 2 (3,551) (564)
Interest expense for issued debt instruments BEETEBIAZANEMRX (352) (1,645)
Negative interest income on due from FEBGERITREFRIEZ
banks and clients B FEWA (188) (205)
(37,359)_ ________ ( %9,?_1_7_)_
Net interest income from banking business RITEKR 2R EWAFE 183,462 180,831
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7. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 7. WA (#)
(b) Net service fees and commission income from banking (b) RITEBZRBEERAEWAFHE
business
2019 2018
—g-nE —FT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&T
Service fee and commission income from banking TFHIREREL ZBITES
business arising from: ZRBEERFBERA :
Commission income from loans EFEHASBA 6,935 4,049
Brokerage fees SR 30,654 37,107
Custody account fees AERPE 26,276 27,368
Commission on investment advice and asset KREERMEEEERS
management 99,256 105,612
Commission income from service fees % & B BA 59,006 92,890
Commission income from fiduciary fees ErEBAEKA 455 554
Commission income from retrocession #ARAS WA 5,758 4,385
Other commission income H AL WA 52,287 53,649
280,627 325,614
Service fees and commission expenses RITEB 2 RBERAERAX
from banking business (68,066) (89,253)
Net service fees and commission income RITEBZREER
from banking business HE WA T 212,561 236,361

() RITEB2XZBA

() Trading income from banking business

2019 PAONES]

—E-nE -—T)\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

T T

Debt instruments BT A (113) (815)
Securities FH 81 5
Forex and precious metals INERE & B 56,527 62,715
Funds e 735 1,267
Trading income from banking business IRITEBZRXZ WA 57,230 63,172

(d) Revenue from financial business

(d) E@EB WA

2019 2018

—B-hnF ZFT-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Service fees and commission income RSB KA WA 3,195 3,342
Interest income B UL A 165 193

SEEK WA 3,360 3,535

Revenue from financial business




7. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 7. WA (%)

(e) Revenue from non-banking and financial businesses (e) FBITRESAMEK ZIWA
2019 2018
—2-nE —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH FBT
Sales of goods BmiHE 2,249,737 2,444,364
Rental income e A 9,915 9,586

Revenue from non-banking business and financial TR ERMER 2 WA
businesses 2,259,652 2,453,950

8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET GAINS OR 8. it e A Bz H: e Wit i 5% Js 48 35 2
LOSSES

2019 2018
=EB-hEFE ZZET-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Gain on fair value changes in trading portfolio RHEEHREN N TEE
investments, net Wz F 58 20,368 15,541
Fair value loss on early redemption of the convertible bonds 2% & B A] #2 i (& %
ZNFEEE = (978)
Net surplus/(deficits) on revaluation of investment properties &Y% &l 2 B
/(B4 5 4,047 (4,066)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment LEMZE - BERZE
2 e (BR) 159 (1,589)
Bank and other interest income from non-banking business ~ FFER1TER 2 B1T K
H A B UA 4,257 5,648
Dividend income from trading portfolio investments RPEERENREIA 1,061 1,097
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through %A &+ A E b 2 E WA
other comprehensive income ZEMEEZKREMA 12,263 11,316
Sales of scrap materials RERL G & 152 161
Other operating income Hih &g A 19,222 8,281
Government subsidies (note (a)) BT B & (M FE @) 20,936 40,701
Reversal of provision for litigation risks o7 A B B2 3 s 43¢ [ 394 320
Reversal of/(provision of) expected credit losses for due from — FEUWSRETT M B RIBTEHEE EIE
banks and clients B[R (BE) 1,812 (3,256)
Exchange gains, net HNEE U 25 5 8 12,462 =
Other sundry income, net HihFIEW A F5E 7,260 6,310
104,393 79,486
Note: MfsE -
(@)  Government subsidies mainly comprised of unconditional subsidies received for (@) B2 TIEZEoRcWEREmIAERXE
subsidising the Group’s business. B2 E -
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2 1 6 Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited

FINANCE COSTS FROM NON-BANKING

BHERRESEBRA

9. FEMITHEBZMBEM

BUSINESS

2019 2018
—E-h#F —N\&E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHIT
Interest charged on corporate bonds and convertible bond NRIEHFRATBERESNEAX 18,605 34,454

Interest charged on bank borrowings, bank overdrafts RITIEE - RITEX
and other borrowings REABEHF SR 69,784 29,510
Margin loan interests RBESERAE 2,298 1,864
Interest on lease liabilities fﬁ%%ffﬂ,u 4,633 —
95,320 65,828

10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

10. B B 13 Bt wir ¥z A1

BRETERATEFN DK, GEA) T31& 2

RIRIER

2019 PAONES]
—E-hE ZZT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTEx FAT

Cost of inventories recognised as expense, including: BRAERYNEFEERAN B3 : 1,004,030 1,022,568
— Reversal of provision for inventories — T ERE - (7,301)
— Provision for inventories —GFEEE 27,528 11,050
Depreciation and amortisation e RHEEE 174,866 128,913
— Depreciation for owned assets (note (a)) —BHREEWNE (K@) 117,716 126,255
— Depreciation for right-of-use assets (note (a) and (c)) —(EREEENE () & (©) 55,434 -
— Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments (note (b)) — TR 33 & IR 8 (F 5 (b)) - 864
— Amortisation of intangible assets (note (b)) — B EEE (HEDb) 1,716 1,794
Lease payments under operating leases in respect of: ATREEHEER T 2 HEFNIEA
— Land and buildings — T i RIEF - 54,333
Short term lease expenses HHRERX 16,892 =
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN B & 4,800 4,600
Gross rental income He W AR (9,915) (9,586)
Less: direct operating expenses W ERESERY 2,189 2,309
Net rental income He WA FEE (7,726) (7,277)
Research and development expenses (note (b)) T 75 K B 2% A =2 (FfT 3 (b)) 39,001 55,267
Expected credit losses on other assets Hih BEEERAEEEE 2,167 =
Expected credit losses on trade receivables FEWBR RIEHAE B 1R 7,340 4,381
Advertising expenses B 212,320 222,790

Notes: BIaE -

(@) Depreciation expense of HK$26,206,000 (2018: HK$19,653,000) has (@) & ¥ 126,206,000/ (ZF— )\ F:

19,653,000/ L) B At AERITR SR EH
ZSHER A ~ 61,029,000/ T (=& — \&F :
53,213,000/ 7T) st ASHE R D HE AU R
85,915,000 770 (== —/\4F : 53,389,000/5 1)
FFATTEER o

been included in cost of sales from non-banking and financial businesses,
HK$61,029,000 (2018: HK$53,213,000) in selling and distribution expenses and
HK$85,915,000 (2018: HK$53,389,000) in administrative expenses.

(b)  Amortisation expenses and research and development expenses had been (b) HERTUARARARABERZEFAITHRER -

included in the administrative expenses.



10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10. B e 459 B¢ wi i A1 (48)

Notes: (Continued) MizE - (%)

(c)  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative effect approach and (0 AEBVRERRGHELZERAEBNBRE
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets ERIFE 16K ERAER=_Z—NF—HA—HK
relating to leases which were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS FRER NEREHEGHENCRAEESEE -
17. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as ML EAEEE ZAIRBEE B ERFE17
lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of FAORRGERE - RZT—-—hLhFE—H—B1
the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases REREREEER  AEEEREEARRE
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the comparative RIEAEEENE  UREBEERZARLEH
information has not been restated. Details of the initial implementation of HKFRS ERMHAEGEIEEARSRAIMECE - RE
16 are set out in note 2(a). 7% EBRER W EST - YRR BB

TERELERIE 16 M FHBH N 20)
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. B i B %

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, Hong Kong profit tax has HEZZ-NEFER-Z—\F+=-A=+—H

been provided for certain subsidiaries within the Group and is calculated at IEFE  AEEERETHEBRRHEEEFE

16.5% on the estimated assessable profits (2018: 16.5%). The subsidiaries T - WIRAFT EARBUEH16.5% (ZF—N\

established in the PRC are subject to income taxes at tax rates ranging F:16.5%) 5 E o« KRB 2 B A RIZAR

between 15% and 25% (2018: 15% and 25%). Overseas tax is calculated at NF15% ZE25% (ZF— \F : 15% F25%)

the rates applicable in the respective jurisdictions. TS BEGT o BINRIE IR RDE#E = B

ABLRE -

The Group is also subject to PRC withholding tax at the rate of 5% or 10% ZNER B IRt HR R B SR ER 2 AR B R 5% 3K
(2018: 5% or 10%) in respect of its PRC sourced income earned, including 10% (= Z — )\4F : 5% 3k 10% ) #4132 7 B FE 41
rental income from properties in the PRC and dividend income derived from B BHNPEERETRAYECHSWARE
PRC incorporated company. 4 AR BEMAL AR ZBREWA o
2019 2018
—B-nEFE ZT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER T
Current tax for the year FREEATLIE
Hong Kong B 669 665
PRC T 45,149 78,140
Liechtenstein I = 25,027 27,891
Switzerland Wt 1,122 289
Deferred tax for the year (note 39) FRIRERIE (H5E39) (511) (1,321)
Total income tax expense FriS i 48 58 71,456 105,664

—T—NEFHR 2019 Annual Report 2] 7



Al 8 Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited S EZRKBEEEHRA

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11. P BibA 32 (%)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit at (@R RTE 2 FriSH S B & =15 F 2 YR
applicable tax rates:

2019 2018
—E—hEF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before income tax Rk BT 15 75 AT 4 A 142,637 347,112
Tax on profit before income tax, calculated at the rates R P15 %5 Al A 2 B 18 (1R ¥R 46 78
applicable to the tax jurisdictions concerned MIBEANERERBER ZHEAHE) 36,473 90,526
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBIMA Z G E (8,733) (25,657)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T—HD MASZOB G E 7,094 5,968
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIEEE BB E 36,622 34,827
Total income tax expense FriS i 2 48 58 71,456 105,664
12. DIVIDENDS 12. 8
12.1 Dividend attributable to the year 121 FREGRE
The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year EEZTEBERBE_Z—NFT+=H
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). =+ —HEFERNKRE(ZE—N\F:
/) o
12.2 Dividend attributable to the previous financial year, 122 FABERZIFAZ2BERBEERE
approved and paid during the year HERE

2019
—EB-NF

HK$°000
FERT

Final dividend in respect of previous financial year HBEMBRERE 2 REAKRE
(2018: HK6 cents) (ZF— )\ : §R6El) - 261,113




13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company are based on the following data:

Earnings EZR
Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the purpose

of calculating basic and diluted earnings per share

13. ® & H
D R A A A 5 R A R 5 B R T 4R 4
AT B

2019
—2-NF

2018
—E—-N\F
HK$'000
F&T

HK$"000
FET

TEEGRER K 8 &R TR
ZARE B N A

44,246 201,372

2019
—B-NF
Number of

shares

AONES]
—ET—N\F
Number of
EIES
gry 4=
‘000

T

g 4=
‘000
TR

Number of shares RZEE
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose ST ETRERB N FTRE

of calculating basic earnings per share 2 IN#E YRR 8K 4,351,889 4,351,370
Effect of dilutive potential shares: BERD 2 BEZE
— share options issued by the Company —RRFEITZRERG R - 2,249
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose T E T RETE BN TR

of calculating diluted earnings per share 2 hn#E YRR 8K 4,351,889 4,353,619

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

14.1 Employee benefit expense

14. @ B A B 2 (R EFH )

141 EERARX

2019
—EB-AF

AONES]
—E—N\F
HK$'000
T

HK$'000
FEx

Wages and salaries TERH® 668,256 669,441
Pension costs RIRE A 91,002 91,286
759,258 760,727

Employee costs, including directors’ emoluments of HK$92,791,000
(2018: HK$83,775,000) has been included in cost of sales from
non-banking and financial businesses, HK$255,167,000 (2018:
HK$285,027,000) in selling and distribution expenses and
HK$411,300,000 (2018: HK$391,925,000) in administrative expenses.

EEXA (BREESME) 92,791,000 BT

—T— )\ : 83,775,000/ 7T) E5t AFE
RIT RS BER 2 HEMA + 255,167,000
7T (Z =2 — )\ 4 : 285,027,000 7T) 2
T ASEE &5 855 X A & 411,300,000
7t (ZZ — )\ £ : 391,925,000 7T) 2 &
ATTBFA ©
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 14. 12 B 6 A b 32 (4% 3 i <) (4])

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)
14.2 Defined benefit pension plans

142 EFR AR ERGHE

2019 PAONES]
—E-hE —B)N\F

HK$'000 HK$’'000

Net defined benefit obligations

JERRAE A B AER R

Tz Fis
90,908 83,140

Net defined benefit obligations has been included in “other liabilities”
(see note 40) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The defined benefit pension plans are primarily arising from Eterna AG
Uhrenfabrik and its subsidiaries (together “Eterna Group”), Montres
Corum Sarl and its subsidiaries (together “Corum Group”) Bendura
Bank AG and its subsidiaries (“Bendura Group”), and also Ernest
Borel Group. The Group makes contributions to the defined benefit
pension plans that provide post-retirement benefits for employees
upon retirement. Under the schemes, the employees in Switzerland
and Liechtenstein are entitled to retirement benefits based on the plan
assets accumulated on attainment of the retirement age and a fixed
annual rate. Since there is potential down-side risk for the employer
to pay additional contributions in case the plan has a deficit, plans in
Switzerland and Liechtenstein are classified as defined benefit pension
plans.

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation on Eterna Group were carried out
at 31 December 2018 and 2019 by Patrick Bonadei and Victoria Steib a
member of the Swiss Association of Actuaries in Switzerland, using the
projected unit credit method.

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the
defined benefit obligations on Corum Group were carried out at 31
December 2018 and 2019 by Nicolas Colozier, a member of the Swiss
Association of Actuaries in Switzerland, using the projected unit credit
method.

ERBENEEFED T ARSHBHIRRAR
[EEE] (RHFE40)H/T

JE 28RN 18 FIFT 8] = Z 7K B Eterna AG
Uhrenfabrik & H @A 7 (57 [ A FEE
[ |) ~ Montres Corum Sarl X £ Kf & A 7
(R EEERE]) BHRTROEBERA
AIREWB AT ([EHEE]) A RMFOREK
8 - AREE R EEERNRSENGTEED
TR BlEERBRIREIRHERKERT -
BIEFE - T RIEZHTEEEAZR
RIREF - TR E R RN F iR R [E E F
KRR RFZFTEEEETE - AR — BT 3
HIRART  BEEESZNREIMER - BB
KRR  Bint KA HEETE D
HATRERNKREBAEE -

AFESEAEEEZRMBLRBEM
B % E 7R T & ER IR E T 8 I £ Swiss
Association of Actuaries Z & & Patrick
Bonadei }% Victoria Steib R =Z— \F & —
T-NFE+ZA=+—HBERAEASZA
BRJTVRHETT ©

EntEitiEE B LBERER
TE FAfE F B £ e Fm T Swiss Association of
Actuaries Z —fiZ & & Nicolas Colozier A —

2 N\R=E-NE+=A=+—BEM
R B8 i A BR 7R HEAT o



14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 14. BEHEAMH X (BFEEFEME) ()
DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

14.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued) 142 EEERARESBF 8 (&)

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the EMEEGEEE R BEUBEMER

defined benefit obligations on Bendura Group were carried out at 31 7E 7848 A F £ Jh Fa B 1= Swiss Association of

December 2019 and 2018 by AXA Pension Solutions AG, a member of Actuaries Z —{iZ & & AXA Pension Solutions

Swiss Association of Actuaries in Switzerland, using the projected unit AGRZZE—NEFEER=ZZ—N\F+=A

credit method. =+ —B{ERERBEM ARG EET -

(@) The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial (@) FTAGZEMBERARAEBE TR
position arising from the Group’s obligation in respect of its defined BRI EIEEMEEZSBNAT ¢

benefit plans is as follows:

2019 PAONES]

—E-h#E —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERT FHT

Present value of defined benefit obligations EFEAMEEIRE 509,891 478,397
Fair value of plan assets SEIEEZAFE (418,983) (395,257)

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligations F2BEF EEEL 2 B EF5E 90,908 83,140
(b) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations b) HE—ZFT-NFER=_ZFT-N\F+=A
for both the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as =+ AIEMEFEEEEEMNFER

follows: EREZFSHOT

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT T

At 1 January n—A—H 478,397 456,532

Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries BERKERBATZAE - 14,409

Current service costs IR 5 AR 75 B AN 30,321 29,242

Past service costs B RIS (4,140) 2,941

Interest cost V=N %N 4,077 3,085
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEBE () 17,254 (30,853)
Benefits paid EENEEY (36,110) (11,059)

Contribution by plan participants AT |28 E K 14,132 15,547
Exchange realignment PE 5 S 5,960 (1,447)

At 31 December R+—A=+—H 509,891 478,397
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

14.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued)

(0

(d)

ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

14. & B A B 32 (R 2 F ) (4])

142 EERRBRARSEFTE (&)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets for both the years (0

BE-_T-NAER=FT-N\Ft+=A
=T HLEFEAEEEAFER
s

2019 2018
—E-hF

—F-N\F
HK$"000 HK$°000
TR TR

At 1 January R—HA—H 395,257 362,209
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries FRWERNBARIZAE - 9,440
Interest income A B U A 118 64
Return on plan assets FrEIEE 2 B 21,086 2,172
Contributions by the employers fEEHRK 17,917 19,265
Contributions by plan participants AT &2 E K 14,124 15,546
Benefit paid B E R (36,110) (11,059)
Exchange realignment PE 3 3 & 6,591 (2,380)
At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—8 418,983 395,257
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of d) sZEEHRBAGFERGESZEBA

comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit plans are

as follows:

RAERZZFEMAT

2019 2018
—E-AF

—T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET

Service cost: AR 7% B A
Current service costs 35 BF AR 7% Ak AN 30,321 29,242
Past services costs B RIS R (4,140) 2,941
Net interest expense FEFZF58 3,959 3,021
Components of defined benefit costs recognised 7 F 2k B 18 th #E 2 2 TE 58

in profit or loss TR AN 2 41 K B 30,140 35,204
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit B EERERNETFE

obligations:
Return on plan assets FTEIEE 2 B 21,086 2,172
Actuarial (losses)/gains BE (FE) e (17,254) 30,853
Deferred tax arising on remeasurement of the net EFHTt 2 FBEMNEEFELZ

defined benefit obligations RIER TR (1,342) -
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in 7 £ fth 2 i U A R #E R

other comprehensive income, net TE FE AR B AN 2 4 R ED

HER 2,490 33,025

The defined benefit cost of HK$30,140,000 (2018:
HK$35,204,000) has been included in the administrative expenses.
The remeasurement of the net defined benefit obligation is

included in other comprehensive income.

7E BE 48 M BX 7K 30,140,000 7T (=&
— J\4& : 35,204,000/ 7T) E 5t A 1T
BREBA ZHECEENETFE
ST AEAMEEBA o



14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 14. BEHEAMH X (BFEEFEME) ()
DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

14.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued) 142 EEERARESBF 8 (&)
(e) The major categories of the fair value of the plan assets at the end (&) MBEHRFTEEEAFEZETES
of reporting period are as follows: BN
2019 2018
—2-nF ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx FAT
Equity instruments EART A 108,556 59,770
Debt instruments BERIA 141,967 90,284
Properties LES 97,030 77,295
Commodities instruments EmI A 3,187 4,274
Assets from reinsurance EMRBREE 8,508 144,474
Hedge funds HAHES 24,783 9,117
Cash Re 33,453 8,018
Other H A, 1,499 2,025
418,983 395,257
The fair values of the above equity and debt instruments are AR R B TA 2 AT ERE R
determined based on quoted market prices in active markets M52 i REETE - MPE B
whereas the fair value of properties, commodities instruments, TH SHRREERBAESZA
assets from reinsurance and hedge funds are not based on quoted FENIFRERM IS 2 M5 mES
market prices in active markets. 5E °
(f)  The principal assumption used for the purpose of the actuarial f FARBEEFHEENZEE/RENAT

valuations was as follows:

Discount rate(s) AL 3R = 0.15%-0.25% 0.8%-1.0%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase T8 Bi¥r & FHiR 0.5%-1.0% 0.5%-1.5%
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

14.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued)

(9)

Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit pension plans

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the
defined benefit obligations are discount rate and expected
salary rate of increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant.

. If the discount rate is 50 basis points higher/(lower),
the defined benefit obligations would decrease by
HK$31,850,000 (2018: HK$35,823,000)/increase by
HK$58,363,000 (2018: HK$44,759,000).

o If the expected salary rate of increase/(decreases) by 50
basis points, the defined benefit obligations would increase
by HK$17,474,000 (2018: HK$8,435,000)/decrease by
HK$2,543,000 (2018: HK$5,086,000).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative
of the actual change in the defined benefit obligations as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of
one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated
using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined
benefit liability recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

14. & B A B 32 (R 2 F ) (4])

142 EERRBRARSEFTE (&)

(9)

ERERASBHGE 2 GUREDIT

EEEEEAR 2 X ERERRA
BRERERHSHELE - T
BRI 17 T3 e T 1 BB R
TEE  RERANELABERA
BAREHTER -

o fHEAIRE EFH (FBE)501E
A FEEINETHERD
31,850,000 & (=& — )\
F : 35,823,000 7T) 1 0
58,363,000 7L (=& — \F :
44,759,000/ 7C) °

o (HIBHAEF S ILIREL R, Ok
D)SOEER - EEEMNEL
15 1 Hn 17,474,000 75 (= &
— \4E : 8,435,000387T) /FH 4
2,543,000 T (=ZF — )\ 4F :
5,086,000 7 7T) °

R GURE AT AT g I R R E RRAR
NMEEZEEREE L  RERETERR
ARE UL BAEE - R 2 BIE KA
BEEBHA -

SN - Bt B BURE ST 225 - R
BEHRERBNET2RERRAR
REBMARRIDERE - BIEREG SR
BARK F PR ERREM B EZE
HFEREMER -

B LR P DA BB 547 2 0
RBRERED -



15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 15. 75 3 < S i 214 PR P <
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

15.1 Directors’ emoluments 151 ESHE
Details of emoluments of the directors of the Company in connection EHERARA REMBARIZEEZAR
with the management of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries are AIEEMEe 2 BEEHIIAT

set out below:

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
Directors’ and benefits to pension
fees in kind scheme Total
e - FER B
Ex=wE REYEF T EIfAtR st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
TFE T FHET THET THET
2019 —E-NF
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung BEEBELE - 2,084 18 2,102
Mr. Shang Jianguang R EE - 14,077 96 14,173
Mr. Shi Tao* AERE* - 1,810 18 1,828
Mr. Lam Toi Man MR X SE4E - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Bi Bo 2R kA - 1,456 18 1,474
Ms. Sit Lai Hei ERE L - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Hon Hau Wong BEBEE - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Teguh Halim Teguh Halim 5 4 - 4,342 143 4,485
Independent non-executive  BIFHITES
directors
Mr. Fung Tze Wa HTFESLE 200 - - 200
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael ~— BBE(EIE L 150 - - 150
Mr. Zhang Bin SR 3 5 A 150 - - 150
Mr. Rudolf Heinrich Escher Rudolf Heinrich Escher 200 - - 200

GisE

700 28,059 347 29,106
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15. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 15. EFEME LS HEPLEMNE (4)
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

15.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 151 EEME (&)
Salaries,
allowances  Contributions
Directors’ and benefits to pension
fees in kind scheme Total
e ERh RiKe
5= -¥oken REYEAR &R #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
2018 —E—N\&
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung EERELE - 2,091 18 2,109
Mr. Shang Jianguang RN E - 13,722 83 13,805
Mr. Shi Tao* AT E* = 1,810 18 1,828
Mr. Lam Toi Man MR & - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Bi Bo 2REE - 1,456 18 1,474
Ms. Sit Lai Hei EERE At - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Hon Hau Wong BREESE - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Tao LiA FE LA = 141 2 143
Mr. Teguh Halim ** Teguh Halim 5% & ** = 2,964 21 2,985
Independent non-executive @ B FHITEE
directors
Mr. Fung Tze Wa BFELRE 200 - - 200
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael ~ BFMEEE L 150 - - 150
Mr. Zhang Bin ok X, 5% A 150 - - 150
Mr. Rudolf Heinrich Escher Rudolf Heinrich Escher 200 - - 200
Virtas
700 26,474 214 27,388
Notes: Bt 5 -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any HE_Z-NFT-_A=+—"HIEFE TE=E
remunerations during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil). EWEXRABEREC A S LH (ZT—N\F:
=) o
@ Save as disclosed in the above table, the Group also provided a quarter to @ RERFIBEEN  XEBITANTES
the executive director, Mr. Shi Tao at HK$10,000 monthly rental (2018: RAELERE—MBES - A %A10,000
HK$10,000). The carrying amount of the Group’s investment property which AL (ZF—/\F : 10,000 7T) - R =
was rented to the executive director as quarter as at 31 December 2019 was T-NEF+ZA=1t—HB HTFHTE
HK$27,400,000 (2018: HK$26,000,000). FSEEEZAEEREMEZREER
27,400,000 7T (=ZZF—/\ 4 : 26,000,000
BIT) °
A Mr. Tao Li has resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect A B EEEBEAARZHTES A=
from 23 January 2018. T-NE—A=-+=HRE®-
**  Mr. Teguh Halim has been appointed as an executive director of the **  Teguh Halim EEBEREBARRZANTE

Company with effect from 23 January 2018. E AT \F—A=-t+=HBER-



15. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 15. EHME K m RE P E N4 (8)
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

15.2 Five highest paid individuals 152 AEREMEAL
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year included FA -AEBRLEERFATEERE (=
two (2018: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are reflected T-N\F - MB)ES BFEHMEFBR
in the analysis presented in note 15.1. Details of the remuneration of the BRRN PR EE15.1 TSI 4T « FRAREKEER T
remaining three (2018: three) non-director, highest paid individuals of R (CE-N\F: ZR)FESEERFTA
the Group for the year are as follows: TS FBHT

2019 2018

—®-7F —TNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EZBREVER 12,013 12,294
Contribution to pension scheme RIREETEI K 862 824
12,875 13,118

The emoluments of non-director highest paid individuals were within HESFERFTALZHEN FUTRA :

following bands:

2019 AONES]

=B-AFE —ZT)N\F

No. of No. of

individuals individuals

A AEL

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T & 4,000,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 /& 7T & 4,500,000 78 7T 1 -

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 /& 7T 2 5,000,000 /8 7T 1 2

3 3

No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or the three NREBWERESTH =2 (2 \F:
(2018: three) highest paid employee(s) as an inducement to join or upon =R e EESNMEESINAZR
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2018: nil). IMARE B 2 486 - s /EABERwHE (=

T—N\F: &) o
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15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 15. 75 5 < Je v A% 45 PR I <2 (4

MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

15.3 Emoluments to members of senior management
The emoluments to members of senior management (excluding the
remunerations to directors which have been disclosed in note 15.1

153 SREEEREMNE
EREREKEME (TEFED R L XH
TSN EBEZEEME) N TIATRR

above) were within the following bands:

2019 2018

—FE-hE T N\F

No. of No. of

individuals individuals

A AEL

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T & 2,000,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 /& 7T & 4,500,000 78 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 /& 7T £ 5,000,000 /8 7T - 1
2 2

16. CASH AND DEPOSITS 16. Bl K AEak

2019 2018
—B-nEFE ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER T T
Cash and bank balances (note (a), (b) and (c)) Be RRITAEE (@) -~ (b) &2 () 329,377 395,444
Cash held on behalf of clients (note (d)) REFPHAEZH2 (M) 104,227 46,932
Sight deposits with central banks (note (e)) AR ER1T 2 E A AR (B 7E (e)) 4,463,642 7,259,367
4,897,246 7,701,743

Cash and deposits as per above LR & RIFH 4,897,246 7,701,743
Less:  Cash held on behalf of clients (note (d)) B REPRAZE S (HizEd) (104,227) (46,932)

Pledged bank deposits (note (b)) EEMIRTTER (M (b)) (111,763) -

Restricted bank deposits (note (b)) R I ER1TF K (5 () (1,260) =
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EED 4,679,996 7,654,811

Notes: B 5T

(@)  Except for pledged bank deposits, cash at bank earns interest at the floating rates @) MREERRITEHIN  RITASBRTARTE
based on the daily bank deposits rates. KA E 2 2B ERG S -

(b)  Included in cash and bank balances of the Group are the amount of approximately (b) ANEERERIRITAEREIEREL 231,326,000
HK$231,326,000 (2018: HK$249,220,000) denominated in RMB which are placed B IT (ZZF—/\F : 249,220,000 7T) A AR
with the banks in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. FHEFRPEZRITZRE - ARBTEEH
Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of SRBREMEE - RIBHBEBENINEEE R
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is - EERNEBTERE NEEAZARER
permitted to exchange RMB into foreign currencies through the banks authorised BHEITINEEB 2 RITIHARBE L IRBING -
to conduct foreign exchange business.

(0 As at 31 December 2019, included in cash and bank balance of the Group of (© RZFE-—AF+ZA=+—HB XEEFAK

HK$111,763,000 (2018: Nil) are pledged bank deposits pledged as securities for
the Group’s banking facilities and HK$1,260,000 (2018: Nil) are restricted bank
deposits. The pledged bank deposits carried interests at 3.6% per annum.

SRITHER A E0111,763,00078 T (—Z — )\ & :
)G IEAEBRTRENE EIRRITFER -
i 1,260,00078 70 (—F— )\ : ) 5 R HE
TR - S ERBITERIEFFE3.6% 5T
B o



16. CASH AND DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

16. Bl K tr sk (4])

FaE ()

(d) In respect of the Group’s financial business of securities dealing, the Group
maintains segregated trusts accounts with authorised financial institutions to hold
client’s monies. The Group classifies clients’ monies under cash and deposits in the
consolidated statement of financial position and has recognised the corresponding
balances due to cash and margin clients separately under trade payables (note 33)
on the grounds that the Group is liable for any loss or misappropriation of clients’
monies and does not have a currently enforceable right to offset those payables

with the deposits placed.

(e)  These balances with central banks represent sight deposits placed by Bendura

Group and they can be withdrawn immediately without any restrictions.

f) As at 31 December 2019, cash and deposits of HK$4,596,950,000 (2018:

HK$7,369,156,000) are attributable to banking and financial businesses.

17. DUE FROM BANKS AND CLIENTS

(d)

®

MAKBEESES 2 oRERMS - ASERN
ERECHBBRRBLERRSFUFARR
I - AEBRER A MM R AR P RIR
DERRERFFR  AREBEEARESFIAZ
EfERKBAEFNSEEE 2 EWRMmER AR
BNEFRETEERMNTHATS 2RE KR
FEo Z RS (HT5E33) « B AR BRI &
] 58 3017 2 4 N B PR L PR B2 7 0 A K 8
B R RRK -

%L RIBITERIEE R EMMFR2EHSTF
K+ A BB 42 AR ify 48 A AR PR ] o

R-ZTE—-—hFE+-_A=+—8 BER
17 7 4,596,950,0008 & (=T — )\ & :
7,369,156,00077T) Ji 2R B R1T RS BREFS -

17. MEWCSRAT B % P sk JH

2019
—E-Nf

HK$°000
FET

Due from clients — mortgage loans FEW = P 5RIE — RIE B R 1,257,514 825,042
Due from clients — other R R P FRIE—HAM 844,704 759,493
Valuation adjustments for default risk (note (b)) B # E B (A AR (5T (b)) (8,968) (9,097)
Total due from clients FEW = P IR MR 2,093,250 1,575,438
Due from banks on a daily basis U ERIT H B KA 4,720,429 3,205,104
Due from banks other claims JEMERITE MR E 182,006 185,557
Valuation adjustments for default risk (note (b)) BB (AR (5T (b)) (1,237) (2,825)
Total due from banks FEWERIT IR 4,901,198 3,387,836

Notes: M -

(@) Reconciliation of gross carrying amount for due from banks and clients (@ MERERITREFIUARKEEZ SR

Stage 1

FIRER %82

HK$'000
THEIT

Stage 2

HK$'000
THEIT

RZZF-—N\F—A—HB®

Stage 3 Total
B B} FE3MER At
HK$'000 HK$'000

Tt T

Balance at 1 January 2018 “EER 6,933,394 = 3,223 6,936,617
Net financial assets originated/ REeBEEFE/(EBUE
(derecognised or repaid) EAXDEE) (1,934,473) - 1,966 (1,932,507)
Exchange realignment bE 5 B (28,872) = (42) (28,914)
R_E-N\F+_A=+—
Balance at 31 December 2018 and Ak=—ZF—NF—A—H
1 January 2019 EOFE S 4,970,049 = 5,147 4,975,196
Net financial assets originated/ REERMEEFE/(EEUE
(derecognised or repaid) HRHEER) 1,934,540 - - 1,934,540
Amounts written off EMisH & 58 = = (1,455) (1,455)
Exchange realignment PE 0 3 5 96,334 = 38 96,372
RZE—NF+=ZA=+—
Balance at 31 December 2019 B /) &84 7,000,923 - 3,730 7,004,653
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17. DUE FROM BANKS AND CLIENTS (CONTINUED) 17. BEW &R 4T & % )5 3k H (%)

(b)  Movements in the expected credit losses in respect of due from banks and clients (b) EHSETREFREZBHREEEBESHNAT
are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1BER H2RER HEIRER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAIT FAT

Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE-—NFE—H—-B2
e 5,519 - 3,223 8,742

Newly formed valuation adjustments ¥ 383 49 @& (& (B 78 %

for default risks 1,299 - 1,957 3,256
Exchange realignment bE 7 & (43) - (33) (76)

Balance at 31 December 2018 and RZZE—NF+=A

1 January 2019 =+t—HRZZ—NF
—A—Bz&#% 6,775 - 5,147 11,922
Newly formed valuation MIBENR R EFE
adjustments for default risks (357) - (1,455) (1,812)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 5 B 57 - 38 95
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZZE—Nh&F+=A
=T+—HZ&# 6,475 - 3,730 10,205

o RERRFTEREPBENR

(c)  Impaired amounts due from banks and clients

—

2019 2018

—E-hE —T—N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ExT FHET

Impaired amounts due from banks and clients, gross FEUERTT R B PR BRI LR 10,205 11,922

Estimated realisation proceeds from collateral fhEH R R B R A5 3R = =

Impaired amounts due from banks and clients, net FEUWER1T R B E B IEE 58 10,205 11,922

(d)  Non-performing loans (d TREX

No interest income impact from non-performing loans was recognised for the year BE_T-hER-_ZT-N\F+-RA=+—H
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. IEEE  BEBERTNREREELEZFEBAR

@,
&



18. TRADING PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS 18. ZH M A HE

2019 2018
—EB-NF

—T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T

Equity instruments KRATH
Listed equity instruments in Hong Kong at market value EMERES LM ZRATA 69,042 42,793
Listed equity instruments outside Hong Kong at market value #Z M {EREFBHEIN L2 BA

TAH 78,307 35,429
Total equity instruments BATEELE 147,349 78,222
Debt instruments EHIA

REBRI L 2 & REBET

Debt instruments of financial institutions listed outside

Hong Kong TA - 603
Unlisted debt instruments of financial institutions SREBZIELMEF TR 27,612 12,890
Total debt instruments B TEAZ 27,612 13,493
Investment fund units BREESEN
Investment fund units listed outside Hong Kong REBFEIN LMz RERER B - 793
Unlisted investment fund units ELEMIRERS BN 46,758 7,851
Total investment fund units BREESENEALE 46,758 8,644
Investment in other financial products HttemERRE 6,184 23,247
Total trading portfolio investments RBEEREBE 227,903 123,606

The investments under trade portfolio investments are held for trading
purposes.

Fair value of the listed equity instruments, debt instruments and investment
fund units have been determined by reference to their quoted market prices at
the reporting date in an active market. Fair value of the listed trading portfolio
investments is Level 1 recurring fair value measurement.

Fair value of unlisted debt instruments have been determined using significant
inputs, which are market observable, directly or indirectly. The fair value of the
unlisted debt instruments is Level 2 recurring fair value measurement.

Fair value of unlisted investment funds as at 31 December 2018 has been
determined using significant inputs, which are market observable, directly or
indirectly. The fair value of unlisted investment fund units is Level 2 recurring
fair value measurement.

The fair value of unlisted investment funds as at 31 December 2019 is Level 3
recurring fair value measurement. The details of assessment are set out in note
52.9 to the consolidated financial statements.

RHBPAREDHAEEEERR -

FHIRATE EHRIARRKREESEMZA
FEDES2EARRE BEERTISMETE
BRTANETE - LHRGEEREZATERSE
— RS EERTEE -

FLEMEBRENRFEDERIERSMAE
WHSBENERN ABREEE - JF LHEK
TENATFEBE -_REBERATETNE -

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H FLmREE
EORAFEDNERITERIFERRTISEEN
BEXBABEEE FLTREEZENHAFE
BE_RKEEATETE -

RZZE-—NF+ZA=1+—H FLmREE
ENAFEBE=RLETERTETE -
FHIERGA M EIRRMES2.9

—T—NEFHR 2019 Annual Report 23]



232 Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited B EEKIKE L EHIRAF]

18. TRADING PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

19.

(CONTINUED)

Other financial products are referring to the insurance policy entered by the
Group. The fair value of investments in insurance policies are determined
based on the account value as stated in cash surrender value statements issued
by insurers. Fair value of other financial products is Level 2 recurring fair value
measurement.

There is no transfer under the fair value hierarchy classification for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The fair value gain during the year was amounted to HK$20,368,000
(2018: fair value gain of HK$15,541,000), which has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as “other income and other
net gains or losses” (note 8) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, listed equity instruments with an aggregated
carrying amount of HK$109,815,000 (2018: HK$35,749,000) have been
pledged to secure the margin loan payable (note 36).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

18. & & Al 5 $e & (%)

19.

HSBEREAEBRBORE - REKE
HAFEZRBRARZEHORSRRENER
BEE EMEREMNAFELSE _AKE
HRFEAE -

BHE-Z—NLFERZZ2—)/\F+=ZA=+—H
WEFE - AF(ER R I E s B o

NEE 2 ANFERWZA20,368,000%8 T (ZF
— )\ : RFEEUES15,541,0007870) @ EREL
E_T-NF+_A=t—HILFEZHEEE
HEWARATER A [ H AW A R H Az 2k & 18
HEE | (HI5E8) ©

R-_E—hhF+-_A=+—8 AEHEEAS
109,815,000 7T (== — J\4F : 35,749,000 %
TL) Z ERAT EE HBEERENRESE
K (MFzE36) -

g&?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%AZQQﬁ

2019 PAONES]
—B-hAE —ZF)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT

Listed equity instruments in Hong Kong (note (a)) MR&B EM 2B AT A (a)
(P 5% @) 282,080 492,759

Listed equity instruments outside Hong Kong (note (b)) M &BEIN ET 2 AT A (b)
(M 5T (b)) 135,176 128,730
Unlisted equity investments FE ETIRAIEE 5,605 5,711
422,861 627,200

The Group designated its listed equity instruments in or outside Hong Kong
and unlisted equity investments at FVOCI as below, as those investments are
held for strategic purposes.

(@ As at 31 December 2019, the listed equity investments in Hong Kong
represented 14.76% (2018: 14.76%) equity interest in Min Xin Holdings
Limited (“Min Xin Shares”). As at 31 December 2019, the Group held
88,150,000 (2018: 88,150,000) Min Xin Shares. Dividend income from
Min Xin Shares totalling HK$8,815,000 (2018: HK$6,996,000) was
recognised by the Group in profit or loss in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019.

AEBEZTHIHTABERBBRAIEIINZ
MRAT AN EMRARE R E SRR FE
SEARMEEWA - RERZFRE TR
REA -

R_ZE—hFE+_A=+—8 REBL
MZBEAREERREEEEBRARZ
14.76% (ZZ — )\4F : 14.76% ) I 4 ([ B
ERHD R_ZT—hAhE+_A=+—
H A& B+ 588,150,000 % (=ZZ — )\
£ : 88,150,000 /%) B k1D - AEER
HE_T-hF+t-_A=t—HLFEZ
A EEWAR N ERSFERBRE RGN
B A A ££8,815,0008 70 (ZZF— )\ 4F :
6,996,000 7 7T) °

(a)



19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)
Particulars of the Group’s investments in Min Xin Shares are as follows:

Country of

incorporation

19. 3% 2 P EE A Al 2 i A 2 4 il

(a)

Particulars of issued
shares held

w

(&)
AEERBEEROOREFBTNOT

Percentage of
ownership
interest
attributable
to the Group
AEBERN
BEEERES
Ak
14.76%

Number of
shares held
by the Group

REBRE
B BB
88,150,000

=E 11 AR 32 B 3R B RITROFR
Min Xin Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share
EEEEGRAA S AR

The listed equity investment at fair value of HK$135,176,000 (2018:
HK$128,730,000) represented the investment in Citychamp Dartong
Company Limited (referred to “Dartong” and its shares referred to as
the “Dartong Shares”). During the year, Dartong declared cash dividend
of RMB1 per 10 shares (2018: RMB1.2 per 10 shares). Dividend income
from Dartong Shares totalling HK$3,448,000 (2018: HK$4,320,000) was
recognised by the Group in profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019.

As of 31 December 2019, Mr. Shang Jianguang, Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Mr.
Hon Hau Wong, the executive directors of the Company are also the
executive directors of Dartong. Dartong is owned as to approximately
33.95% (2018: 31.99%) by Fujian Fengrong Investment Company
Limited (“Fengrong”). Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Ms. Lu Xiaojun are the
daughters-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung and the beneficial owners of
Fengrong. Mr. Hon Hau Wong, an executive Director of the Company, is
the spouse of Ms. Lu Xiaojun.

Particulars of the Group’s investments in Dartong Shares are as follows:

Country of

incorporation

S0 A 3L B R
PRC
q:

Citychamp Dartong Company Limited
I A B D B R A A

During the year, the decrease in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income of HK$204,233,000 (2018:
HK$123,352,000) has been dealt with in other comprehensive income
and FVOCI reserve. There is no transfer of cumulative gain or loss within
equity during the year.

(b)

Particulars of issued
shares held

e BITROFE

Ordinary A Share
ARRE AR

BAEYIER 2 ERRZARIEE 135,176,000
BT (ZZ— )\4F : 128,730,000)8 7T) #5
REBRABRD AR AR ([ K@ - EfkH
BEIKERG]) 2’E -FR @ KETIK
HEeREFI0BRARE L (ZZE—/\F:
BI0OBRARK12T) AEBMPREE_FT
—hE+-_A=+—BLEEREEEA
WA RIBRERRBR DB EWAE
#£ 3,448,000 7T (== — /\FF : 4,320,000
HBIT) ©

RZB—HhE+_A=+—8  KATH
TESEENAE BERBELETREZE
EETARNBZHATES - ABHARELS
RIEERRARE (L)) FHE433.95%
(ZZ—)\FF :31.99%) ° EEZR& L0+ o [
BIEZIYARBRREEEZRERFLER
ZEDZBEEAN c ARBRITESTEZIE N
EhEEREAL T ZERS -

AREBRARBEBBRDOREFBOT

Percentage of
ownership
interest
attributable
to the Group
rEBEEMN
BmEERS
Agk

2.04%

Number of
shares held
by the Group

REBFE
B4 8 B
30,389,058

FR - RATFEFAEMEERAZ SR
EEDNFERD 204,233,008 7T (==
— J\%:123,352,000/8 ) E R E b2 |
WARIEAFEFAHEMEZABARER
BRI - TN EanAMEER R
fE518 o
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20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 20. ik &R TH
2019 AONES
=E-h¥F —ZT—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Derivative financial assets TTEEREE
Forward and option contracts BENEAK @ 10,275 7,694
Derivative financial liabilities TEEREE
Forward and option contracts REINEIRES A (a) (54,788) (20,866)
Note: GEX
(@)  Forward and option contracts arising in banking business (@) KREBTEBZEHRBESLD
The Group’s subsidiaries under the banking business segment act as an REBRTER DI TN 2B R REATNE
intermediary to offer derivative products including interest rate and currency HEEEETETAEED  BEMXRUREK
forwards and swap to its customers. These derivative positions are managed REANIEH - ZETAE T AEER S BEIN R
through entering back-to-back deals with external parties to ensure the remaining ATV EHERGETERENERG T ER
exposures are within acceptable risk levels. KA EZRERBRKFER -
The following tables and notes provide an analysis of the nominal amounts TEEMRSREBEEZEZATEEZ2TETAEREE
of derivatives and the corresponding fair values as at the year ended date. FAEATERES T - STETAZHEBERER
The nominal amounts of the derivatives indicate the volume of transactions RBEHRARTRZRG=MITELIRRAR S
outstanding as at the reporting date; they do not represent amounts at risk. 28 o

31 December 2019
—2-AFt+t=A=+-A

Nominal amount Assets Liabilities
HE BE =R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FH&x FEx
Non-hedging instruments JEHHRT A
— Currency derivatives —EETETA 4,531,412 10,275 (54,788)

31 December 2018

—E-N\F+ZA=+—H
Nominal amount Assets Liabilities
[l BiE afs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHAT FHT FHT
Non-hedging instruments SR T A
— Currency derivatives —BEETETA 2,151,141 7,480 (20,652)
— Option —HitE 23,839 214 (214)

2,174,980 7,694 (20,866)




20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Note: (Continued)

(@)  Forward and option contracts arising in banking business (Continued) (a)

Nominal amount analysed by remaining maturity

20. fi A ik T H (%)
fi sk : (48)
R ERITER 2 EHRBEA L ()

B TRHE ST 2 EE

2019 2018

—E-NEF —ZT-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Within 3 months 3 @A R 3,761,590 1,753,659
Between 3 months and 1 year 3EAE1F 26,701 416,090
Between 1 year and 5 years 15855 743,121 5,231
4,531,412 2,174,980

The remaining term to maturity of derivatives does not represent the Group’s
intended holding period. Change in the fair value of forward and option contracts
arising in banking business has been recognised in the consolidated statement of

TETABMAR THRETIKRAKTE 2 #
FEH - REBRTEH 2EZHRBRANZA
FEEFERE[RITEBLZXZIBAIREGE

comprehensive income under “Trading income from banking business”. 2HEHKARARER °

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BEBOR %

2019
ZE-AF

AONES]
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FHE T

HK$°000
FTET

Trade receivables arising from watches and timepieces BRABTTEREBEEL
business: (note (a)) FEURER SR« (FiizE(a))
Trade receivables JFE s BR 5K 533,280 613,650
Less: impairment allowance W R ERE (58,347) (50,976)
474,933 562,674
Trade receivables arising from financial business: (note (b)) SR EAE 2 EIARK -
(3% (b))
— Margin clients —RESEF 254 260
— Cash clients —RBeRP 2,182 8,490
— Clearing house —EE 893 -
3,329 8,750
Trade receivables, net FEUS BR R 5 58 478,262 571,424
Notes: BoaE -
(@  The Group's trading terms with its customers of watches and timepieces business @ REFEEAFEMNRIN AEBREEER

are mainly on credit, except for certain customers, where payment in advance is

R EmEBEPRIV BB GRREE /LK

required. The credit period is generally for a period of one to six months (2018: one
to six months) for major customers. The credit term for customers is determined
by the management according to industry practice together with consideration
of their creditability. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade receivables relate to a wide range of customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AR ETERP—RABE—EXER(ZT—)N
FEXNEA)ZEER - EFZEEMAE
BERBOTXEANYZEEEP 2 EEERE - £
REREBARAEBRREET S RAETRE
)j MU BEEEREERR o BURERILT
e
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 21.

Notes: (Continued)

W WS MR sk ()

Mzt : ()

(a)

(Continued)

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables arising from watches and
timepieces business are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss
is written off against trade receivables directly.

Movements in the expected credit losses of trade receivables arising from watches
and timepieces business are as follows:

(a

(#8)

Bk NS EHE MR E L 2 BURFUREE 1R
ThERBERIIM - BRIFAKEEAKEER
Sz AR R R AR - EULERT - R
EEEES B R R AR -

BN EREBEL 2 BURERZBHE
EBEZHMT

2019 2018
—E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHExT T
At 1 January »—A—8 50,976 53,056
Effect on the adoption of HKFRS 9 HNB BB wEERFE IR
2B - 1,793
Written-off of impairment allowance Pt S5 R (B A (93) (6,712)
Expected credit losses for the year FANEHREEEE 7,340 4,381
Exchange realignment VE = 124 (1,542)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 58,347 50,976

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. As at 31 December
2019, trade receivables of HK$13,484,000 (2018: HK$14,639,000) have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group during the year (note
36).

Ageing analysis of trade receivables arising from watches and timepieces business
as at the reporting date, based on invoice dates, and net of provisions, is as
follows:

REBUWERZEEMSATMERR - RN=F
—NE+=-FA=+—8 - 13,484,000 T 2 fEU
BRRE TR (ZF— /\F : 14,639,000/ 7T) *
AR AR E BN FANERBITRE (H5E36) °

8 8K I B 5T 22 fm ST R AR 2 TR MR BR AR (A0 B %
) RRBEZAHRKE R 2R DTN T

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$’000

TET FHT

1 to 3 months 1231@A 343,863 401,115
4 to 6 months 4Z61EA 44,032 73,448
Over 6 months BiE 6 fE A 87,038 88,111
474,933 562,674

The directors of the Company consider that as trade receivables arising from
watches and timepieces business are expected to be recovered within one year.
As such, their fair values are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because these balances have short maturity periods on their inception at the
reporting date.

AARESERR  NWER - ANEE R E
mEBELZ BRERBEHER —FAKD -
BEMGHEEMGARZEIBARE - 8HE
AN ERAREETEENAER -



21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The settlement term of trade receivables arising from the financial business of
securities dealing is two business days after trade date (“T+2").

Margin loans due from margin clients are current and repayable on demand.
Margin clients are required to pledge securities as collateral to the Group in order
to obtain credit facilities for securities trading. As at 31 December 2019, the total
market value of securities pledged as collateral in respect of the receivables from
margin clients are approximately HK$1,701,000 (2018: HK$4,026,000). Margin
loans are interest bearings at fixed rate of 8.25% (2018: 8.25%) per annum.
Subject to certain conditions, the Group is allowed to repledge collateral from
margin clients. There was no repledge of collateral from margin clients as at 31
December 2019 and 2018. No ageing analysis is disclosed for trade receivables
from margin clients. In the opinion of the directors, ageing analysis is not
meaningful in view of the business nature of securities dealing.

Trade receivable from cash clients related to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default. Based on the past experience, current
assessment and the available forward-looking information, the management
believes that no additional impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered fully recoverable.

Trade receivables from clearing house, i.e. Hong Kong Securities Clearing Limited,
is current which represents pending trades arising from the financial business
of securities dealing and are normally due on “T+2" day in accordance with the
requirements of Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited.

The Group has policy for impairment allowance which requires management’s
judgement and estimation as mentioned in note 4.13. The directors are in opinion
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade receivables arising
from the financial business of securities dealing as at 31 December 2019 and
2018.

21. MR (4])

FaE : (8)

(b)

ELERZEMEBMEERUERAEH
BrRZBEMMEEXA (T+2)) -

BRREFE€RFZRECERBHEERE
RFEE -REFECBLAEFFHFERRTAS
B FARSEAFRZZEERE - R=T—A
F+-A=+—H HREKRZSEFEREH
1ERIEIR MK 2 FHMEAEL 41,701,000
BT (ZZF—)\F : 4,026,000/87T) - REBELE
IR E E FF K 8.25% (—ZZF—/\4F :8.25%)
FTE o BB TIRMHFAERT « ANEE A BHEAR
BEEPZERR R-_E-NAERER_ZF—N\
F+-A=+—H0 BEBRBARIEELEFZ
FRAEFER HREFRE ERNEFHREEZ
EBEE  RROMIESE QMU EREERE
WRFBERERRZRER DT ©

HABEPAMZBYRSE P R RO E
fo RER R o IRIBIBERLER  BEFE R A AR
HEEER  BEERE  BANZSTEHRIER
SVREREE THRNEEEEYEREAEHA
BRI AR R BB M -

A EE T (BIERBRREEEGR A BRAAE
ENE - EERFEECERMEBELEZFHRR
5 B REREERHREEMBRIRLZ
MER[T+2 BEH

WK EE413 Tl - AEBE IR ERER
BR - EREREELHE RE - EERA
RZE—-NER_ZFT—/\FE+=_A=+—8"
BEREFEE 2 B E 15 FTE &£ B W ER M
FHRRE R -
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22. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

COST

2019
—E-AF

HK$°000
FTET

22, F5 8 8 A S ke 2 3L At < il

2018
—T-N\F
HK$'000
FH&T

Listed debt instruments, at amortised cost EWEBT A - IR AR 1,307,960 1,034,773

Issued by: BATALET:

Governments and public sector BT R A & 2R P 82,373 7,822

Financial institutions BRI 778,199 716,747

Corporations B2 447,388 310,204
1,307,960 1,034,773

FHEBRERTIZHBMNSREERE
EROTZLMEHBITARE -

The listed debt investments represented the investments in listed debt
instruments mainly issued by financial institutions and corporations in Europe.

23. INVENTORIES 23. f+ &

2019
—EB-NF

HK$'000
FTET

2018
—F-N\F
HK$'000
FET

Raw materials JR#4 480,804 584,342
Work-in-progress fE 8 460,376 359,015
Finished goods and merchandises SRk on K 7S o 1,316,786 1,371,188

2,257,966 2,314,545

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

24. Pl &5 8 A SR HE 4

2019
—EB-AF

HK$'000
FET

2018

—E-N\E

HK$'000
TR

At 1 January n—H—H 2,439 5,117
Share of total comprehensive income of joint ventures EheatEt s 2EmKRALE (1,343) (2,678)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 1,096 2,439




24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 24. Fifli 5 B €M 1 (&)

Particulars of the joint ventures, which are accounted for using equity method REMBERREARESEARCEELEFE
in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows: wm

Principal activities and
principal place of
operation

Particulars of Place of Percentage of
issued capital incorporation interest held
2817 FREEDS
BRAFE =E 8 B 37 4tk Bh B ot
2019 and 2018

ZB-AER

—EB-N\F

TEXBRETEEXME

Corum Investment Management Us$100 Cayman Islands 40% Investment holding in
Limited (“Corum Investment”) 100%€T HEHS Hong Kong
REBREER
Corum Capital Partners Limited US$10,000 Cayman Islands 40% Investment holding in
("Corum Capital”) 10,0003 7T HEHS Hong Kong

REBEBREEK

& E A& B 5 R+ A Corum Investment &
Corum Capital Z 40% Ik ANz - BB A &
HOEERAHMEASENSECE MR

Despite the Group’s holding of 40% equity interest in Corum Investment and
Corum Capital respectively, the directors have confirmed that neither the
Group nor other shareholders of the joint ventures has unilateral control over

the operating and financing decision of the joint ventures in accordance with RAIBEFEIEHIGECEZKERPTBHRE -
the joint venture agreement. These joint arrangements are classified as joint ZEAELTH WO BEREECEBENGAME
MEAKAERAANRK -

ventures and have been accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
using equity method.

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 25. B A W 2 W) 4R

2019 2018
—2-nE

—E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET Tt

At 1 January n—HA—H 102,919 99,648
Share of total comprehensive income of associates iR E R R 22 EBR AL 17,567 8,271

Dividend income from an associates N A 2 BB A (5,000) (5,000)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 115,486 102,919

R-ZZE—NAE+-A=1+—0 TEHLQA
(BARAR) ZFEBWT

Particulars of the principal associate, which is a limited liability company, at 31
December 2019 are as follows:

Principal activities and

Particulars of

issued capital

Place of
incorporation

Percentage of
interest held

principal place of
operation

Fair Future Industrial Limited
(“Fair Future”)

BEABEEBRAR (EX])

BRITRAFE

HK$600,000
600,000 7T,

=E 118 A 3L 4 86

Hong Kong
B

FEREMGED L

25%
(2018: 25%)

(ZE—)\F : 25%)
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25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 25. P Al 2wl e g (48)
The summarised financial information of the Group’s material associate as NTREBEEZZE-—NEER=F—\F+=A
extracted from its management accounts for the years ended 31 December =+ HIEFEASESREE AR ZHBE
2019 and 2018 is as follows: B E (Fixa HEEERE)
2019 2018
—B-nEF ZFT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FAT
Fair Future B Xt
As at 31 December R+=—B=+—8H
Current assets BB E 660,061 679,548
Non-current assets ERBNE B 171,216 140,252
Current liabilities mMEEE (499,593) (556,625)
Non-current liabilities e EIN= N (18,353) (275)
Net assets EEZFE 313,331 262,900
Less: Non-controlling interests B IEE AR (764) (352)
Net assets attributable to owners of the associate BEARBERARBLEEFE 312,567 262,548
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in Fair Future: AEBRER ZERS 2 HER:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REE B 2 25% 25%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate AEEEEEBE AR CEEFE 78,333 65,725
Goodwill on acquisition Whs 2 g 2 37,987 37,987
Effect of unrealised profits arising from the transactions REE-—HBERARIRSHZARE
with an associate Bom 2 (1,088) (1,151)
Other reconciliation items H ¥R H 104 208
Carrying amount of the investment % & AR A 115,336 102,769
For the year ended 31 December BE+-A=1+—HILEE
Revenue WA 1,205,977 1,223,729
Profit for the year NG 2 g A 70,862 31,510
Other comprehensive income Hfth 2 E WA (431) (468)
Total comprehensive income HEMALLTE 70,431 31,042
Profit for the year attributable to owners of an associate —fE R EEE AREREE
il 70,450 31,774
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to —EBERRBEEARBGEARFE
owners of an associate ZERAREE 70,019 31,306
Reconciliation to the Group’s share of results of Fair AEEELERER LR
Future:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEE B 2 ] 25% 25%
Group’s share of profits of the associate ANER B FE G B & A B2 T 17,612 7,943
Effects of unrealised profits arising from the transactions KEE—HBERRRIZARE
with an associate IR N 5 2 63 444
Share of profit of the associate for the year JE (5 5F MBSk A &g 17,675 8,387
Group’s share of other comprehensive income of AEEEEBE AR ZEMEE
the associate A (108) (117)
Other HAih - 1
Share of total comprehensive income of the associate LB E N R 2 2 EBRALEEE 17,567 8,271




Right-of-use
assets

EREEE
HK$'000

FAL

26. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and
buildings

1HEEF
HK$'000

T

Leasehold
improvements
e

HK$'000
TATL

26. W3k ~ Wbz Bk

Furniture,
fixtures
and office
equipment
8-#BR
BAERMR
HK$'000

T

Motor
vehicles

e
HKS'000

THL

Plant and
machinery

BER#R
HK$'000

Tin

P

ERIE
HKS'000
TATL

Total

At
HKS'000

T

At 1 January 2018 R-E-NF-F-H
Cost A - 738,529 64,140 166,230 416,957 46,313 60321 1,492,490
Accumulated depreciation 2iHTE = (59,230) (35,302) (81,084) (254,450) (35,121) - (465,187)
Net carrying amount BEFE - 679,299 28,838 85,146 162,507 11,192 60321 1,027,303
Year ended 31 December 2018~ BZ=F-N\F
TZB=t+-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE - 679,299 28,838 85,146 162,507 11,192 60321 1,027,303
Additions RE - 28,874 19916 5,123 51,849 4791 2477 113,030
Transfer S - 19,648 - 52 - - (20,387) (687)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 48)  EEMB A F (HizE48) - 27,233 3,637 859 6,915 41 - 39,116
Depreciation e - (33,136) (17319 (11,512 (61,248) (3,048) - (126,255)
Disposal e - (16) (138) (61) (314) (1,060) - (1,589)
Exchange realignment B AR - (8,137) (1482) (666) (2,485) (576) (836) (14182)
Closing carrying amount EREEE = 713,765 33,460 78,941 157,224 1,7 41,575 1,036,736
At 31 December 2018 R=2-NE+ZA=1-R
Cost A - 801,236 8519 193,058 580,813 48213 41575 1,750,091
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE - (87471) (51736)  (114,117)  (423,589) (36,442) - (713359)
Net carrying amount REFE - 713,765 33,460 78,941 157,24 1,771 41575 1,036,736
Year ended 31 December 2019 BZ=E-AE+=A
St-HLEE
Opening net book amount EMREFE - 713,765 33,460 78,94 157,24 1,11 41575 1,036,736
Initial recognition upon adoption of ~ FRAVEBEI I RE A
HKFRS 16 £ 16REDRER 90,627 - - - - - - 90,627
Transfer from prepaid land lease ~~ SREVE BB R 5 £
payment upon adoption of HKFRS & 1635 e & A Ta f
16 (note 28) RSN (FE28) 47,605 - - - - - - 47,605
Transfer from land and buildings upon 5437 7 817 3 & 26|
adoption of HKFRS 16 £ 165 EE TR
BTER 370885 (370,885) = = - - - -
Opening net book amount (restated)  E418R /B (L E5) 509,117 342,880 33,460 78,941 157,224 1,11 4,575 1,174,968
Additions TE 21,230 17,748 28,182 9,798 45,129 2,426 41,710 166,223
Lease modification HEBY 10,101 - - - - - - 10,101
Transfer & = 36,433 = = = = (36,433) =
Depreciation il (55,434) (6,523) (26,162)  (15,989) (66,130) 2912) - (173,150)
Disposal e - (101) - (66) (18,971) (817) - (19,955)
Exchange realignment ERHAE (7,921) 2,927 (219) (8,949) 4,941 (103) (814) (10,138)
Closing carrying amount EXEEE 477,093 393,364 35,261 63,735 122,193 10,365 46,038 1,148,049
At 31 December 2019 RZE-N§
t-A=t-H
Cost s 532,527 440,798 101,878 200,823 594,244 46,768 46,038 1,963,076
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (55,434) (47,434) (66,617)  (137,088)  (472,051) (36,403) - (815027)
Net carrying amount BEFE 477,093 393,364 35,261 63,735 122,193 10,365 46,038 1,148,049

R-ZZE—NE+-_A=1+—0 A&EEDEF
17 P2 B = BR T 4215 95,180,000 78 7T (=& — )\
£ 120,711,000 7T) 2 T R IEF AR R
TEeE (MIsE36) °

At 31 December 2019, land and buildings in Switzerland with an aggregated
carrying value of HK$95,180,000 (2018: HK$120,711,000) have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 36).
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26. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 26. M ~ Wm Mk (4)
(CONTINUED)
Land and Motor
buildings vehicles
leased for leased for
Right-of-use assets own use own use Total
HEEEH HEFEEH
EREAE B Lt AT 5= st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHBT FAT
As at 31 December 2018 RZFE—N\F+=H
=+—H = - -
Recognition upon initial application of 6 FE R BB S WS
HKFRS 16 HEBIE 16 3R A FERR 90,627 . 90,627
Transfer from prepaid land lease payments 244 & i B4 76 3R &5 #E B
upon adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 28) 165k B TR T ib
HE R R (s 28) 47,605 - 47,605
Transfer from land and buildings upon BB B RE 2R
adoption of HKFRS 16 F165RR B i &
12 T 370,885 - 370,885
Opening balance under HKFRS 16 RZZE-NF—H—AEE
as at 1 January 2019, as restated BBM G REERE 1698
FHERR  KEF 509,117 - 509,117
Additions N 19,087 2,143 21,230
Lease modification THEEN 10,101 - 10,101
Depreciation & (54,947) (487) (55,434)
Exchange realignment bE 5 A (7,935) 14 (7,921)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—-—NFE+=H
=+—H 475,423 1,670 477,093




27. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position can be summarised as follows:

27. Be&EWE

AEERERROESHE AL ET AL EH
W/ BZYMEER  DRATERAGE X
DERANRBREYE -

RPN ER 25 2 FREEZ SR T :

2019 2018

—E-hE —ZT—N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FAT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEREE 179,133 125,384

Transfer from property, plant and equipment HE B BREKEE = 57,815

Net surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of investment properties ~ REMEE G 2 Btk (E4L) 4,047 (4,066)
R

Exchange realignment P 35, ol 2k (994) =

Carrying amount at 31 December R+t A=+—HBzK@EE 182,186 179,133

The carrying amounts of the Group’s investment properties situated in Hong
Kong and the PRC held under medium-term leases are analysed as follows:

AREBURNEERTEARBEOFTE 2K E
WRZREEIFWOT

2019 PAONES]

—E-NEF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHT

Hong Kong BB 27,400 26,000
PRC i 154,786 153,133
182,186 179,133

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has not obtained the relevant title
certificates for investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$44,650,000 (2018: HK$46,340,000). The Group’s legal advisors have
confirmed that the Group is the rightful and equitable owner of these
investment properties. The directors are now in process of obtaining the title
certificates from the relevant government authorities.

Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2019 and 2018 by
Asset Appraisal Limited (“Asset Appraisal”) and Chung, Chan & Associate,
independent professionally qualified valuers, at HK$182,186,000 (2018:
HK$179,133,000) in aggregate. Asset Appraisal is a member of Hong Kong
Institutes of Surveyors and Chung, Chan & Associates is a member of Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Both have appropriate qualifications and
relevant experiences in the location and category of properties being valued.

R-E—-hhEFE+_A=+—8B KEBLK
7t BR M 4218 44,650,000 7L (= Z — )\ £F :
46,340,000 70) 2 I E M EBSHBEFEEE
B AEBAZBERE®R  AEBAZER
BYEZEEE=ERBA - EEIIERIEAK
T4 B ERAS AR5 AT o

BREMER_T—NER=ZT-—NF+=A
=T+ HHRBIEERAGEMPHEEE
FEBEMARAR ([FHE]) & Chung, Chan
& Associate E & A4 £ 182,186,000/8 T (==
— \% 179,133,000/ 7T) ° 3 EREHA
ERMEE/ME © Chung, Chan & Associate Al 45
BERFFAIEMBSKE - MEHTRE-HE
MEZMNERDEFEEBEEERKEEAL
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27. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of investment properties is a Level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balance is
provided below.

27. Be& W (H)

D FERR
BREMEZAVERE=BEFEAFEFE -
FUORFRRFEMERZHREINAT o

2019 2018

—2-nF ZT-N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTERx T

Opening balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) ENEH(F=EBREHEATE) 179,133 125,384

Transfer from property, plant and equipment ERAYE  HWE&ZE - 57,815
Net surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of investment properties 1B %ISR 2 A WM EE

charge to profit or loss 2R (B F5E 4,047 (4,066)

Exchange realignment PE H S (994) =

Closing balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) FREHR (FZEBEEERTFE) 182,186 179,133

Change in unrealised gain/(loss) for the year included in
profit or loss for assets held at 31 December

RT-—A=+—HBEEE
SEARNREE 2 FE

REIBU S (BB EE 4,047 (4,066)

Change in unrealised gain for the year included in other
comprehensive income for assets held at 31 December

RT-—A=+—BRREAE
HARMEERAZ 5
RERUEE

= 57,128

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

For the fair value measurement for investment properties in the PRC under
income approach, the fair value was determined by taking into account the
net rental incomes of the properties derived from the existing tenancies with
due allowance for the reversionary income potential of the tenancies, which
are then capitalised into the values at appropriate capitalisation rates.

Significant unobservable inputs Range
Capitalisation rate 2.0% to 7.10%
(2018: 2.0% to
6.50%)

HK$5.56 to HK$110
(2018: HK$6.51

to HK$114.89)

Market unit rent per square metre

A lower in the capitalisation rate and a higher in the market unit rent used
would result in an increase in the fair value measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

For the fair value measurement for investment property in Hong Kong under
direct comparison method, it is assumed that each of the properties is capable
of being sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant possession and
by making reference to comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant
markets.

REBEE-E-NEFER-ZE—N\E+_A=+—
BItFE F-—EBRE-_EBLEEE  JK
BEBAF-_ERAF_BEEL AEBZ
BUR BB A 2 R BARERS A FERRIK
Tz B

IR AR A 2 FEIREME A FEFE
RPEDHFAZSEDECREHEEL 2 HE
WAFRE WERBHERR ZRKAE
HRBEEEN L RBEFTEANGTHEE -

EATTHEGARE EE
B = 20%ZE7.10%

(ZE—N\F:20%%
6.50%)

BumEHEe 5568702 11078 7T
(BERK) (ZE—N\F : 6515

Z114.89%7T)

EAREERCEXREBRGEMTSEEEE
BEIEREMEZATFEEMN  RZTA -

RIBBEELBOAAERTEREMELTEM
FOOBRRBEVEAZERARRGHE I
LEFETS B AULREERE -



27. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

28.

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

One of the key inputs used under direct comparison method in valuing the
investment property was the price per square feet and taking into account
location and other individual factors. The price per square feet used is
approximately HK$17,692 (2018: HK$17,020). An increase in the price per
square feet would result in an increase in the fair value measurement of the
investment property, and vice versa.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in the prior year.
The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest and best
use, which does not differ from their actual use.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Changes to the carrying amounts are summarised as follows:

27. Be& W (H)

28.

AFEHR (E)

AR EMER  EEREXEZBETEZHAH
Bz—BBFHRER Bt RuEREME
RIAZE -FTASFERRERDN AR 17,6928 T (=
T—\F:17,020%87x) - HEFLHFREE LELAE
BYREVMELATEASEM - RZTA °

RE—FERBZHERELEZE) - A FETY
R LAMEZ ZRSRRERE/EEFE
ZEMGEEERAZLEANR

TEAE - A kIR
REEZPERMT :

2019
—EB-AF

2018
—E—N\F
HK$'000
THT

HK$'000
FET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 47,605 51,083
Transfer to right-of-use assets upon adoption of HKFRS 16 R4\ E B B 75 7R & % I 5 16 57 B

(note 26) EREEAEAE (Fis26) (47,605) -
Amortisation during the year FREH = (864)
Exchange realignment M 5 % - (2,614)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HBZKEE - 47,605

As at 31 December 2018, the amount of the Group’s prepaid land lease
payments expected to be recognised as expense after more than one year is
HK$46,775,000. The remaining prepaid land lease payments are expected to
be recognised as expense within one year.

As at 31 December 2018, all of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments are
related to land located in the PRC and held under medium-term leases.

Due to the initial adoption of the HKFRS 16, the prepaid land lease payments
has been transferred to right-of-use assets under property, plant and
equipment on 1 January 2019.

RZBE—NE+-_A=+—8 K&E£EB—FA
“IEBEERAEAZEMIHEENRA
46,775,000/ 7C 82 T TEfT L B & RIETE AT
BR—FRERAER -

RZZ—N\F+=ZA=+—8 AEEZEH
T3 EFRIETY BT AR B AR BAE A4
BztiBR -

HRTARABT R BREERNE165E - N =
Z-NE-A—B BNIHEEFEDE#
ENE BELREBETHNEREEE -
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29. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 29. WL & E
Supplier
and
distribution Trading
networks Patents rights
HrER
B2 SRR REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FE T
At 1 January 2018 R=ZZB—N\F
—H—H
Cost B 7 21,857 236,246 32,203 7,246 297,552
Accumulated amortisation and 25t KRB E TR
impairment losses (16,272) (235,941) (32,203) - (284,416)
Net carrying amount IR R E 5,585 305 - 7,246 13,136
Year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE =Z— \F
+=A=+—H
tHFE
Opening carrying amount FHREE 5,585 305 - 7,246 13,136
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 NG
(note 48) (Fft=E48) - 42,000 - - 42,000
Amortisation BiE (1,718) (76) - = (1,794)
Exchange realignment ME 3 A 68 (100) = — (32)
Closing carrying amount FRIRMEE 3,935 42,129 - 7,246 53,310
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N\F
+=A=+—~
Cost X 7 20,927 271,867 32,203 7,246 332,243
Accumulated amortisation and 25t KRB E TR
impairment losses (16,992) (229,738) (32,203) - (278,933)
Net carrying amount BREEE 3,935 42,129 - 7,246 53,310
Year ended 31 December 2019 E@ZE=Z—h&E+=
B=+—RHILFE
Opening carrying amount FHREE 3,935 42,129 - 7,246 53,310
Amortisation BEaE (1,644) (72) - - (1,716)
Exchange realignment ME H R B (45) 540 - - 495
Closing carrying amount FRIREE 2,246 42,597 - 7,246 52,089
At 31 December 2019 R-EB—NE
+=B=+—H
Cost B AR 20,670 276,662 32,581 7,246 337,159
Accumulated amortisation and  Z &t #EES RRE
impairment losses BB (18,424) (234,065) (32,581) = (285,070)

Net carrying amount REFE 2,246 42,597 - 7,246 52,089




29. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, intangible assets of HK$44,843,000 (2018:
HK$46,064,000) are attributable to watches and timepieces business while
intangible assets of HK$7,246,000 (2018: HK$7,246,000) are attributable to
financial business.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to HK$101,452,000
(2018: HK$100,315,000) are attributable to the CGU of Corum Group. The
intangible assets of Corum Group had been fully impaired in previous years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to HK$98,214,000
(2018: HK$95,398,000) and intangible assets with definite useful lives
amounted to HK$734,000 (2018: HK$713,000) are attributable to the CGU
of The Dreyfuss Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“Dreyfuss Group”). The
intangible assets of Dreyfuss Group had been fully impaired in previous years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to HK$2,850,000
(2018: HK$2,850,000) and HK$4,396,000 (2018: HK$4,396,000) are
attributable to the CGU of Shun Heng Securities Limited (“Shun Heng”)
and Hong Kong Metasequoia Capital Management Limited (“Metasequoia
Capital”) respectively. Details of the impairment assessment of the CGU of
Shun Heng and Metasequoia Capital are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to HK$42,000,000 are
attributable to the CGU of Ernest Borel Group. The recoverable amount of the
CGU are determined by the directors based on fair value less costs of disposal.
Details of the impairment assessment of the CGU of Ernest Borel Group are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

9. #E & E (&)

R—_ZE—NhFEF+_A=+—"H EFEE
44,843,000/ 7T (= ZF — J\ 4 : 46,064,000
T DREERRFNGTERER mMEREE
7,246,000 7T (= — /\ & : 7,246,000/ 7T)
AR B RIS o

En S BR S EE B E(L B &R 6E A S H
2B AEE 101,452,000 T (Z T — )\ 4 :
100,315,000 7T) - EREERMNEFLEERT
FEEERE -

7 The Dreyfuss Group Limited & £ Kf & 2 &
((wFEEEE])RSEEEMNEGAERAE
FRFHA 2 B E 598,214,000 (ZF— N\
£ : 95,398,000 %) R AI{E A F B IR 2 B
B E 734,000 7T (—F— )\ : 713,000/8
) c RN EEEFEEREFERERE -

BEEERERFH &R EE2,850,000/% 7T
(== — )\ & : 2,850,000 7T) & 4,396,000;8
TL (ZZ—)\4F : 4,396,000/87T) 7 Bl sFEAE
SHHERAR([EF)) REBKCLEEER
ERAR([KEEBE) ZREELEMN - 55
MACEEZRCESX BN 2 AT HFEEH
RERE B 3R M EE 30 ©

B A EIR (8 8 2 | & £ 42,000,000 78 7T
BENMONKEB RS ELEN -ZREE
EEMAIREeREEERBDFER L EK
RETF - ORBREB 2R e EL EMUARER
A BENR A M |mRM 30 -
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30. GOODWILL

The amount of goodwill capitalised as assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position, arising from business combinations, is as follows:

248 Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited B EEKIKE L EHIRAF]

30. &

EBaHELEZHESERGEEVBINARE
NMEBEEWNT

2019 2018
—E-hE ZZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T AT T
At 1 January n—A—H
Gross carrying amount REAE 1,213,345 1,053,412
Accumulated impairment losses EFREEE (141,793) (147,376)
Net carrying amount ARE A 1,071,552 906,036
Year ended 31 December BE+-HA=+—HLFE
Opening carrying amount FHREE 1,071,552 906,036
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 48) W BB BT B8 A B (P RE 48) - 201,454
Exchange realignment ME i, 5 (6,501) (35,938)
Closing carrying amount FEARREE 1,065,051 1,071,552
At 31 December R+=—A=+-—H
Gross carrying amount REEE 1,210,135 1,213,345
Accumulated impairment losses EFREEE (145,084) (141,793)
Net carrying amount ARE A 1,065,051 1,071,552

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to different CGUs
under watch and timepieces segment and banking and financial businesses
segment. The CGUs were identified as follows:

ReEABMNERR

2019
—EB-NF

SUETTRERR - B AL EBER R 2 BN
MBITREREBIBZIRAREELSEM -

2018
—T-N\F

Segment HK$°000 HK$'000
ik} T AT T
Jia Cheng Investment Limited and its subsidiaries Watches and timepieces 611,694 623,243
EHIRE R A A R EWE A R S iR & e 5T EE
Corum Group Watches and timepieces 49,907 49,347
EREE % 5% ] By 5t EE i
Dreyfuss Group Watches and timepieces 95,176 92,446
FiEk R TEER & R AT E mm
Bendura Group Banking business 246,961 244,192
=i E RITHER
Shun Heng Financial business 801 801
B RIS
Metasquoia Capital Financial business 2,279 2,279
KB E SRR
Ernest Borel Group Watches and timepieces 203,317 201,037
BORE & E fE R R R E m
Gross carrying amount 1,210,135 1,213,345

fREARE




30. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The Group's management has engaged Asset Appraisal to perform valuations
for the purpose to assess the recoverable amount of the goodwill arising from
the acquisitions. The keys assumptions as adopted in the valuations, including
the expected profit margins and the managements’ expectations for the future
market performance.

Jia Cheng Investment Limited and its subsidiaries

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a value-in-
use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the directors covering a five-year period, followed by an
extrapolation of expected cash flow at zero growth rate (2018: zero) which
do not exceed the long-term growth rate for the business in which the CGU
operates, and a discount rate of 21% per annum (2018: 19.79%). The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU. The
directors believe that any reasonably possible changes in the key assumptions
on which recoverable amount is based would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable of the CGU as at 31 December
2019 and 2018. No impairment loss was recognised for this CGU since the
acquisition of Jia Cheng Investment Limited and its subsidiaries.

Corum Group
The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Corum Group in the watch and
timepieces segment had been fully impaired in previous years.

Dreyfuss Group
The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Dreyfuss Group in the watch and
timepieces segment had been fully impaired in previous years.

30. v %% (#)

AEEEEEDRERMEETHE UFE
WHERMELARBZ A MBS - AERFRAZ
IZEREEBHERENRERBLH AEKD
BRENTEAR

EHBRERRAGARENBEAT
ZReEEBM 2 RESETAGTEFERE
BEET BRTEECTAESMEBEES AT
ZHBEECHeRETEA - BERTIERE (=
T-N\F:T)(ETHARBREELEBMLE
ZEBZRBAKER) RFHIEE21% (ZF
—\F :19.79% ) BB HAIIR &/ = - FTA B
RE ARG EEBMFTERR ZBRBIATL
RK-BERA BEETERIZMEMEEA RE
SEGzIREeE IR FERERERR
REEXFBFNR_T-NFR-FE-—N\F+=
A=+—B 2R ERIEEEE - WHEEHRIEE
ERAFRIREWBARR  ZBCEEBMIT
ERERREREE -

B
AWEERSEERNERRETERD BELEN
BERNEFE2ERE -

FREEEE
R EmESEERNER NN EmOBESL
NEEBRNEFE2EURE °
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30. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Bendura Group

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a value-in-
use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the directors covering a five-year period, followed by an
extrapolation of expected cash flow at zero growth rate (2018: Zero) which
do not exceed the long-term growth rate for the business in which the CGU
operates, and a discount rate of 14.49% (2018: 12.48%) per annum. The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU. The
directors believe that any reasonably possible changes in the key assumptions
on which recoverable amount is based would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable of the CGU as at 31 December
2019 and 2018. No impairment loss was recognised for this CGU since the
acquisition of Bendura Group.

Shun Heng and Metasequoia Capital

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs are determined by the directors
based on fair value less costs of disposal. The determination of fair value less
costs of disposal is based on the recent similar transactions in the market. The
fair value less cost of disposal of these CGUs are Level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. The key significant unobservable inputs to determine the fair
value less cost of disposal are the discount specific to uncertainty on expected
profitability of those CGUs. The higher in the discount would result in a lower
the fair value less cost of disposal of the CGUs, and vice versa. The directors of
the Company concluded that, based on the assessment result, no impairment
loss on goodwill has been recognised for the year (2018: Nil).

Ernest Borel Group

The recoverable amount of the CGU are determined by the directors based
on fair value less costs of disposal. The determination of fair value less costs of
disposal is based on the market price of Ernest Borel’s share. The fair value less
cost of disposal of the CGU is Level 1 fair value measurement. The directors of
the Company concluded that, based on the assessment result, no impairment
loss on goodwill shall be recognised for the year (2018: Nil).

Goodwill arising from business combinations prior to 2001
Goodwill arising from business combinations prior to 2001 had been
eliminated against the consolidated reserves. As at 31 December 2019, the
carrying amount of goodwill in the consolidated reserves was HK$15,300,000
(2018: HK$15,300,000).

30. v %% (#)

EiEE

ZEReELEBEMZJRESET AT EFERE
BEET BHIEECAEEMEBE AT
ZOBEEcRERETEN  BEREBRET (=
Z-N\F  T)(ETEARBEeEABMLS
CEBZRIERE) REMIAE14.49% (=ZF
—\F : 12.48%) HETTEAIIR @R =E - FTARM
REBRMIEA S EEBMNETRR ZBRIATL
K -FBERA REBEFEBRZZEMEER] L
BEFHS 2 RESBE IS BT REDAERR
REEABMRZZE-—NERZZT-N\F+=
A=+—BzakERELE AREEE
B AR TR Z IR S E A B 2R ERE -

EERAKZEE
ZERCEABU RO RRAEERER
FEBREEXRAEE - BE R FERDEKRA
TDENERTNS L2 BURS - ZEREEL
BUZAFERBERARSE=ZEBRELEQF
EFfE -BEAFERLERAZEZERT
ARG ABEARSEReELENRBAN
THRERRZFEURRE MR REE
EBMZ AFEBEERABE  RZIFA -
RRREEZZ G e ERFHHER  NFE
WERRHEBRESE (T /\F &) -

R R 3% 55
ReELFM 2 AIRE S HEHEEZQFER
HEKRAETE o BE R FEREERATIER
WRBERD 2 TIGER -REELEEMZAF
BREEKRARE-—EATEFE - NRARE
E2Ewme ERFHEER  AFEHEARR
EEREEE(ZE—\F &) -

—EE-FAXKEHELEZEE
R-ZZT—FREBAHEEZHBERES
FEEEHE R=ZFE—NE+=ZA=+—8 "1}
RAERENZEEREER 15,300,000 %57 (
T — \£F : 15,300,000/ 7T) °

Z o)



31. OTHER ASSETS 31. H A E &

2019 PAONES]
—g-nE -—T)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Other receivables H 1 & Yk 172,260 174,845
Dividend receivable from an associate (note 47.1) FEM — R H & A RIARE
(BsE47.1) 5,000 5,000
Amounts due from an associate (note 47.1) JE U — F BE i A B3R
(BEE47.1) 18,315 18,280
Amounts due from related companies (note 47.1) e R E A R IA (MiE47.1) 1,065 1,065
Prepayments AR IR 118,395 111,285
Deposits i 67,107 37,450
Management and performance fees receivables JEWERRELNE 10,182 12,606
Other interest receivables H th & IR B 24,387 36,128
Settlement and clearing account R R AEERP 160 911
416,871 397,570
Other receivables represented cash advance to staff, VAT receivables, other HiERRANERNE L 2R - HBEHER
advances and statutory deposits for financial business. I HB R R E@EBECFER
As at 31 December 2019, the amount of the Group’s other assets expected to RZB—NE+ZA=1+—H0 AEEHME
be recovered or recognised as expense after one year is HK$8,100,000 (2018: EEGTHER—FRKEXERLSA I 2258
HK$17,484,000). The remaining other assets are expected to be recovered or /48,100,000 7T (==& — /\FF : 17,484,000/
recognised as expense within one year. TL) o R N EM B ETBERN —F RN E S ERE
X °
Movements in the loss allowance for the other assets are as follows: HithEE 2 BRBEZeSHmT
2019 PAONES]
—ZE-hF —T—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx T
At 1 January m—H—H 5,313 -
Effect on the adoption of HKFRS 9 PN B B 5 s 2RI 5 955
2R - 5313
Expected credit losses for the year FANEHBEEREE 2,167 =
Exchange realignment ME H 8 B (369) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~H 7111 5313
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32. DUE TO CLIENTS 32. AT % F K JE

2019 2018
=B-AF —Z-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Due to clients — precious metals ERER — E2BRIA 56,762 73,950

Other amounts due to clients, mainly bank deposits HAth FE 7 % = 5B
(EERRITHE) 11,906,290 12,430,641

11,963,052 12,504,591

33. TRADE PAYABLES 33. WEfHIE 3%
2019 AONES
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Trade payables arising from watches and timepiece business 8k & FF et EE MEBEL 2
(Note a) FEATER R (Mtata) 304,944 280,567
Trade payables arising from financial business (note b): © RIS E A 2 IR BR K
(B 3ED) -
— Cash clients “HEeRP 101,812 36,496
— Margin clients —REEEF 1,269 2,294
— Clearing house —EEF 3,402 4,749
106,483 43,539
Trade payables JE - BR 5K 411,427 324,106
(@ The credit terms of trade payables arising watches and timepieces () BERNMBTERERELEZENERRZE
business vary according to the terms agreed with different suppliers. EEAR 1S B N [ FE R S IR T & o
Trade payables to watches and timepieces business are non-interest BN EMER BN ATETE
bearing.
Ageing analysis of trade payables arising from watches and timepieces SESR MBS T E mESFTE A 2 B BRFUR
business as at the reporting dates, based on the invoice dates, is as BEZSHHNREB ZEBDITOT :
follows:
2019 2018
=E-hF —ZT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT T
1 to 3 months 1 ZE31E A 278,983 215,854
4 to 6 months 4% 618 A 6,977 25,151
Over 6 months 38 6 1E A 18,984 39,562
304,944 280,567
(b)  The settlement term of trade payables arising from securities dealing of (b)) BEEELHELELCENERAE
the financial business is “T+2". Trade payables arising from securities HAR AT+2 ] R [T+2 | HIR - BAEES
dealing of financial business during the “T+2" period are current B FREA T RENEESBANE R [T+2
whereas those which are outstanding after the”T+2" period are HARS 1% (MR (8B T FER RS BIEIR Bk

repayable on demand. &8 o



34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The contract liabilities mainly represented the advance consideration received
from customers. As at 31 December 2019, the aggregated amount of
transaction price allocated to performance obligations under the Group’s
existing contract is HK$18,565,000 (2018: HK$30,918,000).The Group will
recognise the expected revenue in future when or as the goods or services are
completed, which is expected to occur within the next 12 month.

Movement of contract liabilities

34. 5 #A1H

AHABEZARERPUBZENNRE R
ZT-—NF+_A=+—"H "EEXEERE
BHATRAEBETEZR ZEKEE A 18,565,000
L (ZZ— )\ : 30,918,000/ 7T) ° K HEK -
N ER B #8731 Bt FE K 1R AL 7 i B IR % TSR TR HR
WA - BNTEER AR AR 121 A 31T o

BHEEEH

2019 2018

—®-hE T NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Balance as at 1 January N—A—R &8 30,918 =
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising FRERW=EEHNBERD

revenue during the year (30,792) =

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receipts in advance & 7& g 2k 18 {5 & 4 & & 1 A0 18,588 30,918

Exchange realignment BE 5 2R (149) =

Balance as at 31 December R+=—A=+—B2z#&%% 18,565 30,918

35. CORPORATE BONDS

35.

o vl fE 27

2019
ZEBE-AF

2018
—T-N\F
HK$'000
TR

HK$°000
TET

At 1 January n—A—H 760,244 732,978
Amortisation of transaction costs R G5 2,729 4,243
Sales of corporate bonds HERNEIESR - 27,566
Repayment of the bonds BEES (756,022) =
Exchange realignment ME 3 3 & (6,951) (4,543)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—*H - 760,244

On 24 July 2014, the Group issued CHF denominated corporate bonds of
principal amount of CHF100,000,000 bears interest at 3.625% per annum.
The interests of the corporate bonds are paid in arrears on 24 July every year.
The corporate bonds are listed in SIX Swiss Exchange in Switzerland and
guaranteed by the Company. The corporate bonds has been on 24 July 2019.
The Group has fully repaid the corporate bond upon its maturity during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

RZF—MNFELAZ+HAE  NEEBETHRLT
JEBRB A EE S - AN B84 100,000,000 i 0%
BR  IRFHFE3.625% 5B c ZEFREIEFH T L
REFLtA-tHBSBXT - ZERFMESHF
RIELTBFR I EMEAARRRER - %ZE
NRIBEAER-_ZE—hAhFLtA-—TIOHEEIH -
HE-_Z—NWF+-_A=+—BHILFE &%
EREHEEINHANQFES -
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35. CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)

Net proceeds from the issue of the corporate bonds, as reduced by
transaction cost, amounted to approximately CHF97,295,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$762,913,000).

The Group may, at any time after the date of issuance and prior to the date
of maturity, redeem the whole corporate bonds at 100% of the total principal
amounts together with payments of interest accrued up to the dates of such
early redemption by serving a prior notice to a period of not less than 30 days
nor more than 60 days.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had sold certain
re-purchased corporate bonds with principal amount of CHF3,460,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,728,000) at the consideration of
CHF3,440,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$27,566,000) in the public
market.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had not
repurchased any corporate bonds.

36. BORROWINGS

35. »wl ez (4)

BORABEEZHBREFE (HERS
BXZR) A& #997,295,0008 £ 3% B8 (A& R4
762,913,000 7T) ©

AEBARETAEREREMEZEHAR - 2
HARDR30 8 R TZR60H 2 BEBA - EAR
SR 100% BRI EEZIEFER B HIERE
FEFRIBRER 2 BARESH

HE-_Z—N\E+_A=+—HLFE K&
BERN A ARMSHE AL % A3,460,000 % =
SERR (A& A #4927,728,00087T) 2 & THE R
AfES - R{8 /53,440,000 158 (FBE R L
27,566,000 7C) ©

BE_Z-NFE_ZE-/\E+-H=+—H
HFE AEBYWEBEEMNRRIES

36. 1 &

2019 2018

—B-nEFE ZT-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Bank overdrafts (note 36.1) #R17E % (M13E36.1) 48,294 14,822
Bank borrowings (note 36.1) RITIEE (F15E36.1) 1,676,685 1,030,774
Margin loan payable (note 36.2) ERFE2ER(MIFE36.2) 15,383 1,593
1,740,362 1,047,189

36.1 Bank overdrafts and bank borrowings

Including in the bank borrowings, there is a syndicated loan with
outstanding principal amount of HK$817,702,000 as at 31 December
2019. On 16 July 2019, the Group entered into a facility agreement with
a syndicated of banks (“Syndicated Banks”), in which Syndicated Banks
agreed to grant a term loan facility in the amount up to US$150,000,000
to the Group for a term of 36 months. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group has drawn down the facilities of HK$817,702,000 (equivalent to
US$105,000,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the amount of the Group’s bank overdrafts
and bank borrowings repayable within one year or on demand is
HK$1,724,979,000 (2018: HK$823,493,000).

36.1 RITEZRBITHEE
R=ZZF—-—NF+=—A=+—8 " 8Bi7EE
BIEHMAEEARS A817,702,000 7% JTTH
REER -R_ZT—NLFLA+/B K
SEEFERIT([RERTD I ZME
# - BERTRERNASEER L THRE
= % 150,000,000 7T * AHI361E A - ®
—E-NFE+-A=+—0  RNEBEER
817,702,0007% 7T (48 & 7 105,000,000 3
JL)REE o

RN_ZE—NE+-_A=+—H8 ANEEA
R—FRNEERIZREREEZRITEIR
IRITIEE S5 51,724,979,000/8 T (==
— J\4F : 823,493,000/ 7T) °



36. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

36.1 Bank overdrafts and bank borrowings (Continued)
Based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements
and ignore the effect of any repayment on demand clause. Borrowings
are repayable as follows:

36. fi £ (#)

36.1 RITEXRRITEE (HK)
BERNERHHEZ A BERAE BT
SRIZEREMNERZTE - HRART
IESE

2019 2018
—2-nF ZT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERx T

Borrowings payable: EREE :
Within one year or on demand R—F R EK 1,724,979 823,493
In the second year MEZF - 103,671
In the third to fifth year RE=ZFFRF = 105,539
After fifth year FRER - 12,893
- 222,103
1,724,979 1,045,596

The abovementioned borrowings are charged at floating rates ranging
from 1.00% to 5.94% (2018: 2.53% to 7.00%) per annum.

At the reporting dates, the Group’s borrowings were secured by:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

corporate guarantees provided by certain subsidiaries within the
Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2018;

entire equity interest of certain subsidiaries within the Group as at
31 December 2019;

pledged bank deposits of HK$111,763,000 as at 31 December
2019;

a legal charge over the Group’s land and buildings with the carrying
amount of HK$95,180,000 (2018: HK$120,711,000) as at 31
December 2019; and

certain of the Group’s trade receivables with the carrying amounts
of HK$13,484,000 (2018: HK$14,639,000) as at 31 December
2019.

FTREERZHFENEN T1.00%=E
5.94% (—Z— )\ : 2.53% £ 7.00%) &t
B o

RBEBE  AEEZEBE NHIZIEE
A

() AEERETHBRARANR_-Z—NF
RZB—N\F+ZA=+—HFE#H
ZREER

(i) AEEZETHEBQ —hF
+-HA=+—H E’\Jiuﬁﬂxﬁé ;

iy R—ZE—hAhFE+-_BA=+—8
111,763,000 B CH E EHIRITIE

vy AEBR=_Z—NF+=-A=+—8
BRTE B /4 95,180,000 T (=T — N\
£ :120,711,000787L) 2B T L&
BFREERRL &

v) AEER-ZE—HAF+_A=+-—
B 2 BRTE 8 A 13,484,000 7T (= F
— J\F : 14,639,000/8 70) 2 % T f&
IR AR 3K o
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30. fif & (#)
36.1 ﬁﬁ’-}iﬁi&iﬂ TEHE (&)

36. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
36.1 Bank overdrafts and bank borrowings (Continued)

36.2

Certain of bank overdrafts and bank borrowings contain clause which
give the banks the right at their sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time irrespective of whether the Group has complied
with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.
Borrowings due for repayment after one year which contain a repayment
on demand clause and are expected to be settled within one year.
The carrying amounts of the bank overdrafts and bank borrowings are
approximate to their fair value.

As at 31 December 2019, one of the financial covenants as stipulated
in the relevant agreements in respect of borrowings with outstanding
principal of approximately HK$973,702,000 was not satisfied.
Accordingly, from accounting perspective, the aforesaid borrowings
would be regarded as immediately due and payable should the lenders
exercise their rights under the agreements as at 31 December 2019.
The relevant banks have granted waivers to the Group in respect of the
unsatisfied financial covenants before the date of authorisation of the
financial statements.

Margin loan payable

The interest rate of the margin loan payable is 4.84% (2018: 6.59%) per
annum and repayable on demand. At 31 December 2019, margin loan
payable was secured by the Group’s trading portfolio investments with
the carrying amount of HK$109,815,000 (2018: HK$35,749,000). The
carrying amount of the margin loan payable is approximate to its fair

ETRITBEXRBITEERSHTRITH
ERPMERI EAIREN 2 2R EEZ
B - AN R A 28T 225 M
BFFBIENEME - R —F&E ‘JHWEHZf
EXNDBREREMNGE - BEMR—
FREM - RITBEXRRITEEREEE
HRAFERS -

R-ZE—hhE+-_A=+—8 AEEX
RRENFOIRITEERE@EHEET —EM
BHESRE  EREFNREERSNA
973,702,000 87T - Eitt - #E2FHAE N

T-NEF+ZA=+—BMERARE
% ZITIERER - &%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬂ
HY o PAZR B S SRR L TIZS AT - B AR
ﬁEM*L&%%%%m$EW$%I&
THEAR ©

ERRESEX

ENRESERZENERE5484% (==
—\F :6.59%) ' WIZBEREE -N_F
—NE+=—A=1+—H8 ENRELER
LAZR &2 B BRI {H /4 109,815,000 8 7T (=&
— \4F : 35,749,000 7T) ZR ZHEEKE

value. As at 31 December 2019, margin loan payable of HK$ 15,383,000 BRoEMNMRESEFERAEHRAEATE
(2018: HK$1,593,000) are attributable to financial business. HE R-ZE—HhF+=-_HA=1+—H " &

R &4 B $ 15,383,000 T (=T — )\
F 1 1,593,000787C) DARESBERS -

37. PROVISIONS 37. Bt
2019 2018
=B-AFE —ZE)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHTT
Provision for litigation and tax risks %ﬁ%’&&ﬁﬁﬂ B e
At 1 January R—A— 476 721
Released and credited to profit or loss BB R ‘I'J\/ﬁnf'ﬁzféﬂé (394) (320)
Exchange realignment PE 3 5 (82) 75
At 31 December R+—A=+—H - 476
Maturity of the provisions BEDIEA
Within one year —FN - 476
During the year ended 31 December 2019, reversal of provision for litigation BE_T—NF+-_A=1+—HILFE BLEF
risks of HK$394,000 (2018: HK$320,000) has been recognised in the FAE R B 394,000 7T (ZZF— /A4 : 320,000
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. BT DREEE2AWRARTIER -



38. LEASE LIABILITIES 38. Ml & A i

The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial position in FANFAGEVBMRARABAEERGERE
respect of the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during ENSEAREEHOT

the year is as follows:

Land and Motor
buildings vehicles Total
T REF RE Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—H - - -
Recognition upon initial application IR ER AN B 75 & 2 Bl
of HKFRS 16 2516 5% 12 HE R 90,627 - 90,627
Opening balance under HKFRS 16 as at RZZE—NF—HA—HBRE
1 January 2019, as restated BB REZERIZE 1698
FY & - KET 90,627 - 90,627
Additions RE 18,019 2,143 20,162
Interest expenses FERY 4,549 84 4,633
Lease modification THEENR 10,099 - 10,099
Lease payments HERH (41,822) (291) (42,113)
Exchange realignment FE H 564 3 567
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—h&+-A=+—~ 82,036 1,939 83,975
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38. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 38. #l & A fd (4])
Future lease payments are due as follows: ARAERN KRB EAR LT -
2019
S
HK$'000
FHET
Minimum lease payment due SEBE R HRR
— Within one year _—&ERK 42,987
— In the second to fifth years, inclusive -E_EENF(BRMERREE
N) 40,190
— After fifth years ~REMNE 16,584
99,761
Less: future interest expenses B RRFE Y (15,786)
Present value of lease liabilities HeEasEE 83,975
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: RAKRMBENZBESTAOT :
2019
—B-NF
HK$'000
FHET
Current liabilities mEAaE 40,337
Non-current liabilities ERFaR 43,638
83,975

2019
—g-nE

HK$°000
FEx

Short term leases expenses AT ER Y 16,892
Aggregate undiscounted commitments for short term leases S HATH & R AL I AL 4258 3,901




39. DEFERRED TAX 39. WERE B IH

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability FEERIBR B EERAASBEBERDERE
method using the applicable tax rates prevailing in the jurisdictions in which BRBRTERAGERERZHETHEE -

the Group operates.

Details of the Group’s deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and AEEZERRELEGIBEEE, (BB RE#
movements are as follows: BEEEHEH ST
Temporary
Revaluation Revaluation difference
of of property, arising  Decelerated Other
intangible ~ plant and from bond tax  temporary
assets  equipment  Taxlosses  repurchase depreciation differences Total
BEES
B EftNE Btz  HEHE At
BREE HERRE HEEE ENER ik ENER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TATL AT TAT TAL AT ThL
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E-HA-H (981) (11,556) 4,795 (168) - 6,622 (1,288)
Effect of the adoption of HKFRS 9 RAERUBREEE
9RMTE - - - - 2,289 - 2289
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 48) iR & 2w (fifE48) (10416) - - - (566) (21424) (32,406)
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss (note 11) REHSBERA/
(%) (R 11) - 385 (246) 446 378 358 1321
(Charged)/credited to other comprehensive income REM2ERAF
(%) /FA - (22212) - - - 1,169 (21,043)
Exchange realignment fE A - 207 43) (112) 3 140 195
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-\E+2R
=+-Ak
ZE-NE-A-H (11,397) (33,176) 4,506 166 2,104 (13,135) (50,932)
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss (note 11) PNEFISEEREA/
(%) (Hrzx11) - 319 (242) (166) 128 M2 511
Credited to other comprehensive income REMZERARZA - - - - - 138 134
Exchange realignment [ i A (118) 363 47 - @ 536 824
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NETZA
=+-R (11,515) (32,434) 431 - 2,228 (10,845) (48,255)
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39. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of deferred tax balances for financial reporting

purposes:

39. ELE BiH (4])

RRFEEMBARRT 2R HTREREE
ERBEE TEE A THAARMBERE 2R
FERS IR GEER AT -

2019 2018

—E-hFE ZZT—N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx Tt

Deferred tax assets FIEFTH & = 11,626 9,437
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEEE (59,881) (60,369)
(48,255) (50,932)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has estimated unused tax losses arising
in Hong Kong of HK$371,528,000 (2018: HK$357,820,000), subject to the
agreement of Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has estimated unused tax losses in
United Kingdom of HK$171,887,000 (2018: HK$159,848,000), subject to the
agreement of tax bureau in United Kingdom, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. No deferred tax assets (2018: nil) have been recognised in respect of
these estimated unused tax losses as these were incurred by the companies
that have been loss-making for some time.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has estimated unused tax losses in
Switzerland of HK$1,211,787,000 (2018: HK$1,146,355,000), subject to
the agreement of tax bureau in Switzerland, that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets of HK$4,311,000 (2018: HK$4,506,000) have been
recognised in respect of these estimated unused tax losses to the extent of
deferred tax liabilities recognised in respect of revaluation of identifiable assets
as a result of the acquisitions. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of the estimated unused tax losses as these were incurred by the
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time. These estimated
unused tax losses will be available for offsetting against future taxable profit
for a maximum period of five years from the reporting date.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends
by the Company to its shareholders during the year.

As at 31 December 2019, deferred taxation has not been provided in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounted to
HK$2,152,047,000 (2018: HK$2,081,049,000) as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

MRZZE-AE+-A=1+—8 ZXEERES
EAHT A E) AR I8 E 18 371,528,000 7T (=
= — J\ £ : 357,820,000/8 7T) * B FHIESE /D
ek FTEBRAEREELESIBARIZBER
FERRTHE = F o

RZE-hE+-_A=+—08 ZXEBREH
EAEGFTRE) AT IAE18 171,887,000 T (=
T — J\4£ : 159,848,000/87T) » A FHEERF
ERE TERBAEREELESBERARZ
HEEERB T - WERZSHTABATE
EEEREEHBEEE(ZS—N\F 1 &) )
HREBEREEAR —BREEARBERZ

AR ¢

R_FB—NEF+-_A=+—8 A£BRKL
ELEHFTAREARIEEE1,211,787,000% 7T
(ZZ— )\4 : 1,146,355,000787C) * A5 HEE
THBBiHE  TREREELAEEBARZAH
BERFT R - KB EGHAIHREEZERE
RELEFHBABLR RS HERDAFE
EEERZELERIBEEF4311,00087T (=
T — \FF : 4,506,000/870) ° W B 5L xS 1A 5T
REBREBERRELCHEEE  JHHARE
BEERELER —BREERZESEEZHEBEA
Al e ZE M A AR ESEREEHEER
ABFREABRTAFZ ABERB ST o

FA - AR R I E A E IR SRS M A
EERMASHER -

R-ZZE—NE+_A=+—H0 KAHBER
R E P BB A R AT EUS A E S 2
R 2 582,152,047,00008 7T (ZF — )\ & ¢
2,081,049,000%8 7t) E H EE T IBEEAE - R E
AREERMIEHIRO R EE KA ML
TRFE RN A B RED -



40. OTHER LIABILITIES 40. - fth £1 {5

2019 PAONES]
—g-nE —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Accruals fEEtE 105,794 106,653
Due to associates (note 47.1 (jii)(a) and (c)) FETEE & R R FIA
(K 5E47.1Gi@) K (0) - 25,230
Warranty provision RERE 5,485 5,183
Net defined benefit obligations ERRBAMEEFE 90,908 83,140
Accrued interests and commission s R ERAE 15,994 18,636
Other tax payable H A FE S FR R 23,457 40,054
Interest payable FE A7 2 47 20
Commission payable A 42,562 41,943
Other payables H Ath FE A 5k 212,109 228,072
496,356 548,931
Other payables represented accrued management and performance fees, HtERREAIEEABERBEAOE « BT RE
accrued services fee, accrued salaries and bonus, accrued audit fee and B BT IERMA - B FEREGEM
accrued other operating expenses. HEMX -
As at 31 December 2019, the amount of the Group’s other liabilities RZZE-—NFTZA=+—0H A5EEH#E
expected to be due after more than one year is HK$97,136,000 (2018: m—FRBH 2 B E® %R 97,136,000 %
HK$86,787,000). The remaining other liabilities are expected to be due within T (ZZF— )\ : 86,787,000/ 7T) ° 88 N EAth
one year. BETERER —FAEZ|H -
41. SHARE CAPITAL 41. A
2018
—E-hF —T—N\F
Number of Number of
shares shares
% 13 2 B R EE
‘000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR FER F AR T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at 1 January R—A—H & +=A
and 31 December =+—H
BREEC.108 T
2 EBR 6,000,000 600,000 6,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR :
At 1 January E/\*H H 4,351,889 435,189 4,350,314 435,032
Share option scheme — proceeds from shares  =REE I D HE A & —
issued (note (a)) TTRR D T8 RRIR
(Bt &E (a)) - - 1,575 157
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 4,351,889 435,189 4,351,889 435,189
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41. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Note:

(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, 1,575,000 new ordinary shares of
the Company were issued upon the exercise of share options. The total proceeds
received for the issues of shares under the share option scheme are HK$511,000.
The amount of HK$354,000, representing the excess of the proceeds received over
the nominal value of the ordinary shares of HK$157,000, has been included in
share premium account.

Details of the share options exercised during the years ended 31 December 2018
are summarised in note 42. All shares issued in both years in relation to the share
option scheme have the same rights as the Company’s other issued ordinary
shares.

No share option has been exercised during the year ended 31 December
2019.

42. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

At the general meeting held on 30 May 2008, the shareholders of the
Company terminated the option scheme adopted on 25 May 2001 and
adopted a new share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for a period
of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.

The directors may, at their discretion, invite the eligible participants to take
up options to subscribe for shares. The eligible participants include (i) any full-
time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries; (i) any directors (including executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; and (iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the share
capital of the Company in issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme if the grant of such option will result in the
limit being exceeded. Subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders,
the aggregate number of the Company’s shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue
from time to time.

41. B A (#])

Wi

(@ HE_Z-—NFE+_A=t+—HILEE &R
AT R R (D AR 21T 1,575,000 A 3T & i
& o BEAR IR SRR AR D #E AT 21 B 1T AR 10 URER 2 FiT
S TBAEE 511,000 7T © A8(354,00078 7T
ABUATSFIEE L XA E(E 157,000 T2
SH  ZEFBECAH ARG EER -

HE-Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE %17
e RIB AT BN M 42 Bt o BB 7 A {E
FEANBTZEMD (BREROESIFRH) &
AAREMBERITEBRZARSER -

BE_ZT-NF T -_A=t—HIFEL
ERBA A REIEITE -

42. Jie o i 18

RZZBENFERA=THBTZBRERE I -
ARABRREUIENR-_ZZ-FRA_+HAK
N 2 TR Bt B T 8 QL BR A FT R B A () R AT B
([RERMDEE])  BRMBMETRH10
o

E=ANBERFAER2EEABRBROE -
NRERD - B ER2EEBE)ARRARE
EAMB AR ZEMNE2BEFRES - THA
BERSRAE  (NARBLEEMKEREZ
ERNEF(BRUTES FNTEFRBEULF
MITESR)  R>(NARBFREEFMBERRZ
TR - ERAL HER FERPRRE-

RIZRBR A EE > RBBROESEET
R RBRFITE A AT RER D EE
TEEA FHRTZEERNEE  TREBR
DRI B EITIRAR Z 30% - i #% i 2 BB
EEBEE A LR - AIASRERERN
AT EIIR KRB MM - FRAEAR D BRI /E
S RIBRBIR D EST IR E R BFITEZA
B RARITE BB D EEITERER THTZA
RERMDEE - TRBBARETEDETR
19.230% °



42. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options and the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme (including both exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Where any further grant of options to a grantee would result in
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
proposed to be granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant representing in aggregate
over 1% of the shares in issue, such further grant requires approval of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting with such grantee and his
associates abstaining from voting.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to each of any eligible
persons (including those cancelled, exercised and outstanding options), in any
12 months period up to the date of the latest grant shall not exceed 1% of
the Company’s shares in issue provided that the number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted to each
of the independent non-executive directors or substantial shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates in the 12 months period up to
the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s shares in issue and
with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s independent shareholders. Any further grant of options in excess
of such limit requires the approval of the shareholders in general meeting in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and should not be later than 10 years from the date of the
acceptance of the share options (the “Option Period”).

The subscription price is equal to the higher of (i) the nominal value of the
share of the Company; (ii) the closing price per share of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; and
(iii) the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

The fair value of share options granted is recognised in profit or loss taking
into account the probability that the options will vest over the vesting period.
Upon the exercise of the options the resulting shares issued are recorded as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded in
the share premium account. At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve is transferred to
share premium account. When the share options are forfeited or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to retained profits. Lapsed options are deleted from
the outstanding options prior to their exercise date. All equity-settled share-
based compensation expense is settled in equity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

42. Jie oy il 1 (4)

FEERI121E A BERERBROE B RE A
AR Z BB E (BRETEREARTT
82 REBA 1) TTRF B 1T R AR T 31T
ZBN BB PSBBARRREHITRAZ1% °
fisd [ — B AR A — PR N BB - BG%
AANTRIEZERDEFT BN 12EAHEEE
E—SREBH(BEER) TRERRZHE
RZFBRER O (BEEITE  EHAER
TERBR M) 12 - 2 BT RBEITRO 28
BEABBERITRN 1% BHEE—FRER
BRI B ER IR ARG EAR R BRI -
BRAARARBZBRALARERR

FEEM 128 A MEEZRER D B HRERE
iy E RS e ERALTREZRERN
#(BHREEHE TERARTEZRBRN
B ITERERTRETRITZRDESEE
THEBARRREHTERMZ 1%  ERREE
BRRL B #1288 BRRAREEBEILIF
HITEEFRIERRIBEZE 2 EABHEA
ITRERS FREZMERBR M EEITER
BERTRSTERTZBNBBBEAARE#
T 01% REEBBSBEET  BRAKT
WA FRERR BB ILIRILAE » EffE—2
RhBefBREIRERNELBRE LT
RAIZ REEBCRNRA S LR -

PR ABROEZTERNRESTETE BT
FEER BRI A HEEE B HR 1R 10 5 ([ R BB AR D
REHAME D) -

RBEHEERTISEZESE () ARAK
MEE : (AR RRMNREF L BBRER IS
BRERMRZESREHIE R i) ZBRELE R
HiRT A2 % B BRI B R AT B RERPTR
Z BB EHETIE -

PR R AR 0 #E 2 N B F M aR B A A 4
REBEHERE 2 AL SRR M KB IRFER ©
RABBR D EEITER  IEEZEHTRND
BRMEERLRABIMNEA - MERITEERH
Betn i E < Z R AFF ARMDRER - BEKRNK
RERETTERS - ERTN R EFHETERZ
PRESEBRERMEER - ERBERMNERR
Wk it fEm B BB RTT R - SRR R D
REGTRAZFXBEEREERERF - K17
ERHAERERERNEES B HARTTERE
R in e SRR o P A SARR AN 48 5 2 BR 17 6 18 1
SRR ARBEYEEAEREERE
NBREBEKAEERERAE -
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42. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

The grantees may exercise the options in whole or in part by giving exercise
notice to the grantor at any time during the Option Period provided that the

grantees shall exercise the options to acquire the option shares in accordance

with the following vesting schedule:

Vesting schedule

One year after the grant date
Two years after the grant date
Three years after the grant date

Maximum percentage
of option shares
comprised in an option
which may be exercised

30%
35%
35%

Details of the share options granted up to the reporting date are as follows:

Date of grant:
Exercisable period:

Exercise price:

9 December 2008

9 December 2009 to
7 January 2019
HK$0.325

The share option scheme has been expired on 30 May 2018.

Share options and weighted average exercise price are as follows for the

reporting periods presented:

42. Joe o wi A (48)
AT RER DA ETHERET A
BHTEBA  TEEHRHD RBEROE
WA A R I T 51155 8 S RO R 1T (2 3R BB AR
{AHERE AR I RIS HERR1D

A 4T RS MR 1D
FrEeRBERmoE
FERER BH&EEEIL
BRHBHE—F 30%
BRHBHERE 35%
REBHE=F 35%

HERSARIERLRBROEFBOT

B BE —ZEENF+=ANH
T —ZEENF+=_AAHEHZE

—h&—AtH
TIfE(E : 0.325/8 7T

REBEROHEAZEN T N\FAA=1+THE

o

e 29702 RIER O R AT 1T E 25
mF -

AONES

—F-N\F
Weighted
average
exercise price
HETETTE(E
HK$
BT

Number ‘000
HETHh

Outstanding at 1 January W—A—B#EKTE 7,055 0.325

Exercised 2176 (1,575) 0.325

Expired 2 & (5,480) 0.325

Outstanding at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H = —

B ARATE

Exercisable at the end of the year RERAITE = -
All the share options granted were expired during the year ended 31 FHEREREROEERBE=_E—N\F+=
December 2018. The weighted average share price for share options exercised A=+t—BLEEER #E_Z—-N\F+=

during the year at the date of exercise was HK$1.74 per share for the year

ended 31 December 2018.

The Group did not grant any share options for the year ended 31 December

2018.

A=+—HI5FE ERFRTERZRERN
RERTTE B 2 i AR B A A 1.74787T

BE_ZT-/\Ft-_A=+—RHLFE A&
Bt A (T R B A 4



42. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)  42. Ji i #ii & (%)

Movements of the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31 December REBEE_Z-—N\F+A=+—HILFE &
2018 are as follows: BIROETEZEFHNT -

AONES
—E-N\F
Number of share options

REBRMEE

At 1 January Exercised during Expired during At 31 December

2018 the year the year 2018
—\F

Name or category of participants —A—H REATE REAER +=

Other eligible employees Eﬁﬂéﬁ*ﬁﬁé

In aggregate AF 1,575,000 (1,575,000) - -

Other eligible persons HithG&E®RA LT

In aggregate A5 5,480,000 - (5,480,000) -

Total S 7,055,000 (1,575,000) (5,480,000) =

43. RESERVES 43. fifi

Group rEE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein during the year REERFEZHEREREAZHNGEE
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. wEBKRPET -
The share premium account mainly includes shares issued at a premium. B aEBREERFEREEETZRG -
The share options reserve represents the cumulative expenses recognised on REBRMDEREEREBHERES XL RE
the granting of share options to the employees over the vesting period. IR TER RETFX o
Other reserve represents (i) the cumulative expenses recognised on the HtFEEROR—BBLE=F KO RERD
granting of share options to an independent third party and (i) the effect EERERZ 25T () EIFERERETR
of transactions with non-controlling interests as disclosed in note 49 to the S22 (RNERE M EHRERW T4 E) K i)
consolidated financial statements and (jii) the effect of the redemption of EBRIABMRES CFE -

convertible bond.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior RBEFERENBRRMES 2 ETEED
years remain eliminated against the consolidated reserves. NGk

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain of the Group’s subsidiaries RRABNER  ANEEE TR BN 2 S
established in the PRC are required to transfer part of their profits after tax to ANEIREL R A9 IRAT - BREI KRB &R
the statutory reserve before profit distributions are made. The amounts of the FEREETERE SR EARZERBER
transfers are subject to the approval of the boards of the directors of these RAZEFERTAZEEHER A RER
subsidiaries, in accordance with their joint venture agreements and/or articles AL E X ERE LA DK - RS BFIR
of association. The statutory reserve is non-distributable and has restricted use. il o

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the RIEM T 423 NPAERA 2 € 5T IR @ INERER
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations in accordance BIEBREBINEEIBEMERAEEZFBER
with the accounting policy adopted in note 4.23. R
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43. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Group (Continued)

Investment revaluation reserve represents gains or losses arising on
remeasuring financial assets classified as available-for-sale financial assets at
fair value.

Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve represents gains or
losses on remeasuring the financial assets classified as financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

Revaluation reserve for property, plant and equipment is the revaluation gain
arising from the transfer of property, plant and equipment to investment
properties.

Company
The reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as
follows:

43. fifi i (#8)

REHE (&)
BRESHFERERAFERERAHLESRE
BEZCRMEESNEMEL 2 Wat s EiE o

BAFESAREBEERAFBEENAED
BREBEATEFARMCEARAZEREEL
EREEZKEREE

MY BERRESHEEEAEDE BER
SRR TIRA YRR A Y Bl -

¥/
AATR=B-NER=B—N\E+=A=+—
A2 pEEImT

Fair value
through
other (Accumulated)

Share premium  Share option  comprehensive Other losses/retained

account reserve  income reserve reserve profits

BATEHA

aBRGE it (B 68/
RS 56 GEMAEE  RbEE  REEW
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00
A AR A T B

At 1 January 2018 R-ZE-\E—HF—H 771,202 1,070 107,999 22,693 (121,855) 781,109
Proceeds from shares issued under share 1R 7288 B {7 151 213
option scheme TR{A 2 iEFIE 354 - = = - 354
Exercise of share options I RERHE 239 (239) = = = =
Lapse of share-option RERDERN - (831) = = 831 =
Profit and total comprehensive AEFRNREE
income for the year oN - - (12,197) - 292,370 280,173
2017 final dividend (note 12) “TtERERE
(FizE12) (89,767) - - - (171,346) (261,113)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\E+ZA
1 January 2019 =t-Ak
“E-A5-A-H 682,028 - 95,802 22,693 - 800,523
Profit and total comprehensive AERRNRZERA
income for the year Fak ] - - (182,185) - 142,330 (39,855)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZA
=t-H 682,028 - (86,383) 22,693 142,330 760,668

Under the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which a dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

RIERSHEAREE 228 (— R —FE3 (&
AR BEEE RIER])  ARBRMDIEERZE
EAMEDIKTARBRIR - HEEREZEDIRK
S BHHE  NARARRENEEENRBER
BRI ZET



44. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS/ 44 BEMBLH R
COMMITMENTS

44,1 At 31 December 2018 and 2019, total future minimum lease receipts by BN RZZF-NFRZF-—NF+ZA=1—
the Group under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: B REFAIFHEZKEHL  AEEE

WARFESEAEREETELT

2019 2018
—2-nF ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx FAT
Within one year —&FRN 3,657 7,756
In the first to second year E—FRE_F 1,343 7,325
In the second to third year BF_FERE=F 1,221 6,226
In the third to forth year FE=FZFNF 1,221 6,157
In the forth to fifth year FENFEFERF 1,221 3,800
After fifth year hE% - 949
8,663 32,213
The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease AEBRBCEMNLHBEES TWE
arrangements, with leases negotiated for initial terms ranging from one FREZNPHAR—FERAFIE - %
to five years. None of the leases include contingent rentals. SN BESAES -

44.2 At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments by the 42 A—ZE-NEFE+A=+—8  RETA

Group under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: I AT - AEE B R R RIEE
ERIREEIWT
AONES
= — \&F
HK$'000
FAT
Within one year —FR 45,107
In the second to fifth year BE_FEFRF 58,588
After fifth year HF#& 8,761
112,456
The Group leases certain offices and factory premises under operating AEBRBLCEHNLHBEESETHAE
lease arrangements, for initial terms ranging from one to ten years. None MIwmYE NTHROBBE—FE2+FT
of the leases include contingent rentals. Z o REFHATBESIAES -

44.3 The Group is required to pay an annual fee in respect of the leasehold M3 REEE-—NNZFE-TM_F It A
land in the PRC from 1992 up to 2042 with a 20% increment for every RPE—EHEL I NFE  FES
five years. During the year ended 31 December 2019, annual fee of HEEM20% - HE=ZFT—NF+=A
HK$567,000 (2018: HK$592,000) was charged as an expense in profit or =+—HIFE  F%567,0008L(=F
loss of the Group. — /4 : 592,000 7T ) B2 A4S & B i F 3k

BERANIRFAS SN
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45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the reporting date, the Group had the following outstanding
commitments:

45. BAR K
R B - REERETZEBENT

2019 2018
—E-hF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T AT T
Contracted, but not provided for BRI A EREE
— Capital contribution to a property project (note (a)) —m—EWFERTE
(K% (@) 212,652 -
— Investment in an associate — Citychamp Allied International —REtE R A 2 RE — B
Limited (note (b)) & BERAR AT
(B 5E (b)) 270,000 270,000
482,652 270,000

Notes:

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2019, EBOHR Luxuries International (a)
Ltd. (“EBOHR"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with several independent third parties in respect of a property project
in the PRC. Pursuant to the agreement, EBOHR agreed to contribute the capital
amount up to RMB190,270,000 (equivalent to HK$212,652,000) into the property

project.

On 28 September 2016, Union United Investment Limited (“Union United”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with
Citychamp Dartong (Hong Kong) Limited (“CD(HK)”) and Fengrong Investment
(Hong Kong) Company Limited (“FI(HK)"), in relation to the formation of the
joint venture company (“JV Company”) in the British Virgin Island. JV Company
shall be owned as to 40% by FI(HK), 30% by CD(HK) and 30% by Union United.
JV Company is engaged in potential overseas equity investment. Pursuant to the
agreement, Union United agreed to contribute the maximum capital commitment
of HK$270,000,000 to JV Company. Details of the transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 28 September 2016.

BfaE

BE_Z—NWF+-A=+—HLEFE &A2Q
A2 EM B R RMREES CRYD) BRAR(MK
BrEm) P EMEEE BETEYE =53]
e Bt IEEMRAEMMEEE L E
% AR¥ 190,270,000 7t (FE 7 212,652,000
I ©

REZZ—R"ENA=Z+NR KRR ZE2EHK
BRREMIZEEGR AR ([BF]) B A/
(BB)BRAR([BHAR(FS) ) RERE
B (BB)BRAR ([EBIRE (BB
AR EERNEBRELEEKR I EERAR (&
BATE]) c IREE (FB) BHRAE ()
KEERE D RIHER & & 2 7)40% * 30% K& 30%
B  AE LRI BEEE IR EER -
BEZRZE BANRZERASERAAELEESE
7R A& 270,000,000 7T ° R S EEMA BEA
—E—RNFAA=Z+N\BERRARZAMH °



46. OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 46. B AEINEHA

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
T TFABT
Irrevocable commitments AN U [B] 5 20,983 4,642
Contract volume EHE 4,531,412 2,174,980
Fiduciary transactions with third-party banks HE=FRIT2EFERS 2,582,678 2,506,925
7,135,073 4,686,547
47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47. BIEAN LR 5

47.1 Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, 471 Bﬁﬁé“‘?\é';/ﬁﬁ%%&ﬁﬁfﬁ%‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁ%% '

the Group had the following transactions carried out with related ARETEBEALETATRS -

parties:
. . . . . . i — DS — I -1 :
(i) Transactions with an associate, Fair Future and its (i) = - = H?%:E_ D H - RARER
subsidiaries BRAIZRS

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FAT

Sales of goods EmiHE 798 1,107
Purchases of goods BEEMm 37,122 40,688

Rental expenses paid EREESRX 354 354
Inspection fee paid ENREEA 47 1,016
Interest expenses M EHE 1,048 804

(i) Transactions between Shun Heng and the related (i) FEFRAKEHAEALZRS

parties of the Group

2019 VAONES]
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
BEALEE REME THET FHET
Directors of the company and their close family Services fees and commission
members income 8 8
RARARIEEREBERTE R E KA KA
Interest income 4 10
F 2 A
Related company Services fees and commission
FE RN A income 265 109
R E KA KA
Interest income 5 37
AEWA
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, a director of the Company is also the director Z’SQET%?%%E%EW%@@QET
and beneficial owner of the related company. CESRERBBA °
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 47. B A 152 5 (#4])

47.1 (Continued) 471 (#®)
(iii) Outstanding related party balances (iii) RENBEALE

2019 2018
=E-hF —ZT—N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE FET

Dividend receivable from an associate’ fE U — MR Bt = R Al AR B 5,000 5,000
Due from an associate (note (a))* JiE Uy — P B 5 R B 3R (P R (a)) * 18,315 18,280
Trade receivables from associates JE Wi B 2 R B BR R 3,855 3,927
Due from related companies (note (b))* & Wi B3 2 R R IR (P = (b)) # 1,065 1,065
Loan from an associate (note (c))" ’E—EEE QR ER (M) - 25,000
Due to a shareholder (note (e)) JEA — B RR R 2 5B (FiTEE (e) 12,000 73,000
Due to associates (note (a))” FEAS 5%%@ Al (s (a) " - 230
Trade payables to associates JE (T Bt & R B AR R 50,595 38,113
Due to directors (note (d)) Eﬂ?‘%%?ﬁﬁ (MI5E(d)) 22,241 =

# Included in other assets & T AEMEE
Included in other liabilities . FTAEMEE

Notes: P& -

(@)  The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. (@ FHERAEER R2ERERE
The maximum outstanding balance of amounts due from associates KEE - RER - T AR EER
during the year was HK$18,315,000 (2018: HK$25,067,000). B i /A EJ K IE 45 £ 4 18,315,000 78

7t (ZZ—/\4 : 25,067,000/ 7T) °

(b)  The amounts were due from related companies of which Mr. Shang (b) BZEREREWAERRINKIE M
Jianguang, Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Mr. Hon Hau Wong, directors of the PIN/N 7§$?ﬁ§$7‘55’6€£ E#%@%ﬁ
Company are also the directors of these companies. The balance was TRBZETENB/ZERRZE
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The maximum o AMABRAEER 2R RARE
amount outstanding during the year was HK$1,065,000 (2018: BREE - RNEAN xaAENE
HK$1,065,000). ¥ /31,065,0008 7T (Z 2 — )\ 5 :

1,065,000/ 7T) ©

() Loan from an associate with principal amount of HK$25,000,000 (0 7% % 425,000,000 LKE —
was unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per annum and has been fully PB4 A 7 B 2K B IR - IR R
repaid on 28 January 2019. 5% ERERZZT—NF—A

—t+NABEEIEE-

(d)  Asat 31 December 2019, amounts due to Mr. Shang Jianguang and (d) —NWF+—_A=+—8" %
Mr. Teguh Halim, directors of the Company, were unsecured, interest M t"lﬁﬁ'jfg”ﬂlzli@ T%%ﬁ%t?ﬁ
bearing at 5% per annum and repayable within one year. During the E&Teguh Halim £ 3008 » AR
year ended 31 December 2019, interest expense of HK$241,000 was O ARFEFE 5% B RER—FR
payable to the directors. BE -BE_T-NF+-_A=1+—

HIEFE BRAESEIARSHAL
241,000/ 7T ©

(e) Asat 31 December 2019, amount due to a shareholder of aggregate e MR-ZE—hhF+-_A=+—H =K
principal amount of HK$12,000,000 was unsecured, interest bearing % 4858 /% 12,000,000 7 JT B FE~F —
at 5% per annum and repayable within one year. As at 31 December BRI 7 2B A WIS IR IR
2018, amount due to a shareholder of aggregate principal amount 5% it B RAR—FRNER -R=F
of HK$73,000,000 was unsecured, interest free and repayable on —NF+_A=+—H A&LH
demand. /73,000,000 7T #) fE A — & IR R

ZHIEABIEE - £ 8 RAKRSR
BE -
(iv) Financial guarantee provided to Fair Future (iv) @& IR E 2B IFIER

As 31 December 2019, the Group has provided a corporate RZZE-NEF+_A=+—0 K&

guarantee of HK$30,000,000 (2018: HK$60,000,000) in respect B L% T &% —I88 % 30,000,000 7

of a revolving loan facility of up to HK$30,000,000 (2018: 7T (ZZ—\4F : 60,000,00087T) Z

HK$60,000,000) granted to Fair Future (note 51.1). The corporate fBIR iéf A Eh & $2 4£ 30,000,000 7 7T

guarantee is ending on the expiry of the term of the revolving loan (ZZ—)\#F : 60, OOO OOO/%TE) /N

facility. 75%1% (FF5ES1.1) - REIERAEIR

mﬂéﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂz

The above transactions were conducted in accordance with J:Lﬁ?%)’b?;zﬁﬁléﬁi%%? il 2 78

the terms mutually agreed between the Group and the related N A B AR RE 2 IR FRHEAT o

companies controlled by the directors.



47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 47. B A 152 5 (#4])

47.2 Key management personnel compensation: 472 T ZEBRAB 22 ¢
Included in staff costs are key management personnel compensation and FEERABZMEF ABEIRARN &
comprises the following categories: FEAT R R
2019 PAONES]
—E-hE ZZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Short-term employee benefits 5 EE B E T 28,759 27,174
Post-employment benefits BERL 2 12 A 347 214
29,106 27,388
The key management represents all directors of the Company. Further FEEBABRARAMEBES - BHE
details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 15.1 to the EME 2 #E— P HBRNGE M HREN
consolidated financial statements. FF15.1°
48. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 48. Wi Bt & 2 )
Acquisition of Ernest Borel Group Wi BB 1% OR B R S
The Group had completed the acquisition of approximately 58.22% of the RZZ2E-N\FENA AEERBABEVE=
issued share capital of Ernest Borel Group, which listed on Stock Exchange and BAKEEERE (B EMAR - RAOKR
the stock number is 1856, through acquired the issued share capital of Ernest #1856) B BITIRANTEA BB KRR S EE &
Borel Group from independent third parties in September 2018. The total TIRAN4958.22% - KB FIHE N2 BRER
consideration paid for acquiring the interests is HK$374,209,000. 374,209,000 7T °
Details of the net assets acquired as at the acquisition date are as follows: R RBRE s EEFEFBET
HK$'000
FAT
Cash consideration REeRKE 374,209
Less: Fair value of net assets acquired W BB EEFECATE (172,755)
Goodwill (note 30) 752 (P95 30) 201,454
The goodwill of HK$201,454,000, which is not deductible for tax purposes, TATH0F B2 201,454,000 8 T BB EB 2 4

BHRIEREARERFEEREG 2 BRME o

comprises the acquired workforce and the expected synergy with existing
watch business of the Group.
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48. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)  48. Wl it J& 2 w] (%)

Acquisition of Ernest Borel Group (Continued) Wi B O B SR B (4E)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities arising from the WEKEREEMEAZAEANEERBER
acquisition of Ernest Borel Group as at the date of acquisition: W B ATE :
Fair value
AFHE
HK$'000
FAT
Cash and deposits B e RIFR 25,714
Property, plant and equipment (note 26) M - HE k& (M 26) 39,116
Intangible assets (note 29) = A B (MiaE29) 42,000
Inventories 75 383,747

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BRFERARMKEE

CREE 16,995
Trade receivables JiE U BR 3R 55,024
Other assets Hm&EE 11,501
Deferred tax liabilities (note 39) FEIEF T8 & & (£ 39) (32,406)
Trade payables JE - BR 3K (5,324)
Notes payable ERN 25 (100,000)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (10,505)
Income tax payables T (2,951)
Liability portion of convertible bonds AMBRESFEES D (97,184)
Other liabilities HEmaE (28,999)

296,728

Less: Non-controlling interests o IR R (123,973)
Fair value of net assets acquired BERBEEFEZATE 172,755

HK$'000
TR

Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries: Wi —RHf B AR ZH €

R
Cash and deposits in subsidiaries acquired BB B AR 2R RER 25,714
Less: Purchase consideration settled in cash B LREBENZBERE (374,209)
(348,495)

Ernest Borel Group contributed revenue of approximately HK$41,501,000 BUEBRBEE—E— \E+=-A=+—HI -
and net loss of approximately HK$35,568,000 to the Group from the date of 8K 35 &= [ [r) AR 5= [ B B A 49 41,501,000 7
acquisition to 31 December 2018. 7T N 518 F 58 4 35,568,000 7 TT ©
Had the business combination taken place on 1 January 2018, revenue of the WEBEHER=_Z—N\F—HA—H#ET K
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 would have been increased by SEREBEZE_ZE-—N\F+_A=T—HItFE
approximately HK$130,305,000 and net loss would have been increased by 2 U A\ FELE 049 130,305,000 7T * i /E5 1R F 58
HK$62,098,000. The pro-forma information is for illustrative purposes only JfE 3% 162,098,000 7 7T © 1# = & RBHE L AR -
and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of the operations of F—ERERRZZE—NF— A —BERKERK
the Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition of the BEEEERNEEBERERG 2 IMARLEFE
Ernest Borel Group been completed on 1 January 2018 nor are they intended BT MBIERRESR ZTEA -

to be a projection of future results.



49. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

(a) Partial disposal of interest in Ernest Borel
In January and March 2019, the Group has disposed of aggregate
64,006,515 shares of Ernest Borel, representing approximately
18.42% equity interests of Ernest Borel at HK$1.74 per share, the total
consideration received for such disposal is HK$111,371,000. Upon the
completion of the disposal, the Group’s effective interest in Ernest Borel
decreased from 82.5% to 64.08%. The transaction has been accounted
for an equity transaction with the non-controlling interests. The
transaction cost for the equity transaction is HK$4,887,000. The effect of
changes in the ownership interests of Ernest Borel Group on the equity
attributable to owners of the Company during the year is summarised as

(a)

below:

S 2 B e 4 2 52 B

“‘Bﬁtﬂ%ﬁz;‘b’z%m‘&i—é
ZE-NF A= AEELEEK

1 74/%7ztlj%fzz/&ﬁﬂm #£ 64,006,515 B %
AR BRI 2 18.42% + HEH

@ FER R KB A111,371,000 7T °
HETKE @ AEBRKERNERER

H82.5% FMA % 64.08% - HHEXHENES
HIEERESRESRIAR - EER S
BI3Z BN 4,887,000 76 7T © N+ KR
BEEEEEEERS 2 BB ADNRHEE A
MG 2 R BB

2019
ZEB-NF

HK$"000
FEx

Carrying amount of partial equity interest disposal S B At 2 BRE A (47,443)
Consideration received for the partial disposal B EERZNRE 111,371
Gain on the partial disposal recognised within equity AR AE N RERR 2 2B ) HH & e 63,928

(b) Deemed acquisition of additional interest in Bendura
Group

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Bendura Bank AG (“Bendura
Bank”) repurchased its 350 equity share at cash consideration of
CHF189,000 (equivalent to HK$1,490,000). Following the repurchase,
the Company’s effective equity interest in Bendura group increased by
0.15% and the Company effectively hold 85.22% equity interest of
Bendura Group. The Group recognised a decrease of in non-controlling
interests of HK$1,443,000 and a increase in equity attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$47,000. The effect of changes in the
ownership interest of Bendura Group on the equity attributable to
owners of the Company during the year is summarised as below:

(b) RAVWBEHEE 2 EIER

HE_ZEZ-—hE+-_A=+—HIt&
B B iRITRMBR AR ([EHRTT))
LAZE £ KB 189,000% L% B8 (85 R
1,490,0007%8 7T) & [ 350 i #E = A% 15 - BE

BEKE - AR B BREFA E s E A
mIEM0.15% * ARG ERFEEHEE
85.22% Z fx#E o A B MR IEIE IR R
421,443,000 7 R AN R R B A FEAGHE
mILIN47,000%87C - FA - EHEEES

BEDRCBHUARNTERAREER
BRI

2019
—E2-hF
HK$'000
FTHET
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired 2 YR B8 FEIE i i 25 2 BRE (B 1,443
Consideration paid for acquisition of non-controlling W IR ERE X 2 R E
interests (1,490)
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity ~ MRBRERER 2D X MRE 2
=R (47)

S i
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49. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Acquisition of additional interest in Ernest Borel Group
In September 2018, the Group has further acquired 84,366,000 shares
of Ernest Borel, representing approximately 24.28% at HK$1.85 per
share, through an open offer, the total consideration paid for acquiring
the interest is HK$156,077,000. The effect of changes in the ownership
interest of Ernest Borel Group on the equity attributable to owners of the
Company during the year is summarised as below:

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired
Consideration paid for acquisition of non-controlling

49. IR B HE 45 2 A2 5 ()

(0 WEEKEEEBENSES

RZF—N\FNA AEBEBARAEL -
RER1.85 BT 2 B E— P HOR R
84,366,000 % Jx 15 + 1HE M #24.28% 2
A& - RUUBREINREE 2 BREAR
156,077,000 7T © F 1A + R B& ¥k 5 e
mZ BEEHANRHE ARG ER 2 FE
B0 ¢

2018
—E-N\F

HK$'000
FET

BB IR = 2 BRE (B 68,875
WEEIEIE R R E X 2R E

interests (156,077)
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity ~ RBRERER 2D X MRE 2
=R (87,202)

Deemed acquisition of additional interest in Bendura
Group

In July 2018, Bendura Bank repurchased its 500 equity shares at cash
consideration CHF352,000 (equivalent to HK$2,756,000). Following the
repurchase, the Company’s effective equity interest in Bendura Group
increased by 0.21%. The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling
interest of HK$2,225,000 and a decrease in equity attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$531,000. The effect of changes in the ownership
interest of Bendura Group on the equity attributable to owners of the
Company during the year is summarised as below:

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired
Consideration paid for acquisition of non-controlling
interests

(d) RAVBEHEEZE/IER

R=ZZ—N\Ft A BHRTURSRE
352,000 3w+ EBF (A8 & 7 2,756,000 % 7T)
BB D 500 R 25 % o BBl R 1& © AR A
RE SR BERREIENN0.21% « A&
[ i TR FE 4 B 25Uk 4 2,225,000 %8 7T
RARHEA AFE(L#EZR A 531,000 87T °
FRN - BHEEREEER CZIHHAD
AEA ANEGER 2 AT

2018
—E—N\F

HK$'000
TR

Bk IEE i 2 BREE 2,225
IS IR R E I 2 KRB

(2,756)

Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity
A

REEAER ZEXNREZBL

(531)




49. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 49. Bk ¥ I HE 4k 2 22 5 (18)
INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

(e) Effect of transactions with non-controlling interest on (e) EFERBEZZRGHBE_Z
the equity attributable to owners of the Company for —hF+=ZA=+—BLFEXA
the year ended 31 December 2019 AEEANELER TS

2019
—E-hF

HK$°000
FEx

Change in equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ AR GIHEA A BRI 2 B EHK A
arising from:
— Partial disposal of equity interest in Ernest Borel 2 S RO B 2 A 63,928
— Transaction cost for equity transaction regarding the 3 OB BE AR 2 R AR
partial disposal of equity interest in Ernest Borel E’J 2 5 AN (4,887)
— Deemed acquisition additional equity interest in — R BUEE S M IR 1T 2 BB INIRAE
Bendura Bank 47)
Net effect for transactions with non-controlling L JE 2 IS 2 Lﬁﬁ&%ﬂﬁ AR A
interests on equity attributable to owners EliEEm 2 FE
of the Company 58,994
(f) Effect of transactions with non-controlling interest on (f) EHFEREZZXSGHEBE_S
the equity attributable to owners of the Company for —“NFE+=ZA=+—BLEFEEEXA
the year ended 31 December 2018 REEAELREEZEE

2018
—N\F

HK$’'000
THET

Change in equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZAAFIHEA AELER 2 BEK A

arising from:
— Deemed acquisition additional equity interest in — R BUEE S 1 IR 1T 2 BEINIRAE
Bendura Bank (531)
— Acquisition additional equity interest in Ernest Borel —URREFOR 3% 2 REIMNIR AR (87,202)
Net effect for transactions with non-controlling HIE RS ETR ZEARRER A
interests on equity attributable to owners [EfhHE R 2 R B
(87,733)

of the Company
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50. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  50. %45 Bl 4 i & £ Wi 5k
OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: MEFBEEZARZHE

Borrowings,
excluding bank  Corporate Duetoa Due to Lease
overdrafts bonds  shareholder directors liabilities

e EN—-% ERES
BATEXRI DAEE RRZHRE 2B HESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR TER THT TET

As at 1 January 2019, as originally R=-Z-hf—-A—H0 R%

presented 25| 1,032,367 760,244 73,000 - -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RNEBRBREEIE 1657

b - - = - 90,627

As at 1 January 2019, as restated RZZE-hF-A—H L& 1,032,367 760,244 73,000 - 90,627
Proceeds from new loans HERZFERE = = 12,000 22,000 -
Repayment of loan BEER = - (73,000) - -
Proceeds from new borrowings e R P58 1,479,128 - - - =
Repayment of borrowings BEREE (866,520) - - - =
Redemption of corporate bonds BRARGES = (756,022) - - -
Repayment of principal portion of BEHERGEREHS

the lease liabilities - - - - (37,480)
Interest paid BERHE (60,786) (18,605) - - (4,633)
Total changes from financing RERGREZDAH

cash flow 551,822 (774,627) (61,000) 22,000 (42,113)
Other changes: Hitt2 g
Interest accrued RIS 71,841 18,605 = 241 4,633
Amortisation of transaction costs RGBS = 2,729 - - -
Increase in lease liabilities from entering £ & 5T 3 #7847

into new leases during the year HEREEM - - - - 20,162
Lease modification MEE] = = = - 10,099
Exchange realignment B i oH 36,038 (6,951) - = 567
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=ZA=+—H 1,692,068 = 12,000 22,241 83,975




50. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  50. %45 Bl 4 i & £ Wt 5k (4)
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Liability
Borrowings, component of
excludingbank ~ Corporate Subordinate Dividend Duetoa Notes convertible
overdrafts bonds payables shareholder payable bond
; ARER ) ' ENZE i
HK$'000 HK$000 ' HK$'000 HK$'000
‘ T T T T BT
As at 1 January 2018 R-8-N\E-A-H 528803 73978 95,674 - - - -
Proceeds from new loans HERZFETE - - - - 73,000 - -
Repayment of loan EEER - - (95,767) - - (100,000) (100,000)
Proceeds from sales of repurchased bonds  $HEEEER 2 BTEUE - 27,566 - - - - -
Proceeds from new borrowings HESZAETE 710,999 - - - - - -
Repayment of borrowings EREE (188,285) - - - - - -
Dividend paid to shareholders of the WARARREARE
Company - - - (261,113) - - -
Interest paid EfFE (29,510) (27,630) - - - - (744)
Total changes from financing cash flow ~~ BER RS A% 493204 (64) (95,767) (261,113) 73,000 (100,000) (100,744)
Other changes: RRE:
Acaquisition of subsidiaries (note 48) WEEmB AR (f:48) 10,505 - - - - 100,000 97,184
Amortisation of transaction costs RARAEE - 4243 - - - - -
Dividend declared ERRE - - - 261,113 - - -
Far value loss on early redemption of ~ REEET#RERZ
convertible bond ATEER - - - - - - 978
Interest accrued [E:TI8 29,510 27,630 - - = = 2,582
Exchange realignment ELHE: (29,655) (4583) 9 = = - -
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N§+-B=1-A 1,032,367 760,244 - - 73,000 - -
51. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 51. kKA A
51.1 Financial guarantees 51. 18 K &R
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Financial guarantees BB IR 30,000 60,000
At 31 December 2019, the Group had contingent liability in relation to R-ZEBE—hhEFE+=-_A=+—H ' &x&%
guarantee of approximately HK$30,000,000 (2018: HK$60,000,000) LEABERAY —FHMEATNERRS
given to a bank in respect of a revolving loan facility of up to 30,000,000 7871 (== — /\4 : 60,000,000
HK$30,000,000 (2018: HK$60,000,000) granted to an associate. The BT) ZERE SRR E MmA— BRITIRAEL
corporate guarantee is ending on the expiry of the term of the revolving 30,000,000 7871 (== — /\ 4 : 60,000,000
loan facility. In the opinion of the directors, it is unlikely that a claim will BIL) ZER  ARIEERRABEREETRE
be made against the Group and no cash outflow under the financial HARR fE mbs R 1L - EFR A - BIBEMEE
guarantee contract. The directors have assessed and considered the BRENHAREREERR e EMN - B
financial impact arising from the above guarantee is insignificant. Iﬂiﬁhimb.ﬂj EEE G R A aE
REEZWBHELTERK -
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51. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

51.2 Legal proceeding

In June 2016, Bendura Bank and Bendura Fund Management Alpha
AG have been confronted with potential claims of one investor having
invested into an investment fund that currently is in liquidation. Bendura
Bank acted as custodian and Bendura Fund Management Alpha AG acts
as fund management company whereas the asset management function
has been outsourced to an external asset manager. The court dismissed
the case at first instance. The investor appealed against the decision. The
appeal court referred back to the first instance. The case has been settled
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

51.3 Credit card commitments

As 31 December 2019, the Group had contingent liability in relation
to credit card commitments of approximately HK$93,462,000 (2018:
approximately HK$98,387,000) given to third parties. Credit card
commitments represents the undrawn amount of credit card limits. In
the opinion of the directors, those credit commitments are given with
collateral and the possibility of an outflow of economic resources is not
probable.

52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group has various financial assets and financial liabilities such as trading
portfolio investments, derivative financial assets, cash and deposits, due from
banks and clients, trade receivables, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, other financial assets at amortised cost, other
assets, derivative financial liabilities, due to banks and clients, trade payables,
corporate bonds, borrowings, due to a shareholder, due to directors, lease
liabilities and other liabilities, which arise directly from its operations. The
main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, fair value risk and equity price
risk.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in the trading of financial
instruments for speculative purposes. Its treasury department works under
the policies approved by the directors and identifies ways to access financial
markets and monitors the Group’s financial risk exposures. Regular reports
are provided to the directors. The board has reviewed and agreed policies
periodically for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

50. B £ {8 (4])

51.2 R 74

RZZE—RF/NH - EHIRTT KL Bendura
Fund Management Alpha AG FIig— &% &
R—EEERREES ZIREE 2 A HE
= o B IRTTHE EFEE A & Bendura Fund
Management Alpha AGIEETE £ EHE A
A MAEEEBAAINTINDE ELE
B AR —BRELER - BREREEY
ZHRIEE EFF o ESRERE 8 - R
REBEZE-_ZT—-—NF+_A=1T—BIEFE
ELAEARR o

513 S AF&E
MN-ZZE—-—hFE+-A=+—H A&EH
BERETE=FAZ2ERREEZHA
B E#993,462,000/8 70 (ZF — /\F : 49
98,387,000 7L) - 5 A REAEREAK
BEZARNCE BEFRA Z5EE
EER BB ARME  HEEE
R 2 AT B R K o

52. W5 Ja ke 4 BEL H R K BUR

AEBBERREXBZEREERERAE
PR ZHEERE TEEREE RERF
Ao BWRTTREP KA - RURNR BAF
EFff AREEBAZEREE  RBHERAK
IRz Bt EMEE HMEE TESRE
& BNRITREPHKE  BAKRR  AFHE
5 BE BN —2RRZFE EBNEEZ
FE HEAREREMAE - AKESHITA
MELEZERBRAFXRER INERR  FE
Rk - REBELRAR RAFERRRRRER
E e

AEBZHRRLFAREENEEEESHT
B HEBHPIRBELERRECHRITE
WHEE W B EB NS ERERAEBEME
HEGRAR YEHREFRHRE EFS
R RiEEE Ll EHARZBEK - B
PR BT



52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.1 Summary of financial assets and financial liabilities by

52. W% Ja ke i B H AR K SR (%)

RITHEERCHEBEIEHME

category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are categorised

as follows:

RZE—NhER T N\F+-_A=+—
ARz ASBemEERSRAERA
ERfEMT :

2019
—E-AF

HK$'000

FET

Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at fair value: BEAFEIE /B E
— Due from banks —FEUSRTT IR 56,935 74,301
— Trading portfolio investments —RHEEEE 227,903 123,606
— Derivative financial assets —TEsREE 10,275 7,694
295,113 205,601
Financial assets at amortised cost: RESHK AR s SRE E ¢
— Cash and deposits —BeRFR 4,897,246 7,701,743
— Due from clients — B R P I8 2,093,250 1,575,438
— Due from banks —FEUSRTT IR 4,844,263 3,313,535
— Trade receivables — PR UL BR X 478,262 571,424
— Other financial assets at amortised cost — IR AT AR 2 E Aty
TREE 1,307,960 1,034,773
— Other assets —HtEE 276,730 283,417
13,897,711 14,480,330
Financial assets at fair value through other BRAFEGFAEMEERAZ
comprehensive income EREE 422,861 627,200
14,615,685 15,313,131
Financial liabilities SREasE
Financial liabilities at fair value: EAFEIEZe/MEE :
— Due to clients —EREFRIEA 56,762 73,950
— Derivative financial liabilities —TESRERE 54,788 20,866
111,550 94,816
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: REHEK AT E 2 e/ aTE :
— Due to banks —ERRITRIA 17,968 4,181
— Due to clients —ENRFE A 11,906,290 12,430,641
— Trade payables —FETER K 411,427 324,106
— Corporate bonds — R AIEFH - 760,244
— Borrowings —f&E 1,740,362 1,047,189
— Due to a shareholder —E—ZRE 2 RIE 12,000 73,000
— Due to directors —ENESZHIA 22,241 =
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 83,975 -
— Other liabilities —Hih B & 467,414 503,694
14,661,677 15,143,055
14,773,227 15,237,871
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 52. Yo 5 Jo e 4 PR H B B SR (4
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.2 Interest rate risk

52.2 | R [@E k&

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings and
bank deposits. Borrowings and bank deposits bearing variable rates and
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The interest rate and repayment terms
of the borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period are
disclosed in note 36.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings and bank deposits with a
floating interest rate.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease the Group’s profit after income tax and retained
profits by approximately HK$7,877,000 (2018: increase/decrease the
Group's profit after income tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$22,756,000). The assumed changes have no impact on the Group’s
other components of equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end of reporting period.
The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to be reasonably
possible changes on observation of current market conditions and
represent management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the next twelve month period.

The calculation is based on a change in average market interest rates for
each period, and the financial instruments held at each reporting date
that are sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variable are held
constant. The sensitivity analysis for the year ended 31 December 2018
has been prepared on the same basis.

MERREeHTIAZ A TFEEESRE
5 A R S B oK 8 2 B2 AR - AN
Bz M=REREEREEERRITER -
$‘§I DRI ERE R R E REE ZF“%&

TEFEERERENERR LKA TE
ﬂJTI—L S &iﬁﬂiﬁr‘ﬁﬂaﬁfﬁ%Zﬂ
R REEGEFNKIFE36 KE -
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SEZZEFECEERRITEFARERA -

BE D
—T-NEF+=-A=+—8 BXFE
Eml%i&hﬂ?* EETRANF R A
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FriS 818 5m F R (R B i F 38 00, 2 49
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.3 Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes

52. W% Ja ke i B H AR K SR (%)

52.3 HMNEE 2| B
INERKIESMTAY ATERAKRE S
TEEEXSEmMEB AR c AEEE

in foreign exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Eﬁ’\ﬁ‘f KB ST E R E
Switzerland, United Kingdom, Liechtenstein and the PRC with most of e K*B’\/\%LA/%E E7T BT I
the transactions denominated and settled in HK$, US$, Euro, CHF, GBP /Z:EB EHERAREINBEREE - N5
and RMB. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily arise (= [ 2 51 EE = Bz I;zf@ S FASETT
from certain financial instruments including financial assets at fair value BUT AR AERARBIEZE

through other comprehensive income, other assets, cash and deposits,
due from clients and banks, trading portfolio investments, derivative
financial assets, other financial assets at amortised cost, due to clients,
derivative financial liabilities, other liabilities and borrowings which
are denominated in US$, Euro, CHF, GBP and RMB. The management

continuously monitors the foreign exchange exposure.

The following table summarises the Group’s major financial assets and
financial liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the respective group companies as at 31 December 2019

and 2018.

BITE BFERAFEFARMCEERA
ZEREE HMEE RENFHR-

WEPRRITHRIE XZERKRE T4
TREE MEHARIRZEMERE
E BNXPHE fTL£TRAE  HEit
BEREE - BEEE-—BERINERE

TERBAR —E-NFR-_ZE-NF+=
A=t BRAKENEREERAREEY
REEREIS N BRINEZTREREER
TREE-

Expressed in HK$'000
DS V2]

Euro CHF
5 bRy |

As at 31 December 2019 R-E-hFE+=-A=t—-H
Cash and deposits iﬁﬁmﬁ 26,990 1,213,291 529 52 1,025
Due from clients i AEI=E 64,613 645,831 - - -
Due from banks & M&zfﬁ!ﬁ?x 2,599,320 797,157 - - -
Trading portfolio investments RSHBEEE 46,758 - - - -
Derivative financial assets MTEEREAE 401 8,635 - - -
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFAE M2 E

other comprehensive income WAz eREE - - - - 135,174
Other financial assets at REER AR 2

amortised cost HitepERE 843,992 411,730 - - -
Other assets Hih&E 29,794 143 - = 9,603
Due to clients BRI PRHIE (6,985,123)  (3,751,785) - - -
Due to banks TEH'JLfETTMIE (16,358) = = = =
Derivative financial liabilities TESRAR (53,844) (944) = = =
Borrowings %Ia (817,702) (46,731) - - (939)
Other liabilities Hia® (7,695) (466) = = -
Overall net exposure BRRRFE (4,268,854) (723,139) 529 52 144,863
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.3 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

52. W% Ja ke i B H AR K SR (%)

52.3 SMNEE 2| B ()

Expressed in HK$'000
UFHTE5]

CHF
WA

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE-\E+=ZA=+—-H

Cash and deposits RekFER 11,303 4,925,392 1,040 54 47171
Due from clients U P RIE 122,489 884,262 = = =
Due from banks FEUER1THRIE 2,577,822 176,602 - = -
Trading portfolio investments RHMEEE 546 5,931 = = =
Derivative financial assets TEEREE 6,468 226 = = =
Financial assets at fair value through R A FEFAZM2ERAZ

other comprehensive income SHEE - - - - 128,730
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ H#ERATIE 2 S HEE 613,832 347,405 = = =
Other assets Hi&E 43,368 2,144 319 - 8,254
Due to clients & P IE (4,797,723)  (6,343,678) = - =
Derivative financial liabilities TEEREE (13,493) = = = =
Borrowings EE - - = - (232)
Other liabilities Hitg & (6,886) (1,360) = = =
Overall net exposure BREEREH (1,442,274) (3,076) 1,359 54 183,923

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s
profit for the year and fair value through other comprehensive income
reserve (due to the change in fair value of the financial assets at fair value

TRERAEE (HRAFEFARE MR
HWAZEBMEE 2 A FEEE) A%
BERBERRBERRRZINEERZ &

through other comprehensive income) in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of reporting period. The sensitivity analysis includes
balances between Group companies where the denomination of the
balances is in a currency other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower. A positive number below indicates an increase in
profit and fair value through other comprehensive income reserve where
the underlying functional currency weakens against the relevant foreign
currency. For a strengthening of the underlying functional currency
against the relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit and investment, revaluation reserve, and
the balances below would be negative.

B RE R B TR 2 AN E A IR A
B ARMEARAREZBNES - &
RENMERRNEBE AR &8 Ak
VEERASERAZEE R 2 BT
B AT IEZR ARG L A RSN
BEREBRT @ amMNRBRAFEF AR
EEWARE LN - WEBNEEE L
BRAINETHE - AIENE R RIRE B FHE
BHREMERTZE MATERBRER



52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 52. Yo 5 Jo e 4 PR H B B SR (4

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.3 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

52.3 SMNEE 2| B ()

Change Change in
in foreign foreign
exchange rates exchange rates
against the against the
respective Effect on respective Effect on
functional fair value functional fair value
currencies of Effecton through other  currencies of Effecton  through other
the group profit for comprehensive the group profit for ~ comprehensive
entities the year income reserve entities the year  income reserve
HNEREE HENTE  HERLEE HERRATE
BE& ST AR BRI
EBH HEEE Z2HKARE EHH HAERE
Ex28 ERz¥E 28 EXEH lillPA7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TR THT
us$ EY +5% (173,802) - +5% (72,114) -
5% 173,802 - -5% 72,114 -
Euro BT +5% (36,157) = +5% (154) =
-5% 36,157 = -5% 154 =
CHF Hn A EB +5% 26 - +5% 68 -
-5% (26) - -5% (68) -
GBP HeE +5% 3 = +5% 3 -
-5% (3) - -5% 3) -
RMB AR +5% 484 6,759 +5% 2,760 6,437
-5% (484) (6,759) -5% (2,760) (6,437)

SIRZBHRREEBHINEEENES
T—FERSALHRZ SRR
APl e BLUtT E - RBTEETEA
HEBRENEEE BB T2 ARE DAL
XTAHEZ EMEAERRBETEAERT

The stated changes represent management's assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the period until the
next annual reporting date. In this respect, it is assumed that there
is no significant exposure expected on financial assets and liabilities
denominated in US$ for Group companies whose functional currency is

HK$ since HK$ are pegged to USD. Results of the analysis as presented
in the above table represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the
group entities’ profit for the year and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the exchange rate ruling
at the end of reporting period for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.

52.4 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the terms of the
financial instruments and cause a financial loss to the Group.

MERER X2 ZHMER KK
HEEEERAFE SN MEAE A% A
e EREE MinmEHIRAEEZSIA
BZEXRBERETL) CRBTE - —F
—NFETZOMEKBAREE -

524 = E @B

FERRECHIAZRZIHUTREERD
BTAZGRBETHEHAER TEHAKE
BEMBERZ AR -
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 52. Yo 5 Jo e 4 PR H B B SR (4
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.4 Credit risk (Continued) 5.4 (=& B ()

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of
assets and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the assets as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition.

It considers available reasonable and supportive forward looking
information. Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

. external credit rating (as far as available)

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of
the counterparty

e  significant expected changes in the performance and behaviour
of the counterparty, including changes in the payment status of
counterparties in the group and changes in the operating results of
the counterparty

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make
contractual payments when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery.

The assessment of credit risk and the estimation of ECL are unbiased
and probability-weighted, and incorporate all available information that
is relevant to the assessment including information about past events,
current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future
events and economic conditions at the reporting date. In addition, the
estimation of ECL should take into account the time value of money.

The credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable to the cash and
deposits, due from clients and banks, trade receivables, other financial
assets at amortised cost and other assets.

The credit risk of the cash and deposit is limited because the majority of
the counterparties are banks with good reputation. No impairment had
been provided under 12-month expected credit loss assessment.
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 52. Yo 5 Jo e 4 PR H B B SR (4
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.4 Credit risk (Continued) 5.4 (=& B ()

The credit risk of due from clients and banks (excluding the precious
metal) is determined based on the combination of the internal and
external credit rating, the average debt recovery, peer review information
and comparison with publically available date. The Group calculates
ECL using three main components: a probability of default, a loss given
default ('LGD’) and the exposure at default ('EAD’). The 12-month ECL
is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD, LGD and EAD. Lifetime
ECL is calculated using the lifetime PD instead. The 12-month and
lifetime PDs represent the probability of default occurring over the next
12 months and the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively.
The EAD represents the expected balance at default, taking into account
the repayment of principal and interest from the balance sheet date to
the default event together with any expected drawdowns of committed
facilities. The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event
of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating
effect of collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the
time value of money. Reversal of expected credit losses for due from
banks and clients of HK$1,812,000 has been recognised (2018: provision
for expected credit losses of HK$3,256,000) under expected credit loss
assessment for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The balance of due from clients and banks also subject to
concentration risk which the ten largest single exposures encompass
HK$1,024,413,000 (2018: HK$858,871,000), which are related to due
from clients of the banking business as of 31 December 2019.

Since 1 January 2018, the Group adopts the “ECL model” on its
debt instruments which are classified as financial assets measured at
amortised cost and at FVOCI in accordance with the provisions of HKFRS
9. For financial assets that are included in the measurement of ECL,
the Group evaluates whether the credit risks of related financial assets
have increased significantly since initial recognition. The “three stage”
impairment model is used to measure their loss allowances respectively
to recognise ECL and their movements. The ECL assessment made by
the Group mainly reference to the internal and market credit rating
information. Amount to HK$291,000 (2018: HK$22,000) impairment
allowance has been provided after the assessment during the year.
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EIEFEMTE - 2HFEHREEFBRAIER
ZHREASNAEETE - 128 REHED
SRR D RIS AR 12 8 A B T B F 4 4 5
NEEEEL 2R - BHR KR AEIETEH]
BARS TG REEEBZENSHH
Mz A& K& F B8R A E A TR 78
HARENEE - BAVIBARIBLIRENSHE
BARRAEZERES W& R (2
FEEA ) THEERERREER 2 &
My B REYKKHEER BE_T—NLF
+ZA=+—HILFE BEEHEEES
B EREREWRIT R B P RIBEMTERE
BEEEE 1,812,000 T (ZF— \F :
TEHR (= B E518 9% 3,256,000 /5 7T.)

JEUWE B R IRIT R IB L &R N A £ & &
% TRE—RREER-_ZE—NLF+=
A =+4+—H 21,024,413,0005 T (==
— J\4 : 858,871,000/ 7T) * Jh L i U 3R
TEBEFEFEE -

BT /\F—A—HB#& AEEHEHK
TERMIEHEEBRER] BRERHE
WSS ERE IR AT - BRERF LA
D BREER AT ERIEAFEF AR
tEEmBAZEREE - REBHEEEE
ESRZEREEMS  ASBEFEE
HemEEZEERRBYVILHERRES
RIEEIN  WHEREHEEBAREE
o RIERAT = REEN G 2 EER
o REBEMTTEREEBENGN - £
22BN EMSEETRER - FA -
et a8 2 aTH IR E 5 291,000 %8 7T (=
ZT— )\ 4 : 22,000/87C) °
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.4 Credit risk (Continued)

For the trade receivables, the Group carries out regular review on these
balances and follow-up action on any overdue amounts to minimise
exposures to credit risk. The Group measures the lifetime expected
credit losses based on the outstanding balances and historical credit
loss experience adjusted to reflect the Group’s view of current and
forecast economic conditions that may affect the ability of the debtors
to settle receivables. Amounted to HK$7,340,000 (2018: HK$4,381,000)
impairment allowance had been provided under expected credit loss
assessment which calculated using simplified approach according to the
ageing by due date disclose in note 21.

The loss allowance as at 31 December 2019 was determined for trade
receivables arising from watches and timepieces business as follows:

31 December 2019

52. W% Ja ke i B H AR K SR (%)
52.4 = & B ()

ERENERFR - ANEE TR S
EEE S ARNBETE  UESRE
EERR AKBEIREREELEHRIBE
EEEBKBRIE2HEBEEREE I
{EH A AR AN B r] RE B E TS A
BT W FRIA BE 71 2 35 5 R FRORI A E AR
B - IRIBEMaE21 AT BRI B &5
IR 7 AT B 2 B EE 18T
& BETIRMERE7,340,0008 T (==
— \% : 4,381,000/ 7T) °

RZZE-NFT_A=+—HETEEK
Ko s BT EE mn R TS PR W AR SRB IR B4 20 T

—E-AE+=-HA=+—8H

Expected  Gross carrying

credit loss amount

rate - (after excluding

weighted credit-impaired Loss

average (%) balance) allowance Net amount

RHEEBRR REAE

- MAEF 1 (NREE
(%)  HELHE) BERE BH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEx TET
Not yet pass due fef o S8 0.30% 344,897 (1,034) 343,863
Overdue within 90 days BETBBIOK 1.00% 44,477 (445) 44,032
Overdue 91 to 180 days B =180k 3.00% 15,481 (464) 15,017
Overdue over 180 days BWHIBEBE 180K 7.00%-100% 128,425 (56,404) 72,021
Total et 533,280 (58,347) 474,933

The loss allowance as at 31 December 2018 was determined for trade
receivables as follows:

31 December 2018

KRB N\F+-_A=1t—HETEZEK
RSB ERENT

—g-N\Ft=A=+-8

Gross carrying

Expected credit amount
loss  (after excluding
rate — weighted  credit-impaired Loss
average (%) allowance Net amount
HHEEFEX
- METH
(%) FERTR) ERERE FE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THT TR TR
Not yet pass due 1ef oK S8 0.13% 401,619 (504) 401,115
Overdue within 90 days AETERAOK 0.48% 73,800 (352) 73,448
Overdue 91 to 180 days AH91 £ 180K 1.04% 61,045 (637) 60,408
Overdue over 180 days HHIEB 180K 6.56%-100% 77,186 (49,483) 27,703
Total st 613,650 (50,976) 562,674




52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.4 Credit risk (Continued)

52. W% Ja ke i B H AR K SR (%)

5.4 (=& B ()

For the other assets mainly comprise of rental deposits, dividend
receivables, amounts due from an associate and related parties and other
tax recoverable. Management considers rental deposits do not have
significant credit risk since the deposits are refundable from landlords
upon end of lease term or recoverable by the Group through using the
leased property. For the other assets, given the short term nature of
these assets, the ECL is had been provided under 12-month expected
credit loss assessment. An ECL provision of HK$5,313,000 has been
made as at 1 January 2018 after the implementation of the HKFRS 9. The
management considered there is no additional provision has to make for
the other assets after the assessments for the year ended 31 December
2018. The management has provided an ECL provision of HK$2,167,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 after their assessment.

(i) Maximum credit risk exposure of the Group
The maximum exposure to credit risk (excluding cash and deposits
as at the end of reporting date without taking into consideration of
any collateral held or other credit enhancement) is represented by
the net balance of each type of financial assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position (after deducting any impairment
allowance). A summary of the maximum exposure is as follows:

At 31 December 2019

Banking
business

BATEH

HK$'000
TET

HhEEXTZREASRS  BKES -
FEU—FEEt 2 AR REIEA T REARE
A KREIFHE - BEERARE RS W&
BEAEERR - RE AL RE R A
E¥FRERSCIAEEBASBEREE
MEWREIZE - REMEEMS @ ERZ
LEEZRHNE  BHEEEERI12E
PEHEEEET GTREE REES
BPEREEREIOHE RN T — N\F—
A—HE&HREE{E & E1ER 55,313,000
BT - BEEBERTHRRAEREE=Z
—N\FE+—A=+—RAILEEHAREM
BERIREINGEE - EREBLETZEER
HE—ZT-hEt+-_A=t—HBItEE:t
IR R BB 52,167,0008 7T ©

(i) AEBzEXEERR
RERERR @ BRIFE RTFHAINZ
BAEERE CRat KA Fris i i
fh ek H (S A AR) B A MISIRR
EPEBESREE ZEHFEGEN
BRI ERER) 27 - R EBR
BELT :

R=-ZE—h&+=-BA=+—H

Non-banking
and financial
businesses
FERITR
CRER
HK$'000
TER

Financial
business

ERMEHR
HK$000
TET

Total

o

HK$°000
TET

Due from clients EWEFHE 2,093,250 - - 2,093,250
Due from banks EYSRIT B 4,901,198 = = 4,901,198
Trading portfolio assets RHPEEE 46,758 127,519 53,626 227,903
Derivative financial assets ITEEREE 10,275 - - 10,275
Trade receivables FEMBR X - 3,329 474,933 478,262

Financial assets at fair value through other’Z A FEFF ARt 2 E
comprehensive income WAzeREE - - 422,861 422,861

Other financial assets at amortised cost 1% 855X AN 51| 8k 2

HEth&pdE 1,307,960 - - 1,307,960
Other assets HihBE 46,442 3,449 226,839 276,730
8,405,883 134,297 1,178,259 9,718,439

Credit card commitments, irevocable {5 -RA&ZE « e[l [E
commitment and guarantees provided & K B IR ER 114,445 - 30,000 144,445
Maximum credit risk exposure BaEEER 8,520,328 134,297 1,208,259 9,862,884
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 52. Yo 5 Jo e 4 PR H B B SR (4
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.4 Credit risk (Continued) 524 SERER ()
(i) Maximum credit risk exposure of the Group () NEBzEAEERK (&)
(Continued)
At 31 December 2018 R-E—NE+=-H=+—AH
Non-banking
Banking Financial and financial
business business businesses Total
JERITR
RITER SRES PRES @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TAEL FTAET FTAET
Due from clients B = PRI 1,575,438 - - 1,575,438
Due from banks FEMRITHIE 3,387,836 - - 3,387,836
Trading portfolio assets RGBREE 6,655 46,686 70,265 123,606
Derivative financial assets ITEEREE 7,694 = = 7,69
Trade receivables FEMBR X = 8,750 562,674 571,424
Financial assets at fair value through ~ HAFEAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ & REE - - 627,200 627,200
Other financial assets at amortised cost 1% #5751/ 8k 2
Htr oA E 1,034,773 - - 1,034,773
Other assets HiEE 52,313 3,017 228,087 283,417
6,064,709 58,453 1,488,226 7,611,388

Credit card commitments, irrevocable {5 R&¥E « A rlde[m

commitment and guarantees provided ~ 7&¥E & B 2 ER 103,030 - 60,000 163,030
Maximum credit risk exposure SEAER LA 6,167,739 58,453 1,548,226 7,774,418
(ii) Credit exposure by quality of assets of the banking business is as (i) RBITEBEELEZSH 2 ZERR
follows: M :
As at 31 December 2019 R=-FB-NE+=HA=1+—H

Book value
No external  of impaired

AAAtoAA  A+toBBB- BB+ orlower rating loans net Total
BHEER

AAARZAAD A+HZBBB-& BB+RAEM  EHNFFR ZBREFE @t

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TERL TER TER TER TER TEn

Due from banks USRI TR 1,558,493 3,304,404 = 38,301 = 4,901,198
Due from clients YR FHE - - - 2,089,520 3,730 2,093,250
Finandial instruments SRIA 577,316 730,644 - 46,758 = 1,354,718
Other assets Hin&E - - = 46,442 = 46,442
Derivative financial instruments T4 4RI A 1,047 76 - 9,152 - 10,275

2,136,856 4,035,124 = 2,230,173 3,730 8,405,883
Contingent liabilities KRER - 2,185 - 112,260 - 114,445




52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
52.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

52. W% Ja ke i B H AR K SR (%)

5.4 (=& B ()

(i) (4&)

R-ZB-NF+ZRA=+—H

Book value

No external of impaired
AAA to AA A+t0BBB- BB+ or lower rating loans net Total

BRifES

AABRZEAAR A+#RZ BB~ i ko ZREF 2t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT FET T T
Due from banks YRR 1118414 2,162,781 = 106,458 183 3,387,836
Due from clients ez PR - - - 1,570,472 4,966 1,575,438
Financial instruments SRIA 527,488 509,391 - 4,549 - 1,041,428
Other assets EthEE - 37 - 52,276 - 52313
Derivative financial instruments 744 BT A 5,823 24 - 1,847 - 7,694
1,651,725 2,672,233 - 1,735,602 5,149 6,064,709
Contingent liabilities IREE - 3,585 - 99,445 - 103,030

The above table shows the quality of assets according to the
external ratings available. Financial instruments without a rating are
mainly instruments for which there is no external rating available.
Amounts due from clients are allocated to the category “no

external rating”.

Credit exposure by collateral of the banking business is as follows:

As at 31 December 2019

Mortgage-
backed
UREX &

HK$'000
TR

ERINTIRIBEE BB BN EE
B BRI ATZ2RITEIN
R THE - BURPHRIBFERS
[EINEDRT AR

(i) BRITEBHEFRRE S ZEERBRN
T

R=-ZF-hF+=A=t+—H

Other No
collateral collateral Total
H 3 BEAR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET

Due from clients of which mortgage loan 1B E 7 2 [EU R F 58
— Residential property —FENE 887,165 158 44 887,367
- Office and business property —WRERBAME 125,998 - - 125,998
- Commercial and industrial property ~ —T&#% 241,005 - - 241,005
- Other —Hft 930 824,357 13,593 838,880
Financial instruments SHMTA - - 1,307,960 1,307,960
Trading portfolio investments RGBEEE - - 46,758 46,758
Derivative financial instruments fTEERMTA - - 10,275 10,275
1,255,098 824,515 1,378,630 3,458,243
Contingent liabilities LABE 20,976 93,462 7 114,445
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 52. Yo 5 Jo e 4 PR H B B SR (4

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.4 Credit risk (Continued) 5.4 (=& B ()
(iii) (Continued) (iii) (%&)

As at 31 December 2018

Mortgage-
backed
ARIBX
HK$'000
TET

Due from clients of which mortgage loan 1z 1B E 3 2 [EUE 208

R-ZZB-NF+ZA=1+—H

Other No
EIEE] EIEE]
Hit i Hm EERm
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL

HK$'000
TET

— Residential property —EEWE 723,400 11,997 98 735,495
- Office and business property —-MAZREANE 7,366 = = 7,366
— Commercial and industrial property ~ — L% 80,096 - - 80,096
- Other —Hft 291 729,146 23,044 752,481
Financial instruments SRTA - - 1,034,773 1,034,773
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA - - 7,694 7,694

811,153 741,143 1,065,609 2,617,905
Contingent liabilities FREE 4,642 98,378 10 103,030

The above table shows that secured lending represents constantly
more than 90 per cent of the total due from clients.

(iv) Credit risk by geographical sector of the banking business is as

follows:

As at 31 December 2019

Switzerland
and
Liechtenstein

Btk
JI%XHLE

HK$'000
TET

ERETAEBRERFAELREES

SRIBAREERBIR90% ©

(iv) RRTEBHERRB S ZEE

NN
R=-ZE—h&+=-BA=+—H

Europe
(excluding
Switzerland
and
Liechtenstein)
59
(FEERLIR
FIXHLE)
HK$'000
TER

Other

Hits
HK$'000
THT

ey

Total

Azt

HK$°000
TET

Due from banks FEMRITRIE 2,622,390 2,278,808 = 4,901,198
Due from clients MR P 3R 438,164 1,273,231 381,855 2,093,250
Financial instruments SRIA 46,758 527,041 780,919 1,354,718
Other assets Hi &= 31,067 15,354 21 46,442
Derivative financial instruments TEEBITA 1,146 8,822 307 10,275

3,139,525 4,103,256 1,163,102 8,405,883
Contingent liabilities FARE 106,966 6,537 942 114,445

3,246,491 4,109,793 1,164,044 8,520,328




52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(iv) (Continued)

(v)

As at 31 December 2018

52. BA % R B4 PR H AR K BUR (4)
52.4 & = B (48)

Switzerland
and
Liechtenstein

Wtk
X HLE

HK$'000
TR

(iv) (&)

R=—ZE—NF+=-A=+—H

Europe
(excluding
Switzerland and
Liechtenstein)

(T Btk
JIXHELE)
HK$'000
TR

HK$'00_0

Other

Hith

HK$'000
:F/ET[

Due from banks E%ﬁfm 1,661,804 1,726,032 = 3,387,836
Due from clients EREFR 326,891 1,105,377 143,170 1,575,438
Financial instruments SHMIA 2,103 484313 555,012 1,041,428
Other assets Hin &z 47,854 4,442 17 52,313
Derivative financial instruments fTEERMIA 5,847 9 1,838 7,694

2,044,499 3,320,173 700,037 6,064,709
Contingent liabilities FREE 98,524 4,033 473 103,030

2,143,023 3,324,206 700,510 6,167,739

The above table shows a concentration in due from banks and
clients as well as financial instruments outside Switzerland and
Liechtenstein. As at 31 December 2019, outside Switzerland and
Liechtenstein commitments amounted to HK$5,273,837,000
(2018: HK$4,024,209,000), or 62% (2018: 65%) percent of the

total lending volume.

Credit risk by counterparty of the banking business is as follows:

As at 31 December 2019

EFRBEATERHERINTXALE

ASNR AT BB P 3R

EReRIA

EP - R_FT-NAFT_A=+—
B imt RINXHLEEAINEER

5,273,837,0008 L (=& — N\ :

4,024,209,000787T) @ SKEEEE

62% (—

(v) BIBITEBER
s

XS FEID

ZT—)\fF :65%) °

D2 IEER

R=2B-NE+=A=+—-H

Private and

institutional

Public  investment
Central banks Banks sector entities clients Total

BAR
HRRET #®1T KERERF Hit st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
Due from banks fE uﬁzfﬁm - 4,901,198 - - - 4,901,198
Due from clients i ieI=E - - - 2,093,250 - 2,093,250
Financial instruments SRIA - 778,199 82,373 447,388 46,758 1,354,718
Derivative financial instruments 744 BT A 1123 9,152 . . 10,275
Other assets A EE - - 3 46,439 - 46,442
- 5,680,520 91,528 2,587,077 46,758 8,405,883
Contingent liabilities AREE - 2,426 112,019 - - 114,445
ZZE—NFFIR 2019 Annual Report
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

52. W% Ja ke i B H AR K SR (%)

5.4 (=& B ()
(v) (#&)

R-ZZB-NF+ZA=1+—H

Private and
institutional
Public investment
Central banks Banks  sector entities clients Other
, , BAR
R #17 KERERP Aty
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL THIL THIL THIL
Due from banks el R - 33878% - - - 33878%
Due from dlients el E PR - - - 1,575,438 - 1,575,438
Financial instruments SRMTA = 717,349 7,822 316,257 - 1,041,428
Derivative financial instruments T4 &I A - 5,847 - 1,847 - 7,694
Other assets HLwEE - 16,727 20 35,566 - 52,313
- 4127,759 7842 1,929,108 - 6,064,709
Contingent liabilities AREE - 3,825 - 99,205 - 103,030

The above table shows a concentration of bank counterparties,
which is managed by a limit system. This process ensures the
diversification of the counterparties themselves as well as the
counterparty domiciles. Financial instruments issued by corporate
entities are allocated to the category “private and institutional
investment clients”.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(vi)

EREFBRIXSGETFETEHRER
BRERE ZBREBRXZHUTRHE
T DAL - ARIERETZE R
TARERIMARKBRERR] -

K
ERAAEBITRNEHERRATE
NEt 8 FREELT - HFFER

BERGEERER SRMEEHEDR
BEMEEERE  BFERGRSMEIR
MRFIH o



52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 52. Yo 5 Jo e 4 PR H B B SR (4
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.4 Credit risk (Continued) 524 S E Rk (&)
(vi) Offsetting (Continued) (vi) #EH (&)

Financial assets subject to offsetting
ITEHZEREE
Related amounts not offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position

PERGRUBRRRTEE 2 AR R

Gross Net amount
amount of of financial
recognised assets

financial presented
liabilities inthe

offsetinthe  consolidated Financial
(Gross amount statement statement instruments Cash
of recognised of financial of financial other than collateral
financial assets position position  cash collateral received Net amount
RuBRRES RERHH
BEE  EHZERE RRRAE5L SRIE

SHEESE CRBEHEE SREETE (RLEARRN) CUBLERR bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TiEn TiEn TEn TiEn TiEn
At 31 December 2019
RZB-A%+-A=1-A
Type of financial assets SHAERY
Trade receivables from clearing house ~ EAEEFTE R 5,141 (4,248) 893 - - 893

Type of financial assets EREES
Trade receivables from clearing house ~ EEE B 3% 2919 (2,919 - - - -
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 52. Yo 5 Jo e 4 PR H B B SR (4
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.4 Credit risk (Continued) 524 S E Rk (&)
(vi) Offsetting (Continued) (vi) #EsH (&)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting
UFEEzERER
Related amounts not offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position

PERGRUBRRRTEE 2 AR R

Gross
amount of Net amount
recognised of financial

financial assets liabilities
offsetinthe  presented in
Grossamount consolidated the consolidated Financial
of recognised ~ statementof  statement of instruments (€]
financial ENE] ENE] other than collateral
liabilities position position  cash collateral received Net amount
R4 R4
BBRRERT  HERRED SRIE
BRA  EHZEER 23z (ReERR gk
tHERATE SREESR CHARTE B REERR 2
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TERL TERL THRT TER THRT TR
At 31 December 2019
RZB-AFtZA=t1-A
Type of financial iabiltes SRBEER
Trade payables to learing house EREZMER 7,650 (4,248) 3402 - - 3402

SHAREY
Trade payables from clearinghouse ~~ EEEEfER 3 7,668 2,919 4749 - - 4719

Type of financial iabilities




52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
52.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(vi) Offsetting (Continued)
The tables below reconcile the amounts of trade receivables and
trade payables as presented in the consolidated statement of

financial position:

52. W% Ja ke i B H AR K SR (%)

524 5Bk (&)
(vi) 3K3$H (58)
TRAERGAV BRI 2B

BR TX B B ST BR SR 2 $98H ¢

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZET-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Trade receivables FE U BR R FET FHT
Net amount of trade receivables from clearing & Ug 4% & AT BR 31 F 48
house 893 -
Trade, loan and interest receivables not in the TETK%TBZ?%’@ﬁZJEW BRX -
scope of offsetting disclosure JE U B R % R M 477,369 571,424
Trade, loan and interest receivables as disclosed 47 & B 5k 5 2= P % B2 2 JIE UK AR 20
in the consolidated statement of financial FEWRE K B UL F 8
position 478,262 571,424

FEAY BR R

Trade payables

2019
—E-hnEF T
HK$°000
TET

2018
N
HK$'000

BT

Net amount of trade payables to clearing house & {5 4 & TR 5K F 58 3,402 4,749
Trade payables not in the scope of offsetting ~ TfEIX§ I FEEE <
disclosure JE 1 BR X 408,025 319,357
Trade payables as disclosed in the consolidated 47 & B4 #5 AR LR AT I 55 2
statement of financial position FE T BR X 411,427 324,106
52.5 Liquidity risk 525 BN EE A
Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will not able to meet its mEBECRBERAERMEIBITESHMA
obligation associated with its financial liabilities. The Group manages ERBETZRREGEH - $E@}§ha§ 18

its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash-outflows
due in day-to-day business. Liquidity needs are monitored on a day-to-
day basis. Long-term liquidity needs for a 360-day lookout period are
identified monthly.

The Group maintains mainly cash to meet its liquidity requirements
for up to 30-day periods. Funding for long-term liquidity needs is
additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities.

ERRYoRABGZREEFNAMNBER
%%Iié/ﬂbﬁ MEE@F&MLEE@@%* o 7K
SEGRERARDEDSFTHK - 360

AERH REARBESH KNG AHETE °

AEEEZEN AR ENERS 30 BHH

ZnBEEHFR -MERARBESER
R RAHEERERMT -

—Z—AFEEHR 2019 Annual Report 295



296 Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited B EEKIKE L EHIRAF]

52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the reporting date of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flow (including interest payments BEUASHFERAE 2 F B RIE - spbiF e
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current ms  ERRER ZERIFIR) RAEET]
at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can be required BEANZZRERHAER . RS
to pay. Specially, for bank borrowings which contain a repayment on HRBERENRE RGN A @GR A] B
demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the RITEEMBITEZHETES  ZOoWE
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period in which the BERAEANRZ XA RRS R
entity can be required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their H o BB A ST EEEREIEER
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate effect. IR o

52. W% Ja ke i B H AR K SR (%)

525 RENE £k ()
TREFABEEAEESHE BT R
AHFIEE  HUANRUBRRSRE (8

As at 31 December 2019 NR-BB—hE+=-A=+—H
Total contractual Within

Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or

amount cash flow on demand

BRRER 1EAR

Over 1 year

REE HEREAR REX BB1F

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR

Non-derivative financial liabilities ETELRAR
Due to banks JERTRIT R 17,968 17,968 16,358 1,610
Due to clients EREFZE 11,906,290 11,906,290 11,906,290 -
Trade payables FETBR SR 411,427 411,427 411,427 -
Borrowings = 1,740,362 1,750,334 1,750,334 =
Lease liabilities HE&E 83,975 99,761 42,987 56,774
Due to directors ENESZZHE 22,241 23,098 23,098 =
Due to a shareholder Rt —ZIRE 2508 12,000 12,600 12,600 =
Other liabilities HtgE 467,414 467,414 467,414 -
14,661,677 14,688,892 14,630,508 58,384
Maximum contractual amount BEENEE
Financial guarantee issued BELMEER - 30,000 30,000 =
Credit card commitments ERREAE - 93,462 93,462 -
Irrecoverable commitments AU el A - 20,983 20,983 =
- 144,445 144,445 -




52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2018

52. W% Ja ke i B H AR K SR (%)

525 "B E € B b (4])

Carrying
amount

REE
HK$'000

R-ZB-NF+ZA=+—H

Total contractual Within
undiscounted 1 year or
cash flow on demand Over 1 year

SORMH TR

RERBEE REX Bia1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-derivative financial liabilities ETESRAR

[
870

Fi7 T T

Due to banks FEfSR1T 708 4,181 4,181 2,589 1,592
Due to clients EREFHIA 12,430,641 12,430,641 12,382,172 48,469
Trade payables TR R 324,106 324,106 324,106 -
Corporate bonds RAAlEH 760,244 776,320 776,320 -
Borrowings = 1,047,189 1,065,349 1,065,349 =
Due to a shareholder R —&RE 708 73,000 73,000 73,000 =
Other liabilities HitgE 503,694 503,694 503,694 =
15,143,055 15,177,291 15,127,230 50,061

Maximum contractual amount BEANGE
Financial quarantee issued B BER - 60,000 60,000 =
Credit card commitments ERREE - 98,388 98,388 =
Irrecoverable commitments A0 Y el A - 4,642 4,642 =
= 163,030 163,030 =

Liquidity risk also arises when there is mismatch between amounts and
maturity dates of financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Group manages liquidity risk by holding liquid assets (including cash
and deposits, financial instruments and other assets) of appropriate
quality and quantity to ensure that short term funding requirements are
covered within prudent limits.

RBECRARITANREREER ARG
ZEERBHABRMmES -

AEEEEREEEEEZRDUEEE (B
EReREFER SMIARAEMEE)E
BRHECAR URBRRELEEHEEZ
REANSERESTRK -
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 52. Yo 5 Jo e 4 PR H B B SR (4

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 525 REE LR (&)

The following tables indicates the analysis by remaining maturities of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities:

As at 31 December 2019

Repayable
on demand

REREE

HK$'000
7

Within
1year
15/

HK$'000

THET

TRINFAEBE LR NI MAGFESRE
ENBEZOHN

R=B-AE+=A=+-8

More than
1 year
BB1F
HK$'000
TET

No maturity
date
EZHA
HK$'000
T

Total
@t
HK$'000
TER

Total financial assets CRIEELE 7,057,966 4,923,765 2,202,963 430,991 14,615,685
Total financial liabilities tRBRER (14,039,965) (635,598) (97,664) - (14,773,227)
Financial asset-liability gap SRMEEBGEHRD (6,981,999) 4,288,167 2,105,299 430,991 (157,542)

As at 31 December 2018

Repayable
on demand
REXER

HK$'000
TET

Within
1 year
1R
HK$'000

S
27T

R-B-—NF+=-A=t+—H

More than
1 year
HiB1E
HK$'000
THIT

No maturity
date
EIHA
HK$'000
T

Total
st
HK$'000
AT

Total financial assets SREELS 9,918,956 3,050,412 1,716,563 627,200 15,313,131
Total financial liabilities TRERES (15,096,093) (91,718) (50,060) - (15,237,871)
Financial asset-liability gap SREAERGHRMD (5,177,137) 2,958,694 1,666,503 627,200 (75,260)

As the financial instruments such as trading portfolio investments may
be sold before maturity or due to banks and clients may mature without
being withdrawn, the contractual maturity dates do not represent
expected dates of future cash flows.

The below table summarises the maturity analysis of borrowings with a
repayment on demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments
set out in the loan agreements. The amounts included interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were
greater than the amount disclosed in the “Within one year and on
demand” time band in the maturity analysis above. Taking into account
the Group’s financial positions, the directors do not consider that it
is probable that the banks will exercise their discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements.

As at 31 December 2019, one of the financial covenants as stipulated
in the relevant agreements in respect of borrowings with outstanding
principal of approximately HK$973,702,000 was not satisfied.
Accordingly, from accounting perspective, the aforesaid borrowings
would be regarded as immediately due and payable should the lenders
exercise their rights under the agreements as at 31 December 2019.
The relevant banks have granted waivers to the Group in respect of the
unsatisfied financial covenants before the date of authorisation of the
financial statements.

HAERTAMZ ZAEEKE AN 2 H
Al 5 S B A5 R 1T R B P R IR AT BEFE T
REZBEATES a0 EWIEREK
AKRBEEREZ AT HE -

TRBURAR R & 5K 15 5 P 84 175 7 $EE & K
MAREREEGRZEEZIHAS
- ERASBEBEASHNIHE RS
R - HIlt - ZFEBAR EXBHE S
2 [ —F NI B S E T EE
R REBAEEMBRNE  EFR
RIRTTHG A A BEBY I 1T 8 5L 2 SR AD B A A+
ZHERN - BEZREEREEBREER D
ZPTE AR E KB ET o

R-ZE—AF+-_A=1+—H KEBEX
REER I IRITEEE @GS —EH
BHESE  EBEFRNREERSNA
973,702,000 T c B Itk R=ZT— N F
+ZA=+—8H #2HAE  WERA
RIE W ZITERET - ZEGERIHR AR
BFEIHR o AZARBA TS SRR EH T EE AT - B
BRITERARERNP BT EEHRASE
EETER -



52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)

52. W% Ja ke i B H AR K SR (%)

525 REE £k (E)

The maturity analysis of the bank borrowings is as follows:

Total
contractual

Carrying undiscounted

amount

BEE
HK$'000
57t

cash flow

ANRER
BeREAE
HK$'000
TAL

RITEEDNHBA DT

Within

1 year or
on demand
E: 30
REXR
HK$°000
THIT

Over 1 year
but within
2 years
BBE1F
BR2ER
HK$'000
THT

Over
2 years

B@2F
HK$'000
TBT

As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NEF
+=A=+-8 953,384 1,061,865 232,980 411,561 417,324
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+=A=+—H 862,821 895,772 895,772 - -
52.6 Fair value risk 52.6 A F{EE ke

The fair value of the Group’s current financial assets and liabilities
are not materially different from their carrying amounts because of
the immediate or short-term maturity. The fair values of non-current
financial assets and liabilities were not disclosed because the carrying
values were not materially different from their fair values.

52.7 Equity price risk

Equity price risk related to the risk that the fair values or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market
price (other than changes in interest rate and foreign exchange rate). The
Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity investments
classified as trading portfolio investments and financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

Decisions to buy or sell trading portfolio investments are based on daily
monitoring of the performance of individual securities and other industry
indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs. Financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income are based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly for performance
against expectations.

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s
profit after income tax and consolidated equity in response to reasonably
possible changes in the share prices of the listed investments classified

52.7

A A 7 B T 2 R L DS S
N AN TFERETALEE
XER - MRIFRDLREERAELE
EERATHLREALR  ATHER
AF(E -

IR A fE 1% L B
BRABRARESRETA 2 A TFEIKRK
RenERMEZEMKE (FF RINE
PEREEBRIN) 2 ERAR - NEBAE
HEADERXHEBRE MR A FER
AEMEMPRAZ EREEZRAREZ
A EIR B E R -

BEERGHAKREREREBRERMEMNE
HZRBREMITEREARANEEZR
PELFEFL - HAFEFAEMEE
WAZEREENBRERHRZERENR
HEE WERERRERRELNTAES -

TRETHDBRRHEAREZ LHIRE
RERAEBNIRE H R EHERER
ZEAFEFARMEARAZEHEE

as trading portfolio investments and financial assets at fair value through ZEEAIREEE)  WAEEZRFTSHE
other comprehensive income to which the Group has significant b AR A w2 A E) o —F — \F

exposure at the reporting date. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2018.

ZANIR AR EERE
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 52. Yo 5 Jo e 4 PR H B B SR (4
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.7 Equity price risk (Continued) 52.7 R A (E A& R B (4E)
2019 2018
“E-hE —T-N\E
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
profit after fair value profit after fair value
taxand through other taxand  through other
retained comprehensive retained  comprehensive
profits income reserve i income reserve
HERB R RF BATHE BATYE
RREBEF STAEM RIRE FTAEA
a7 £ ON 47 2EBA
mEZEE mEZHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THEx TR THET T
Trading portfolio investments: RGEERE !
Increase in share prices of the listed FTRE ZIRME L 730%
investments by 30% (Z2—-N\¥F:30%)
(2018: 30%) 44,205 - 23,466 -
Decrease in share prices of the listed ERE ZRET%30%
investments by 30% (ZZ—\F :30%)
(2018: 30%) (44,205) - (23,466) -
Financial assets at fair value through ~ ZAFEFAHtZH
other comprehensive income KWAZERERE
Increase in share price of the listed EmRE 2 RE EF30%
investment by 30% (2018: 30%) (ZZ2—=\¥ :30%) - 125,177 = 186,447
Decrease in share price of the listed ETRE ZRET%30%
investment by 30% (2018: 30%) (ZZ—N\F :30%) - (125,177) - (186,447)
52.8 Operational risks 52.8 & E &
Operational risk is the risk of losses due to faulty internal processes, LBREMRBIEHR T EE 2 AHMRE BT
procedures and systems, inappropriate behaviour by employees, or REIE - B TR E SN2 2 i iEhK
external influences. The definition includes all legal risks as well as BRZER - HERBEMBEZRERIA
reputational risks. However, it excludes strategic risks. The ongoing NEERR  AmMLTeEEERE -
monitoring of operational risk is, whenever possible, embedded in BRI SEBERESREERLER
the operational processes. Separation of functions and a dual control i o BB D PR AN Bl R Bl 2 & 8 R e
principle are crucial elements in monitoring. The directors oversee the ERARER SEENEELRER
management of operational risk based on standardised reporting and ad BN BRI EE R B R b B IR o
hoc information.
Capital management BEXREHE
The Group's capital management objectives are: REBZEARERBERR
(i)  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so () MWRASEEAFELSE NEER
that it continues to provide returns and benefits for stakeholders; FOERMEEREFE
(i)  To support the Group’s stability and growth; and (iiy TEHEAEEEREHER: &
(i) To provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers and (iy REEEHERKEREES -

acquisitions.



52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 52. Yo 5 Jo e 4 PR H B B SR (4

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
52.8 Operational risks (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group sets the amount of equity capital in proportion to its overall
financing structure. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debts.

The capital-to-overall financing ratio at reporting date was as follows:

52.8 & E Ekx ()
(%)

BEXER
AEBRIFEEBUB AR Z L PIEER
RER - REBEERERERE  WHEEL
B MR EE BRI A
o RERARBENGERE  AEEXE
SABARR N ZRBRERE  BITHR
HHEBEERE

RBER B EEERELETNT :

2019 2018
—E-hFE ZZ-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Capital =N

Total equity 4R %R 4,660,889 4,809,491

Overall financing EREME
Borrowings BE 1,740,362 1,047,189
Due to a shareholder FE — B RRER 2 FIH 12,000 73,000
Due to directors JENEE 2 I8 22,241 =
Corporate bonds UNEILEE = 760,244
1,774,603 1,880,433
Capital-to-overall financing ratio BAR(REERE X 2.63 2.56

Capital adequacy of Bendura Group EHEEELTE

Starting 1 February 2015, the calculation of regulatory capital
incorporates the capital requirements following the Capital
Requirements Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 (Capital Requirements
Regulation — CRR) and the Capital Requirements Directive No. 2013/36/
EU (CRD 4) as implemented into Liechtenstein law. The minimum capital
requirement is 8% of risk weighted assets which consists at least of
4.5% common equity tier 1 (CET 1) capital, 1.5% additional tier 1
capital and 2% tier 2 capital. In addition, Bendura Group has to fulfill
2.5% buffer requirements (capital conservation buffer). The buffer
requirement must be fulfilled with CET 1 capital.

Capital ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing Bendura Group’s
eligible capital with balance sheet assets, off-balance sheet commitments
and market positions at weighted amounts to reflect their relative risk.
Assets are weighted according to broad categories of notional risk, first
being multiplied by a conversion factor and then being assigned a risk
weighting according to the amount of capital deemed to be necessary
for them. Off-balance sheet commitments and default risk positions
are also multiplied and risk-weighted. Market risk is calculated with the
standard approach.

BE-Z-—hF-_A—H# BEIXHL
BEEMAEARBEIER (BB (EAE
SOAH —CRR) 85575/20135% B AR E
$5< 25 2013/36/EUSR (CRD 4) - EEEE AR Z
AERSEAREX - REREAEREBRR
MEEEZ8%  HPEDBIEL5% ZD
—IRER (R O—RER) ~ 1.5% ZBIN—1
BAR2% —MEX - N BHEEA
ME25% 2 EEHER (BERFEEE) -
B E B RNBAZ L — R E RER ©

BARRENEALREE  HERKE
WEEZERERNEEERBERTEE
BERBERINKERZNESEAE 2T
SRR LR ARMEREER - BEERE
REE R FERINE - FLRA—EEBE
= BRBERERUEMNEZESHED
FeinER K - BERERIVEERENR
BARI IR & 1 th SR BN AR 0 BL hndE L o
MR ARET A E -
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.8 Operational risks (Continued)
Capital adequacy of Bendura Group (Continued)
All results are based on the full application of the final CRR and CRD
4 framework in the European Union and thus without consideration
of applicable transitional rules. Bendura Group has complied with all
externally imposed capital requirements as at 31 December 2019 and
2018.

52.9 Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position
The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

e the fair values of listed equity investments, precious metal,
and debt instruments classified under due from banks, trading
portfolio investments, financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income and due to clients are determined by
reference to their quoted market prices at the reporting date
in active markets and have been translated using the spot
foreign currency rates at the end of the reporting periods where
appropriate.

e the fair value of unlisted investment fund units as at 31 December
2018 under trading portfolio investments is determined by
reference to their quoted market prices at the reporting date
in active markets and have been translated using the spot
foreign currency rates at the end of the reporting periods where
appropriate.

e the fair value of certain equity investments under financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income is determined
based on the fair value of their underlying net assets.

e the fair values of unlisted debt instruments classified under trading
portfolio investments have been determined using significant
inputs, which are market observable, directly or indirectly.

e the fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities classified
at level 2 financial assets are marked to market using the foreign
exchange forward rates ruling at the end of each reporting periods.

e the fair value of unlisted investment in insurance policy is
determined based on amount value as stated in cash surrender
value statement issued by insurer.

e the fair value of unlisted financial product investments is
determined based on the latest transaction price.

52. W% Ja ke i B H AR K SR (%)

52.8 & E @ B (4E)

B EEERTE (K)

P i REP 2 HE TR R AR CRR &
CRD 4{EZR /ST - Bt R E BE A BE
BE - EMEEAR-T-NER-F—N
F+-A=+—AE2EETINBIEMZ
ARBER-

52.9 RARE B IR R 2 D FEF

==4
ARESBEAERS WA EZ A TFERN
TERERE :

e SNEFEWRTHIA RH5EER
B BAFEFARMEERAZE
BMEENENEFPRIELZ LTBRAK
B BEeBREBTIAZATELSZ
ZERREBNERTS L2 BAT
BEE WO RBEHRZENHEX
BE (WER) -

e R E—NF+-A=+-—H X5
HEREMIELMREESEMHA
FESLEERFEARERM S L2
BAMEBEE @ WE kKGR 2 A
HAE IR E (@A) -

o BAVEFMAHMZEARAZEZRE
EZETRAKREZ ATERERE
EFEZAFEEE °

s NHEXSHEAREBEZIELEMERT
Az R HEDERSEERERM S
BRZBEABABEERE -

s NHERAF_AELMBEEZNETHE
ERAEZ A THETIAS ERE R
= AR B PE IR T ERE o

e  ARETMREREZRAFETNZERA
AEARSRREMRAZEEME
e

o FEMEREMBREZAFERER
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AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.9 Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated 529 ARE MM R RER 2 AT E

statement of financial position (Continued)

HKFRS 13 introduced a three-level hierarchy for fair value measurement
disclosures and additional disclosures about the relative reliability of fair
value measurements.

The hierarchy groups financial assets and financial liabilities into three
levels based on the relative reliability of significant inputs used in
measuring the fair value of these financial assets and financial liabilities.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

—  level 2:  observable direct and indirect inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1; and

-  Level 3: unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

The financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into the fair
value hierarchy as follows:

E (&)

BEMBREERE 13/ R FEAER
BRABQFERE YA EE 28I
BESIA=ZEAFEER -

TREERTRABEREANTESRE
ENERMBBEZATEZERBAREZ
MBI EED R=EER X FEERE
IANEBA :

- F—#&:

- Ef: EHEERAEEBEUERZEH
ABE (TBEE R

B): &
- B=R: BEREEZBARED
%?ﬁiﬁ?%%ﬁﬁz%k%{

GARBRAEAATFEI B2 SHAE
REBMBESAUTATERR :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E-& ot F=4
HK$'000 HK$fOOO
T THT
2019 Z2-NE
Assets i
Due from bank - precious metal BRRTHIE-ESE - 56,935 - 56,935
Trading portfolio investments XHMERE 147,349 33,79 46,758 227,903
Derivative financial assets TESREE - 10,275 - 10,275
Financial assets at fair value through other &2 FE: ARM2E
comprehensive income BAZ SHEE 417,256 5,605 - 422,861
564,605 106,611 46,758 717,974
Liabilities 8fE
Derivative financial liabilities TEERARE - 54,788 - 54,788
- 54,788 - 54,788
2018 —B2-N\%¥
Assets i
Due from bank - precious metal BRBTHIE-ELE - 74,301 - 74,301
Trading portfolio investments XHMERE 80,329 43,277 = 123,606
Derivative financial assets TEERMEE - 7,694 - 7,694
Financial assets at fair value through other &2 FE: AEM2E
comprehensive income WAz eREE 621,489 5,711 - 627,200
701,818 130,983 - 832,801
Liabilities 8fE
Derivative financial liabilities TEERARE - 20,866 - 20,866
- 20,866 - 20,866

—TAEFHR 2019 Annual Report 3()3
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52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 52. Yo 5 Jo e 4 PR H B B SR (4
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

52.9 Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated

52.9 MR & MR R 2 D FER

statement of financial position (Continued)
There have been no significant transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the
reporting period.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial assets and
financial liabilities are categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of
measuring fair value are unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods.

The fair value of unlisted investment funds classified as trading portfolio
investments is Level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation

of the opening and closing fair value balances are provided as below.

E (&
RBERAR F—RARE_RzHALESE
REE -

SRMAERSMEBEBHAEAL ATE
BABA - DERYAFESBBERZ
SIEE R AKEED -

AFERFEMAER G A EAER
SHEER -

HEARPEA AN ETRELS 0
AFEBEZREHEATESE - 7]
RAARATFEEBOHERIIOT -

2019 2018

—B-nF ZFT-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Opening balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) BMO&ER (E=ZRR B LR TES) = =
Acquisition Wb 47,048 -
Fair value change during the year FRNRAFEEZH (1,172) -
Exchange realignment PE H A% 882 -
Closing balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) HRGER (BALEEATFETE) 46,758 -




53. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 53. W5 IR Pt %

2019
—B-NF
HK$’000
FHExT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B R 37,967 3,171
Interests in subsidiaries Frib B /B~ Al Z #E e 2,182,132 1,503,248
Financial asset at fair value through other BRAFEGFAEMEERRAZ
comprehensive income EREE 243,930 426,115
2,464,029 1,932,534
Current assets REBEE
Other assets Hfb &z 62,415 61,032
Trading portfolio investments RGEEHRE 57,466 61,865
Cash and deposits RE RIFR 26,441 12,730
146,322 135,627
Current liabilities REAE
Other liabilities HEMBE 36,379 21,150
Borrowings BE 1,329,114 738,299
Lease liabilities HEAE 17,665 -
Due to a shareholder JET — R AR 2 FIAE 12,000 73,000
1,395,158 832,449
Net current liabilities REBAEFE (1,248,836) (696,822)
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBERE 1,215,193 1,235,712
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 19,336 -
Net assets BEEFE 1,195,857 1,235,712
EQUITY E=
Share capital f& 7R 41 435,189 435,189
Reserves s 43 760,668 800,523
Total equity B 1,195,857 1,235,712

The statements of financial position of the Company was approved and AR GHEMRRNER T -_EFE=A=+HEXQ
authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 30 March GIEE S ERIFETIE  WHU FTEEKREE:
2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hon Kwok Lung Shang Jianguang
BEE BEX
Director Director

EE EE

—TAEFH 2019 Annual Report 305
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54. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 54. 3 EHE A\ &R

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of which is a limited liability RZZE—NEF+ZA=+—80 TEMBEQA
company, at 31 December 2019 are as follows: (BRERRA]) ZFIFWT

Particulars of issued/
paid-up capital

Place of incorporation/
registration

Effective percentage of equity
interest held by the Company

Principal activities and
principal place of business

EMERYL/ b BRfT/ARRAFE  ADAMKREZEREAN TEXHRIEERBE
2019 2018
“E-hE BN
Directly held:
ERHE
Qingapen Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment, PRC
BEREARARA B 2B RPERENE
China Haidian Commercial Network Services Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment, PRC
hEERAX AR REERAR & 2B RPERENE
Haidian-Creation International Limited British Virgin Islands ("BVI") Uss$! 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
HERAHE 157 REBRERR
(ZBra#E])
Sure Best Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
PREEERAA B 1AL REBRERR
Jia Cheng Investment Limited BVI Uss$! 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
ERRERRARA ZERANE 157 REBRERR
Citychamp Watch and Jewellery SwissCo AG Switzerland CHF100,000 100% 100%  Issuance of bonds, Switzerland
Wt 100,000 £8P RETETES
Bendura Bank Liechtenstein CHF20,000,000 85.22% 85.07%  Assets management, accepting client
deposits, making investment and
granting loans, Liechtenstein
EHRIT JI%HLE 20,000,003 T4 MIIRALREREE EREPR
®RERBLER
Shun Heng Finance Holding (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 60% 60%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
EFeRER(FR)ARAT BA 50,000,000 7 RERRERR
Indlirectly held:
SR
EBOHR Luxuries International Limited (note a) PRC HK$116,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and distribution of
watches and timepieces, PRC
ke (RY) BRAR (it a) Gl 116,000,000/57 REBRE R D HER RN HER
Shenzhen EBOHR Luxuries Online E-commerce Company ~ PRC RMB19,000,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
Limited (note b) timepieces, PRC
MITEEERERE FAKERAR Gl A& #19,000,0007C RPER HERRE G Em
(Ffztb)
Actor Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
REREERAT B 10000737 REBRERR



54. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of incorporation/

registration

HRAL/ b

54. R E 2w &R (5)

Particulars of issued/
paid-up capital
BRI/ HRBAGHE

Effective percentage of equity

interest held by the Company

ARAMERECEREDL
2019 2018

Principal activities and
principal place of business

IEXBRIZERNN

Indirectly held (Continueq)

BikRE: (8)

Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Limited (note d)
BERRFERRAR (W)

PAMA Precision Manufacturing Limited (note b)
ATRERREEARAR (o)

Shenzhen Permanence Commerce Co., Limited (note b)
MITEEERESARAR (o)

Zhuhai Rossini Glasses Industry Limited (note b)
rEEREREARAT (M)

Sino Swiss Clock & Watch Technology Limited (note b)

i () ERRIARAR (M)

Eterna AG Uhrenfabrik

Eterna Movement AG

Guangdong Juxin Watch Co., Limited (note d)
BREGEFERARAR (W)
Liaoning Hengjia Horologe Co., Limited (note d)

REBRERERAR (Mid)

PRC
i

PRC

HE

Switzerland

it

Switzerland

it

PRC

HE

PRC

el

“E-0F ZE-0F

RMB180,000,000 91% 91%
AR180,000,0007
RMB11,000,000 100% 100%

AR 11,000,00075

RMB23,000,000 91% 91%
A& 23,000,000
RMB1,000,000 91% 91%

AE#1,000,0007

RMB5,000,000 91% 91%
ARH5,000,0007C

CHF6,000,000 100% 100%
6,000,005 T AED

CHF1,000,000 100% 100%
1,000,000 L/AED

RMB15,000,000 51% 51%
A& H15,000,00070

RMB25,500,000 51% 51%
A& 25,500,000

—Z—NFEFR 2019 Annual Report 3()7

Manufacture and distribution of
watches and timepieces, PRC
RAEIRE R A HEE RS Em

Manufacture and distribution of
watches and timepieces, PRC
RAEIRE R 7 HER RS Em

Distribution of watches and
timepieces, PRC
RABEDEEE L ER

Distribution of glasses, PRC
R E A R

Provision of services in watch
maintenance and repairment and
technical advisory, PRC

R EREEREE R ARSE

Manufacture and distribution
of watches and timepieces,
Switzerland

Rt EERHHEGREHED

Manufacture and distribution
of watches and timepieces,
Switzerland

Rt EERHHEGREHED

Distribution of watches and
timepieces, PRC
RPE D HER R ER

Distribution of watches and
timepieces, PRC

ReEDHERRE T ER



54. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of incorporation/
registration

HRAL/ M

308 Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited B EEKIKE L EHIRAF]

Particulars of issued/
paid-up capital
BB/ HRBAGHE

Effective percentage of equity
interest held by the Company
AREMERECEREDL

54. E R & 2w &R (5)

Principal activities and
principal place of business

IEXBRIZERNN

Indirectly held (Continueq)

BiERE  (8)

Guangzhou Five Goat Watch Co., Limited (note b)
BMLFHEARAR (HEb)

Eterna (Asia) Limited

GEE (TN BRRA

Centenaire Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (note a)
ZHEMAE S (L8) BRAR (Hita)

Eterna (Beijing) International Trading Co., Ltd (note b)
aEE (LR BRE2ER A (Hib)

Jilin Dayou Watch Limited (note d)

EMARERERAR (Hid)

Montres Corum Sarl

Montres Corum (UK) Ltd.

Corum ltalia SRL

Montres Corum Europe SA

Servicio de Importacion SA

PRC
i

Hong Kong

PRC
HE

Switzerland

Wt
United Kingdom

+

4

e

Italy
BAR
Switzerland
Wt

Spain

3%

RMB100,000,000
A& 100,000,007
HK$5,000,000
5,000,000
RMB4,550,000
AEH4550,0007C
RMB1,000,000
ARH1,0000007C
RMB15,000,000
AEH 15,000,007

CHF3,000,000

3,000,000 %58
GBP3,383 424
3383424 545
EUR10,400
104008
CHF100,000
100,000 T3£40
EUR739,000

739,000E(7C

2019 2018
ZE-NE ZB-N\E
74.1% 74.1%
70% 70%

70% 70%

70% 70%

51% 51%

100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Manufacture and distribution of
watches and timepieces, PRC
RAEIRE R 7 HEE RS Em

Distribution of watches and
timepieces, Hong Kong
REBDHER L ER

Distribution of watches and
timepieces, PRC
RABEDEER L ER

Distribution of watches and
timepieces, PRC
RABEDEER L ER

Distribution of watches and
timepieces, PRC
RABEDEER R ER

Manufacture, and distribution
of watches and timepieces,
Switzerland

Rt EERHHEGRRHED

Distribution of watches and
timepieces, United Kingdom
REEHHEFREHER

Distribution of watches and
timepieces, Italy

REAMDHEELEHER

Distribution of watches and
timepieces, Switzerland
MRt A EER R ER

Distribution of watches and
timepieces, Spain
RERT 7 HEERETER



54. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 54. 3 R E A w &R (4])
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued/ Effective percentage of equity  Principal activities and
registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company principal place of business

HRAY/ SR BRT/HRRAHE  ADARERECEREAN ITEERITEEHY
2019 2018
“E-RE ZEBE-N\E

Indirectly held (Continueq)
BikRE: (8)
Corum Deutschland GmbH Germany EUR200,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, Germany
B 200,008 REE D HEE R R E &
Corum (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, Hong Kong
i 1,000/&7 REBD HERR R E R
The Dreyfuss Group Limited United Kingdom GBP 221,541 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, United Kingdom
HH 2150154 REED HERRFHER
Rotary Overseas Limited United Kingdom GBP 1,000,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, United Kingdom
LG 1,000,000 55 REED HERRFHER
Artemis Watch Company Limited United Kingdom GBP 100 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, United Kingdom
A 1004 REE D HERR R E R
Rotary Watches LLC United States of America usD 10 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, United States of
America
X 10£7T REBHHEFREHER
Dreyfuss & Co SA Switzerland CHF 100,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of watches and
timepieces, Switzerland
Wt 100,000% 428 Rt BEEF R ER
Fabrique de Moritres Rotary S.A Switzerland CHF 1,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and distribution
of watches and timepieces,
Switzerland
It 1,000,000 AR NetRERDHERRNHER
Bendura Fund Management Alpha AG Liechtenstein CHF1,500,000 85.22% 85.07%  Providing investment counselling,
acting as technical administrator
of fund units, acting as a fund
management company and acting
as an alternative investment fund
manager Liechtenstein
SIRBLE 1,500,000 AR NI BLBREHRERN R
SEUCHNEES REESE
BRAAREERERAESRR

—Z—AFEFHR 2019 Annual Report 3()9
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54. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 54. - EFE A w &R (4)
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued/ Effective percentage of equity  Principal activities and
registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company principal place of business

HMAY/ SR BRT/HRRAHE  ADARERECEREAN ITEERITEEHY
2019 2018
“E-RE ZEB-N\E

Indirectly held (Continueq)
BiERE: (8)
Bendura Fund Management Beta AG Liechtenstein CHF1,500,000 85.22% 85.07%  Providing investment counselling,
acting as technical administrator

of fund units, acting as a fund
management company and acting
as an alternative investment fund
manager, Liechtenstein

G BLE 1,500,00057 45 R BLBREHRARN LR
SEMZHIEES  BASE
BRAREERBREECHE

VFM Mutual Fund AG Liechtenstein CHF 500,000 85.22% 85.07%  Managing a particular fund as general
partner Liechtenstein
Sl%HTE 500,0005% T & RAXFTEEA—REBAEE-
BRAIES
LFM ALPHA SOLUTIONS AGmvk Liechtenstein CHF50,000 85.22% 85.07%  Provision of asset investment and

management services for qualified
investors, Liechtenstein

G BLE 50,0003 AR RAXRLEARERREERIE
EREREERK
Metasequoia Capital Hong Kong HK$800,000 60% 60%  Provision of asset management
services, Hong Kong
K BE i 800,000/ T RERREBEERRE
Shun Heng Hong Kong HK$26,380,000 60% 60%  Dealing and advising in securities,
Hong Kong
EZ i 26,330,000/ REBETESR S RERRE
Metasequoria Investment Fund SPC - Global Cayman Islands US$10,000,000 44.83% 44.98%  Investment fund, Cayman Islands
Opportunities Fund SP
R2RE 10,000,000 % ¢ RAEERBIREES
Emest Borel Holdings Limited Cayman Island HK$3,474,000 64.08% 82.5%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
KEBERAR A REHS 3,474,000 REBREER
Boillat Les Bois S.A. Switzerland CHF100,000 64.08% 82.5%  Development, manufacturing and

marketing of watches, Switzerland
R 100,00035 1458 METRE RERERER




54. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of incorporation/

54. R E 2w &R (5)

Particulars of issued/

Effective percentage of equity

Principal activities and

registration

HRAL/ b

paid-up capital

interest held by the Company

BRfT/MERSHE

principal place of business

Indirectly held: (Continued)
RiERE  (£)

Ernest Borel S.A. Switzerland CHF100,000
T 10000055 L%
Emest Borel (Far East) Company Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000
fiKkE (BR)BRAR B 20,00077
Ernest Borel (Guangzhou) Trading Co., Ltd PRC RMB20,000,000
s (M) B5ER AR Giler AR 20,000,007
Emest Borel (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000
R (B8) BRAR & 1,000/47
Ernest Borel Watch Company Limited (Previously known BV UsD100
a: Ernest Borel Investment Limited) EBRNES 1007
Ernest Borel Watch Company Limited
(AR REARERRAF)
Swissmount Holdings Limited BVI UsD100
RERIEE 100%7

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, results in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year.
Notes:

(@  These subsidiaries are registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under the
law of PRC.

(b)  These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability companies under the law of
PRC.

(c)  This subsidiary is registered as foreign joint venture under the law of PRC.

(d)  These subsidiaries are registered as sino-foreign joint ventures under the law of
PRC.

RRAMBREZBREAL FTEERRITEEHY
2019 2018
“E-RE ZEBE-N\E
64.08% 82.5%  Manufacturing and trading of
watches, Switzerland
NetREREEER
64.08% 82.5%  Assembling and sales of watches,
Hong Kong
RERRE REEESE
64.08% 82.5%  Distribution and sales of watches, PRC
RPEDERHEER
64.08% 82.5%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
REBRERR
64.08% 82.5%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
REBRERR
64.08% 82.5%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
RERREER

PRI EEARFTEXEREERFE X
BRERAEEEEFEEKRIS D 2 AR AN
BRE -EERA i HMIEAR 2 EHR
HELHEBERBRITE °

BN B R RN FRBETEMNERES -
G

@ &
(b) ZEMBARREFREEELAERAF -

(0 ZMBRAREFEIEZELAIFEEDLE -

(d) ZEMBARRETBREZZEL/TINGEL
=,
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54. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the subsidiaries
that had non-controlling interests which is material to the Group, before any

elimination.

3 12 citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited 451 3% 4% 3 25 £ B R 2\ 7

54. R E 2w &R (5)

TXHEHINNE AL HAT R A EEMEEE
AZIFZER RS 2 EMBARPMBEERMRE -

Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry

Ernest Borel Group Bendura Bank AG Limited
KRBT ERBRTROHERAT RERERGKEARAT
2019 2018 2019 2019
=%-nfF ZF\F ZE-AR i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TEx TEx
Summarised statement of financial BB RREE
position
As at 31 December Rt=B=t+-H
Effective non-controlling interests ~ ERFERERF A
percentage 35.92% 17.5% 14.78% 14.93% 9% 9%
Assets EE 474,848 572,056 13,099,804 13,523,012 1,494,686 1,220,004
Liahilities afE (274,408) (300,809) | (12,185,082) | (12,662,307) (345,176) (323,596)
Net assets BELRE 200,440 271,247 914,722 860,705 1,149,510 896,408
Accumulated non-controlling interests &zt 3 21 B 70,017 47,468 142,934 139,151 92,415 80,677
Summarised statement of SERARBE
comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December BET-A=t-BLFE
Revenue g 141,518 42,826 453,253 480,364 937,152 1,066,289
(Loss)/profit before income tax BErE A (518) /& F (74,895) (31,830) 171,603 210,151 210,218 351,241
Other comprehensive income Eth2ERA 2211 3,836 (309) 8,385 - -
Total comprehensive income 2EUALE (72,618) (27,994) 146,827 190,506 177,765 185,677
(Loss)/profit allocated to non- TEREFERES 2
controlling interests (B8) /&7 (26,084) (4,899) 22,217 28,843 15,999 16,711
Dividends paid to non-controlling ~ EFEREZRZF2KE
interests - - 13,981 10,295 15,470 44,329
Summarised statement of cash flows B&RERHE
For the year ended 31 December BEt-A=t-HLEE
Cash flows generated from/(used in) M2 EKEL/ (F1H) 2
operating activities BenE 11,999 2,165 | (2,646,025) (184,302) 205,028 200,951
Cash flows(used in)/generated from REED(ME) /Bl
investing activities RenE 8,891 16,839 (316,063) (108,616) (56,946) (62,308)
Cash flows used in financing activities ~ BEEBFFEZREHE (32,908) (47,209) (94,444) (163,356) (115,152) (156,419)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) RefA/ (hit) 58 (12018 | (8205 | (05653)| @s64 | 390 | (17779




55. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Since January 2020 when COVID-19 breakout happened, the global
confirmed cases have been rising continuously worldwide, which has affected
the business environment of many regions including those where the Group
mainly operate such as Mainland China, Hong Kong, Switzerland and the
United Kingdom. Pending on the developments and spread of COVID-19
subsequent to 31 December 2019 and the date of these consolidated financial
statements, further changes in economic conditions for the Group arising
thereof may have impact on the financial results of the Group, the extent of
which could not be estimated as at the date of these consolidated financial
statements.

55. ek Wi FIH
—E-_FF—A/BRIECOVID-19 ° BEREZRE
PliFERE N - ZEMENEFIRBEZEE L
ERREASBERCEEBATEE - flin
FEA  FS mERAEE - —T—AF+=
A=+—H RkieMEHx A% - COVID-19
HEERFER - LB BE — P F B
REBMMBEEBNTE \mA%%ﬁ%
HE - BRAZENEEEEGR -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T4 0 5 B R 2

A summary of the published results and financial position of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and the last four years is set out below. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

AEEHE T - NF+_A=T—HLEFERB
EMFZETEXERMBARRABEESIIMT - bk
BMEBY TEKEEZH B RR 2 — 8D °

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2019

=t S
HK$'000
FET

St 05 R B

Year ended 31 December
BEZ+-A=1+—-HLEE
PANES] 2017 2016
“E-N\F CZT—+tF ZT—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL TAET TAET

2015
—T-h%F
HK$'000
T

Net interest income from banking business RITEB ZFIBMAFE 183,462 180,831 94,992 17,983
Net service fees and commission income from SR EHKZREER
banking business ReFHE 212,561 236,361 212,616 72,595 =
Trading income from banking business RITEB LR HBA 57,230 63,172 65,227 18,902 =
Service fees and commission income from SREBLRBEER
financial business AEBA 3,195 3,342 9,307 - -
Interest income from financial business SREBZFISHA 165 193 128 - -
Sales of goods from non-banking and financial  JFETTRERBER 2
businesses SEmHERA 2,249,737 2,444,364 2,583,495 2,811,352 3,458,245
Rental income from non-banking and financial  3FSR /TR EREK 2
businesses HEBA 9,915 9,586 16,936 19,123 18,109
Total revenue BN 2,716,265 2,937,849 2,982,701 2,939,955 3,476,354
Cost of sales from non-banking and financial ~ FERTREREK 2
businesses HERA (1,004,030 | (1,022,568)  (1,226494)  (1,296518)  (1,694,496)
Other income and other net gains or losses Hib A R E A
Yo aA s B R % 4R 104,393 79,486 1,300,392 63,165 257,545
Selling and distribution expenses BERHHBA (817,889) |  (849,551)  (800,923)  (841,444)  (883,152)
Administrative expenses THRER (777,114) (737,985) (774,011) (648,477) (616,151)
Share of loss of joint ventures EhEset 81 (1,343) (2,678) (1,159) = =
Share of profit of associates FEMRESE AR A 17,675 8,387 20,711 23,134 9,685
Finance costs from non-banking business FRTEBLHBER (95,320) (65,828) (68,453) (79,447) (77,075)
Profit before income tax BR A5 B A& A 142,637 347,112 1,432,764 160,368 472,710
Income tax expense R (71,456) (105,664) (221,566) (96,529) (132,551)
Profit for the year REERF 71,181 241,448 1,211,198 63,840 340,159
Other comprehensive income Hitt2EBA
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to T &R BEEH HEZE
profit or loss w2
— Remeasurement of net defined benefit — BT EEEET
obligations BEEFE 2,490 33,025 15,186 14,368 9,485
~ Change in fair value of financial assets at fair— & A F @5 AE A
value through other comprehensive income ~ 2HEWAZ £ &
BERNTEE (204,233) (123,352) - - -
— Revaluation gain upon transfer of owner ~ —#§ BB L KIEF
occupied land and buildings to investment BREERBNER
properties Z B - 57,128 = = =
— Deferred tax arising from transfer of owner — % 8 L1 RIEF
occupied land and buildings to investment BEERENE
properties EEZEEHE - (22,212) = - =
(201,743) (55,411) 15,186 14,368 9,485




FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to ~ FI 828 B{& E ¥/ 58 2

2019

“E-RE
HK$'000
THT

St 5 e Bl (48)

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=+-HLFE

2018
—E-N\E
HK$'000
T

2017 2016 2015
22—+t TR —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TE

profit or loss il 19 5k = AN =
— Exchange differences on translation to —BRE25EE 2
presentation currency bE K ERE (91,282) (162,086) 233,906 (226,038) (142,928)
— Release of exchange reserve to profitorloss ~ — R H & KT8 2 712
upon disposal of subsidiaries FRERINEREB R
i | B - - (2,809) 4,701 256
— Share of exchange differences on translation ~ — FE{f &k & 22 A1 EE 7,
of associates =8 (108) (117) 96 (112) 133
~ Changes in fair value of available-for-sale — At EEREE
financial assets NFERE - - (5,041) (75,210) 9,051
(91,390) (162,203) 226,152 (296,659) (133,488)
Other comprehensive income for the year AFEH 2 HE U A (293,133) (217,614) 241,338 (282,291) (124,003)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~AFE2H AL (221,952) 23,834 1,452,536 (218,451) 216,156
Profit for the year attributable to: BT AT EEREERR
Owners of the Company RARER A 44,246 201,372 1,170,484 36,703 307,675
Non-controlling interests RS 26,935 40,076 40,714 27,137 32,484
71,181 241,448 1,211,198 63,840 340,159
Total comprehensive income for the year LA N A T ELAFE
attributable to: 2HBALE:
Owners of the Company AAREERA (243,713) (9,083) 1,395,850 (227,203) 196,583
Non-controlling interests IR = 21,761 32,917 56,686 8,752 19,573
(221,952) 23,834 1,452,536 (218,451) 216,156

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

R - B0 Ik 1 I A

INTERESTS
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+—-HILEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“B-AfF ZFA\F ZFtF ZFRF ZFEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT BT THT T
Total assets BAEE 19,597,081 | 20258229 21,855,671 17,255,820 6,838,556
Total liabilities BeE (14,936,192) | (15,448,738) (16,707,545  (13,403,130)  (2,604,069)
Non-controlling interests It = (405,817) (369,700) (343,245) (219,809) (191,234)
4,255,072 4,439,791 4,804,881 3,632,881 4,043,253
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FERBLE VMR

Description

Flat B, 21st Floor, Jolly Villa

No. 8 Tai Hang Road

Hong Kong and Car parking space
No. 32 on 3rd Floor of

the same building

Industrial Complex

including Dormitories in the

Sixth Industrial Zone

Houjie Town

Dongguan County, Guangdong Province
The People’s Republic of China

(the “PRC")

2nd Lower Ground Level

Jin Hua Building

Yan He South Road

Luohu District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
The PRC

Shops at Street Nos. 13, 14 and 15
New City Centre Plaza Garden
Nos. 459, 461 and 463

Xiang Hua Road

Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province
The PRC

Office B, 7th Floor

No. 78, Nanguan Road
Shenhe District, Shenyang City
The PRC

No. 1004, Block B, Xinnengyuan Building
Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province

The PRC

Nos. 203, 204, 205,

206, 208

Building 16, Dengliang Garden
Dengliang Road, Nanshan District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
The PRC

Nos. 228, 229, 230, 231,
232,233, 234, 235,

236, 237,

Building A, Lifang Village

Nanshan Avenue, Nanshan District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
The PRC

BB A E 85K
MEBHB21EBER
F—iEEFR
318 2 325 E

mE ARERE
(T+E)
ERERZEM
B4
FEARIERETRK
REAXE
(BREES)

HE

ERE R
&R

S R B
BIERNE
ETE=E

A
ERAWES
HER

459 ~ 461 [ 46355
R OER
413 141 1558

&
BB &
7 B335 78 5%
TEBEHRAE

HE
BRERYIT
MlRRENE

FTREIR A E B EE 1004 5%

A
EBREFm
g
BERIEE 168
203~ 204 * 205 -
206 * 208%5%

i
BRAFYm
L L 3
BEHAR

228~ 229230 231
232233234235

236 ~ 23758

Group interest

SEEDR

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Residential
F=

Industrial/Residential

I%/F%

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Residential
F=

Residential
F=E

Medium term lease

R A

Medium term lease

R 4

Medium term lease

R A

Medium term lease

R A

Short term lease

ySEEERD)

Long term lease

REEY

Medium term lease

IR A

Medium term lease

A
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CITYCHAMP

WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED
BHIEZKKEEE R A

BEBNE Units 1902 — 04, Level 19
+EER 1 3R International Commerce Centre
RE S ES 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon

19 12 1902-04 = Hong Kong

www.citychampwj.com
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